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[

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 1.

1. Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890 ; presented to'the House of
Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster. Estimates for the year ending 80th June, 1892;
prescnted 18th May, 1891. Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 80th June, 1891 ; pre-
sented 4th June, 1891. Supplementary Estimates, 1891-32; presented, 16th September, 1891.
Further Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1892 ; presented 29th Septem-
ber, 1891 .......0 o ciiii i e Printed for both distribution and sessional papers..

2. List of Shareholders in the Chartered Banks of the dominion of Canada, as on the 31st December,
1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 2.

8. Report of the Auditor General on Appropriation Accounts, for the year ended 30th June, 1890.
Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.

v 4. Tables of the Trade and Navigation of the dominion of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,
1890. Presented to the House of Com{nons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. M. Bowell—

Printed for both distribution and scssional papers

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 4.

5. Report, Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues of the dominion, of Canada, for the fiscal
year ended 30th June, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J.
CoStigan. . ...coovvivirins cie veriniiiiii, Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Sa. Inspection of Weights, Measures and Gas, being a supplement to the report of the department of
inland revenue, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J. Costigan—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

5b. Report on Adulteration of Food, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890. Presented to the House
of Commons, 1st June, 1891, by Hon. J. Costigan— ’

: Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

6. Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the dominion of Canada, for the calendar year 1890. Pre-
sented tn the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. John Haggart—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 5.

6a. Report on Canadian Archives, 1891......... ..... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

6.. Report on Western Hemisphere Trade..... .. ..... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

6¢. Reports of the Director and Officers of the Experimental Farms, for the year 1890. Presented to the
House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart—

, Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 6.

First Annual Report of the Dairy Commissioner for the dominion of Canada for 1890. Presented to
the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

LA

. Report of the High Commissioner for Canada, with Reports from Agents in the United Kingdom,
for the year 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart—
Printed for both distribution und sessional papers.
Mortuary Statistics of the principal cities and towns of Canada for the year 1890—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
8y. Criminal Statistics for the year ended 30th September, 1890—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

oy,

8.

=

Report of the Honorary Commissioner, Mr. Adam Brown, representing Canada at the Jamaica
Exhibition, 1891. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th June, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 7.

Twenty-third Annual Report of the Department of Marine, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890.
Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. C. H. Tupper—
Printed for both distribution and sesstonul papers.

Report of the Chairman of the Board of Steamboat Inspection, etc., for calendar year ended 31st
December, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. C. H. Tupper—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Evidence on the Export Cattle Trade of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May,

1891, by Hon. C. H. Tupper ............... ... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Report of Evidence relative to the Carrying of Deck Loads of Timber and Deals during the winter
months. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. C. H. Tupper—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8. .

Annual Report of the Department of Fisheries for the year 1890. Presented to the House of Com- '
mons, 6th May, 1891, by Hon. C. H. Tupper.. .. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Fisheries Statements and Inspectors’ Reports for the year 1890. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 4th June, 1891, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau. . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 9. .

Correspondence relative to the Seizure of British Vessels in Behring Sea by United States Authori-
ties in 1886-91...... ... e e, Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Sc. Correspondence respecting the Seizure of the British schooner ** Araunah,” off Copper Island, by the
Russian Authorities, 1888-90...... ............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 10.

9. Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works, for the fiscal year 1889-90, on the works under his
control. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Sir Hector Langevin—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

2a.

4

e.

8q,

8},
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 11.

10. Annual Report of the Minister of Railways and Canals for the past fiscal year, from the 1st July, 1889,
to 30th June, 1890, on the works under his control. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th

May, 1891, by Sir John A. Macdonald.......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
10q. Canal Statistics for season of Navigation, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June,
1891, by Hon. M. Bowell........... .......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

10b. Reports, Railway Statistics of Canada, and capital, traffic and working expenditure of the railways
of the Dominion, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th June, 1891, by Hon. M.
Bowell. ..., ciiiiiiiiiiiiii i Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 12.

11. Report of the Superintendent of Insurance for the year ending 3lst December, 1890. Presented to
the House of Commons, 10th September, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
11q. Preliminary abstract of the business of Canadian Life Insurance Companies for the year ending 3lst
December, 1890, Presented to the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster—
Prunted for both distribution and sessional papers.
11b. Abstract of statements of Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year ending 31st December, 1890.
Presented to the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster—
Printed for both distribution and sesstonal papers.
1. Report of the Minister of Justice as to Penitentiaries in Canada, for the year ended 30th June, 1890.
Presented to the House of Commons, 6th May, 1891, by Sir John Thompson—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 18.

13. Annual Report of the Department of Militia and Defence of the dominion of Canada, for the year
ending 31st December, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1891, by Sir Adolphe
Caron......ovvt cvimer coivieiaien e e Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
14. Report of the Secretary of State. for the year ended 31st December, 1890. Presented to the House of
Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
14a. The Civil Service List of Canada, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by
Hon. J. A. Chapleau....... ....cccoovviennn... Printed for both distributionland sessional papers.
145. Report of the Board of Examiners for the civil service of Ca.na,da, for the year ended 31st December,
1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th May, 1891, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
14¢. Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery for the dominion of Canada, for the
year ending 30th June, 1890, with a partial report for services during six months ending 31st
December, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
15. Report of the Joint Librarians of Parliament on the state of the library of parlisment. Presented to
the House of Commons, 30th April, 1891, by Hon. Mr. Speaker. .Printed for sessional papers only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 14.

8. Report of the Postmaster General, for the year ended 30th June, 1890. Presented to the House o
Comutnons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart..Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

17. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year 1890, Presented to the House of
Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. E. Dewdney—
Printed for both distribution and sesswml papers.
17a. Summary Report of the Geological Survey Department, for the year 1890. Presented to the House
of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. E. Dewdney—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 15.

18. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 31st December, 1890. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. E. Dewdney. —
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

19.  Report of the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted Police, 1890. Presented to the House of
Commons, 18th May, 1891, by Sir John A. Macdonald.—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

#0. Statement of Governor General’s Warrants issued since the closing of Parliament, and of the expen-
diture made on them, in accordance with the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act. Presented
to the House of Commons, 4th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster. . ..Printed for distribution only.

®0q. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for a return showing details of the
following items of expenditure which appear in the statement of Governor General’s warrants issued
since the closing of the last parliament : July 10th, 1890, franchise act, $4,000 ; March 26th, 1891, .
Kingston graving dock, $6,006.14 ; August 30th, 1890, new dredging plant, $5,991.91 ; March 26th,
1891, breakwater at Southampton, $38,022.39; April 28th, 1891, cost of litigated matters,
$10,468.79 ; January 31st, 1891, seed grain to settlers in N.W.T., $2,298.18. Presented to the
House of Commons, 22nd May, 1891.—Mr. Mulock. . .............. Printed for distribution only.

®1. Statement of expenditure on account of Miscellaneous Unforeseen Expenses from 1st July, 1890, to
30th April, 1891. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th May, 1891, by Sir John A. Mac-
donald... ... o e e e Printed for distribution only.

2. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 6th May, 1891, for a return of the receipts and
expenditures in detail, chargeable to the consolidated fund, fr~= the 1st day of May, 1890, to 1st
day of May, 1891 ; and comparative statements from 1st July, 1889, to 1st May, 1890. Presented
to the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891.—Sir R. Cartwright.......Printed for distribution only.

2%q. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1891, for a return giving comparative
statement of receipts and expenditures from 1st July, 1890, to 10th May, 1891, and from 1st July, -
1889, to 10th May, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th May, 1891.—S:i» R. Curt-
WPTGRE. . e e e e i e Printed for distribution only.

RLp. Statement of receipts and expenditﬁres, in detail, chargeable to the consolidated fund, from 1st July,
1889, to 20th May, 1890 ; and like statement from 1st July, 1890, to 20th May, 1891, Presented to
the House of Commons, 22nd May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster... ... Printed for distribution only.

22c. Statement of receipts and expenditures, in detail, chargeable to the consohdated fund, from 1st July,
1889, to 31st May, 1890 ; and like statement from 1st July, 1890, to 31st May, 1891, Presented to
the House of Commons, 1st June, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster...... Printed for distribution only.

RR. Statement of receipts and expenditures, in detail, chargeable to the consolidated fund, from 1st July,

1889, to the 10th June, 1890 ; and like statement from 1st July, 1890, to 10th June, 1891. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 17th June, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster,—

Printed for distribution only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 16.

®8. Statement of all superannuations and retiring allowances in the civil service, giving the name and
rank of each person superannuated or vetired, his salary, age and length of service, his allowance
and cause of retirement, whether the vacancy has been filled by promotion or new appointment,
etc., for year ended 31st December, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th May, 1891,
by Hon. G. E. Foster .......... e eiranes e aeeeinn el Printed for sessional papers only.

R4. List of public officers to whom commissions have issued under chapter 19 of the Revised Statutes of
Canada, during the year 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th May, 1891, by Hon. J.
A Chapleatl. ... ooviiiiiiiit et e e e e Printed in No. 14.

®5. Return (tn part) under resolution of the House of C‘ommous, passed on the 20th February, 1882, on
all subjects affecting the Canadian Pacific Railway, respecting details as to: 1. Selection of the
route. 2. The progress of the work. 3. The selection or reservation of land. 4. The payment of
moneys. 5. The laying out of branches. 6. The progress thereon. 7. The rates of tolls for pas-
sengers and freight. 8. The particulars required by the Consolidated Railway Act and amend-
ments thereto, up to the end of the previous fiscal year. 9. Like particulars up to the latest
practicable date before the presentation of the return. 10. Copies of all onders in council and all

q
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correspondence between the government and the railway company, or any member or officer of

either, relating to the affairs of the company. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May,

1891, by Hon. E. Dewdney .............o .ot Printed for sessional papers only.

25a. List of lands sold by the Canadian Pacific Ra.ﬂwa,y Company, from the 1st October, 1889, to 1st Octo-
ber, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 27th May, 1891, by Hon. E. Dewdney—

) Printed for sessional papers only.

26. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th May, 1891, for an abstract copy or copies
of the cargoes carried by the steamships subsidized to run between the maritime provinces and the
West Indies on each voyage during the present year 1891 ; showing the character and value of the
cargoes carried and the port or ports of lading and discharge of such cargoes, with an abstract of
any other information given in such manifest ; and also showing number of trips made by the
steamers subsidized to carry on the steam service between the maritime provinces and the West
India ports, during the year 1890 ; the dates of such trips, amount paid for each trip, the person or
eompany carrying out said service for the present year, and whether any contract has been
entered into for the service this year, and what rates are being paid therefor and to whom. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 18th May, 1891— M. Davies. . Printed for sessional papers only.

R6a. Return to an address of the House of Commons, to his excellency the (Governor General of the 27th
May, 1891, for: 1. Copies of all correspondence and reports to council on the subject of payment
of subsidies to the Canadian, West Indian and South American Steamship Company, and to
Messrs. Pickford and Black, or either of them, and for copies of all contracts between the Cana- -
dian, West Indian and South American Steamship Company (Limited), and Messrs. Pickford and
Black, or either of them, and the government, for the steamn service between Canada and the
‘West Indies, entered into during the year 1890. 2. Also the names of persens or companies to
whom the subsides for the steam service between St. John, N.B., and the West Indies were paid,
previously to the execution of the contract by the Canadian, West Indian and South American
Steamship Company, and the amounts so paid, and dates. Also the amount paid, and dates when
paid to such steamship company, after entering into the contract. Presented to the House of
Commons, 13th July, 1891—Mr. Davies .... ...... .c.c.c.... Printed for sessional papers only.

27. Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated the 6th May, 1891, for a return giving the date
of the declarations in every riding during the recent general election. If adjournments or enlarge-
were made, in any case, from the time fixed at the nominations, stating where, when, how often
and for what reason, and giving the name and address of the returning officer where such occurred ;
also giving the name, occupation and post office address of every returning officer ; showing the
date df return by returning officer to the clerk of the crown in chancery, and the date of receipt of
each by the clerk of the crown in chancery ; together with the name of the electoral district and
the member elected thereto, and the date of publication of his return in the Canada Gazette. Also
copies of all letters written by or on behalf of any member of the government to any member elect
or to any other person or persons suggesting that any returning ofhcer be asked to delay making
his return to the clerk of the crown in chancery. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th May,
189L.—Mr, Landerkin. ...........  coiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiennins Printed for sessional papers only.

®7a. Return of the Seventh General Election for the House of Commons of Canada, by Samuel E. St. O;
Chaplean, Esq., Clerk of the Crown in Chancery for Canada. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 19th May, 1891, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau. . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

28. Detailed statement of all bonds and securities registered in the department of the secretary of state
of Canada, since last return, 1890, submitted to the parliament of Canada under section 23, chapter
19, of the Revised Statutes of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th May, 1891, by
Hon. J. A, Chapleau. ... ...... i i iiie i i i Not printed.

9. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 11th May, 1891, for a return showing a detailed
account of all expenses incurred in connection with an investigation held into the conduct of the-
indian agent at Sutton West. Presented to the House of Commons, 21st May, 1891.—Mr.
Mulock ... ..ot i i i et e e e Not printed.

20a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th ’VIa.y, 1891, for a list and prices paid for all
articles purchased for the indians of the counties of Guysboro’ and Antigonish, including in said
list any cattle purchased as well as farming implements, during the last three years. Also state-

. ment of prices realized fromr sale of cattle or other articles purchased for the use of the indians in
said counties. Also statement in funll of articles belonging to the department of the interior in
said counties for the use of the said indians. Presented to the House of Commons, 27th May, 1891.

—Mr. Fraser. ..... ... ....... 8 ................................. .. Vot printed.
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30, Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 11th
May, 1891, for a return of : 1. Copies of all correspondence and telegrams between the depart-
ment of militia and defence, or any officer thereof, and the commander of “C” battery, having
reference to sending a detachment of men under his command to Wellington on the 4th or 5th
day of August last, ostensibly to aid the civil authorities of that district. 2. Also copies of the
requisition served on the said commanding officer, invoking military aid at Wellington, together
with the names of the magistrates who signed the requisition, also the distance from Wellington
at which said magistrates reside. 3. Also copies of the reports of the commanding officer, confi-
dential or otherwise, as to the necessity there was for the military occupation of Wellington, and
for their continuance there, until they were recalled. 4. Also of all telegraphic or other corres-
pondence between the department of militia and defence, or any officer of the government of
Canada, and the provincial government of British Columbia, or with any officer thereof, if any,
or with any other person, in reference to sending the said military force to Wellington. 5. Also a
detailed statement of all moneys disbursed by the government of Canada, or by any department
thereof, either as regimental pay, or for active service allowance, either to the officers and men of
“C” battery, or both officers and men of the British Columbia Garrison Artillery, while on service
at Wellington, or for their maintenance while there, or for their transportation to and from
Wellington. 6. Also copies of all militia general and special orders issued by the militia depart-
ment for the regulation and guidance of the officers of ““C” battery since its establishment in,
British Columbia. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd May, 1891.—Mr, Gordon—

30 Not printed.

a. Return to an order of the House of Commons dated 3rd June, 1891, for a return of all reports from
the deputy adjutant general of military district No. 11 to the minister of militia, since January,
1888: 1. In regard to * C” battery barracks. 2. In regard to drill hall in Victoria. 3. In
regard to removal of magazine from Beacon Hill Park. 4. In regard to condition of guns, stores,
gun platforms, etc. Also copies of all correspondence between the deputy adjutant general of
military district No. 11 and the minister of militia, on the same subjects, since the same date.
Presented to the House of Commions, 1st July, 189L.—Mr. Prior......... ...... .. .. Not printed.

31. Return to an address of the House of Commons, to his excellency the Governor General, dated 14th
May, 1891, for a return of all petitions addressed to the government, praying for the analysis of
intoxicating liquor manufactured or offered for sale, by wholesale or retail, in the dominion of
Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd May, 1891.-—Mr. Curran. .....Not printed.

32, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th May, 1891, for copies of correspondence,
Papers, and all documents respecting steps taken by the government during last session, or since
that time, to prevent American cheese being shipped through or from Canadian ports, and branded
as Canadian ; also copies of the instructions now given to the proper authorities or preventive
officers on the subject. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th May, 1891.—Mr. Marshall—

a3 Not printed.

* Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 6th May, 1891, for a return in the form used in
the statements usually pubiished in the Gazette of the exports and imports from st day of May,
1890, to 1st day of May, 1891, distinguishing the products of Canada and those of other countries ;
and comparative statements from 1st July, 1889, to 1st May, 1890. Presented to the House of
Commons, 27th May, 1891.—Sir R. Cartwright. ................... Printed for distribution only.

3 . . . .
4. Copies of papers relating to the sale of the Carleton Branch Railway to'the city of St. John. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 29th May, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster ........... Not printed.

34, Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 18th
June, 1891, for copies of all orders in council, correspondence, papers, reports and documents in
relation to the returning of the debentures of the North Shore Railway Company. Presented to
the House of Commons, 10th August, 1891.—Mr. Langelier. . . ... Printed for sessional papers only.

34, Return to an order of the House of Comunons, dated 20th July, 1891, for all papers in reference to
the claim of Hugh Munroe, of River John, Pictou County, for damages for injuries caused to his
farm by the building of the Short Line Railway. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th
a4, August, 1891 —Mr. Fraser...... . .. .\ oo Not printed.
- Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 20th
July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence, petitions and memorials relating to the construction

of a line of railway by the Inverness and Richmond Railway Company (Limited), in the county

of Inverness, up to date. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th August, 1891. Mr. Cameron
TTHVEINESS) . . ov et iin e e e e Not printed.
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344d.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 20th
July, 1891, for copies of all petitions, letters or communications whatsoever received by the gov-
ernment from any of the municipalities of the county of Napierville, or from any person in the
said county, and of any answers made by the government thereto, up to the 5th March last, in
relation to the granting of a subsidy in aid of the construction of a railway between the village of
Napierville and the village of St. Rémi. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th August, 1891.
M. MONEE. o v s ies o e e et ieaae e eraeeeaeeeeeanas .- ... Not printed.

34¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated the 18th June, 1891, for a return showing:

35.

36.

36a.

360,

37.

38.

38a.

38b.

1. The names of the several railways in the dominion to which dominion aid has been granted,

except the Canadian Pacific main line 2. The province within which the said railway, in whole
or in part, is located, and if located in two or more provinces, the number of miles in each. 3. The
county or counties through which the said lines run in each province. 4. The amount of rhoney
paid to each up to the 1st January, 1891. 5. The railways built in the dominion by the dominion
since confederation, excepting the main line of the Intercolonial and main line of the Canadian
Pacific. 6. The province within which built. 7. The entire cost of each line built or assisted by
the dominion, in each province, including equipment. 8. The entire sum spent up to 1st January
last, on the construction of dominion roads in each province, excepting the Intercolonial main line
and Canadian Pacific main line. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th September, 1891.—
Mr. McMullen. ... .... e Printed for sessional papers only.

Report of the Commissioner, Dominion Police, for the year 1890, under Revised Statutes of Canada,
chapter 184, section 5. Presented to the House of Commons, lst June, 1691, by Sir John
B (T 1T et Eeetreaeaseienaans Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 12th
May, 1891, for copies of all orders in council, letters, correspondence, and documents of every
nature respecting the resignation of James Thurber, Esq., lieutenant-colonel of the sedentary
militia, in the county of Lotbiniére ; the appointment of his son, Mr. William Thurber, as light-
house keeper in the parish of St. Croix; and the refusal of the government to grant to the said
James Thurber, Esq., the amount claimed by him as his superannuation allowance. Presented to
the House of Commons, 1st June, 1891, —Mr. Rinfret. ....ccoovvvviii i ovnn.. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 11th May, 1891, for all correspondence and
papers relating to the resignations and re-appointments to office of the following parties : Samuel
Genest, John Cosgrove and Charles Leduc. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891.—
Mro Devlim. . ..ooovn oo e e R . Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th June, 1891, for a return of all letters, cor-
respondence and papers relating to the cause of the resignation and removal of William Laidlow,
of Arthur, from the North-West Mounted Police, and all papers and correspondence relating to
his application for compensation for the loss of his thumb while in the service ; also the award of
compensation paid him, if any. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th July, 1891.—M». Mc
Mullen. ... o i e e e Not printed

Retum to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th May, 1891, for a return showing how many
" yards of cotton sail duck have been imported at Halifax, Nova Scotia, from the 30th June, 188y,
to 30th June, 1890, and from 30th June, 1890, to 30th December, 1890, and the value of such im-
portation respectively. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd June, 1891.—Mr. White (Shel-
DUTIE) o i i e Not printed

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 17.

Papers relating to the extension and development of trade between the United States and the domin-
ion of Canada, including the colony of Newfoundland. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd
June, 1891, by Sir John Thompson.............. Printed for both distribution and sessionul papers.

Further papers relating to the extension and development of trade between the United States and
dominion of Canada, including the colony of Newfoundland. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 22nd June, 1891, by Sir John Thompson .Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.

Copy of a report of the honourable the privy council of the 4th November, 1890, relative to the proposal
made by the government of Canada to the governors of British West India Islands and of British
Guiana for the extension of trade, together with correspondence, etc., referring to the same sub-
ject. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th July, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster-—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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38c.

39.

39¢.

395,

39c.

*39d.

30e,

397,

40q,

40c,

40d.

Correspondence and telegrams respecting the Spanish American Treaty. Presented to the House of
Commons, 22nd September, 1891, by Hon. G. E. Foster. . .... . ... Printed for sessional papers only.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for copies of the report of the
enquiry held by J. B. Caouette, in 1890, respecting the abstraction, from the post office at Isle
Verte, of a newspaper addressed to a resident of that parish ; of all letters from the post office
department to the said Caouette, and replies thereto, and of any report made by the said
Caouette ; also of all official correspondence in relation to the said enquiry. Presented to the
House of Commons, 16th June, 1891, —M7. AMY0t. ..\ ..\ oviivrieie i eeernneenns Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for copies of all letters, peti-
tions and memorials relating to and praying for the construction of a suitable post office in the
town of Buckingham, county of Ottawa. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th June, 1891.
M DeBlin .. i e e e e e s Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
May, 1891, for copies of all petitions, memorials, reports and orders in council in reference to the
establishment of a post office at Campbellton, in the county of Inverness, Nova Scotia. Presented
to the House of Commons, 19th June, 1891.— M7, Laurier............ooovee covennns Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th May, 1891, for a return showing the contin-
gent expenses of the several salaried postmasters of the dominion for the fiscal years 1888, 1889

_and 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th July, 1891.—Mr. McMullen—
Printed for sesstonal papers only.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1891, for a return showing the
amount deposited in each of the post office and dominion savings banks in the dominion on the 30th-
June, 1891. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th August, 1891.—Mr. McMullen—

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th July, 1891, for copies of correspondence
tetween the proprietor or proprietors of the newspaper Le Canada, published at Ottawa, and any
member of the government ; also of any correspondence between any member of the govern-
ment and any other perron in relation to the suspension of the publication in the said newspaper .
Le Canada, of the table showing the arrival and departure of mails at the Ottawa post office.
Presented to the House of Commons, 12th August, 1891.—M7. Beausoleil. ..... ...Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for copies of all letters, corres-
pondence and petitions relating to the "establishment of a post office in the township of Lowe,
county of Ottawa ; also petitions, memorials and documents complaining of the mail service
between Ste. Emile de Suffolk and St. André Avelin, in the county of Ottawa. Presented to the
House of Commons, 17th August, 1891.—M». Devlin.......... .o.oove vur einn. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th May, 1891, for copies of the tenders asked
for to construct a graving dock at Kingston ; the tenders received ; the reports and calculations
made by the engineers of the department of public works made and based on these fenders ; the
contract which has been entered into ; the reports of the engineers which may have been made on:
the carrying out of the works ; or the changes which may have been made in them ; and also a
statement of the sums paid out to the contractors up to date. Presented to the House of Com-

" mons, 4th June, 1891.—M», Guay. ... ... e . e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th July, 1891, for copies of the tenders received
and accepted for the construction of a caisson in connection with the Esquimalt graving dock ; the:
report of Mr. H. F. Perley in this connection ; and all other correspondence referring to this con-

tract. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th August, 1891.—Mr. Tarte......... Not printed..
. Papers respecting the Kingston graving dock. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th July,
1841, by Sir Hector Langevin....... eeeeaena. e e s e e Not printed..

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated st
July, 1891, for : 1. Copy of original plan and also of alteration made to Kingston dry dock,.
showing the additional excavations, crib work, extra masonry and additional iron works in caissons,.
together with the quantities of each class of extra work paid or undertaken to be paid for, and
the rates of payment for the said extra work. 2. Copy of the order in council, dated 5th July,
1890, concerning the contract for the building of said dry dock. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 19th August, 1891 —Mr. Amyot......... e e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8rd August, 1891, for copies of all petitions,
correspondence, reports of surveys and any Ioiher documents relating to the construction of a dry
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dock at the town of Amherstburg. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th August, 1891.—
Mro AUGIV . ..ot e i et e e e e e e Not printed.”

41. Return to an order of the Honse of Commons, dated 14th May, 1891, for a return giving the report
of Mr, J. R. Arnoldi, engineer of the mechanical depaxrtment of public works, to the special
committee on ballot boxes last session. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891, —
Mr. Landerkin . .. ..o it e e e Printed for sessional papers only.

42. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 11th May, 1891, for a return of all papers,
correspondence and other documents relating to the dredging on the bar of the Kaministiquia
River, Thunder Bay, since July, 1890, including the advertisement, tenders received and contract
for such dredging ; also engineer’s report to the department, showing what progress has been made
in the work up to the 1st of December last ; also statement showing the amounts paid on account
of such work,, te whom paid, dates and amounts of such payments. Presented to the House of
Comamons, 4th June, 1891.—Mr. Campbell .. .. ..........c.ccco.... e e Not printed.

43. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th May, 1891, for copy of the report of H. F.
Perley, Esq., chief engineer of the public works department, respecting the causes of the flooding
by the waters of the Richelieu River, of the lands of the riparian owners, in the counties of Iber-
ville, St. John and Missisquoi. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891, —Mr.
Béchard. . .... : C ke e e e e e e e . Not printed.

43¢, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th June, 1891, for copies of all correspondence,
letters, reports and documents of every description, respecting the deepening of the river and the |
lifting and removal of boulders from the batture of St. Jean Deschaillons. Presented to the
House of Commons, 22nd July, 1891.—Mr. Rinfret.... .. .o vovirivnnnn. e Not printed.

43b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th July, 1891, for copies of reports of engineers
as to improvements in the navigation of the Grand River, Presented to the House of Commons,
4th August, 1891.—Mr. MONLAGUE. . ...\ o it r et eiein o eaaas aann Not printed.

43¢. Supplementary return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 21st
January, 1890, for copies of all reports and other communications in reference to the deposit of
sawdust, slabs and other offensive material in the Ottawa and other rivers of the dominion,
together with a letter from the deputy minister of fisheries relative thereto. Presented to the
Senate, 19th August, 1891.—Hon. Mr. Clemow. .... .... ..... Printed for sessional papers only.
43d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd August, 1891, for copies of petitions, cor.
respondence, etc., relating to reconstruction, by private parties, of the Caledonia Dam, across the

Grand River. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th September, 1891.—Mr. Montague—
Not printed.
44. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1891, for copies of all letters, com-
munications, and reports in the possession of the government, relating to the fixing of a standard
of time and the legalization thereof. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891.—M7.
Kirkpatrick . e viveve oo . Printed for both dist ribution and sessional papers.

45. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th May, 1891, for copies of all letters and
correspondence between the government or any member thereof, or any public department, and
Mr. Solyme Forgues, of St. Michel de Bellechasse, returning officer, in relation to the last dominion
election in the electoral district of Bellechasse. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June,
18IL—Mr. AMYOL.. . e e e Not printed.
46. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for a return showing what
amount of money was expended in repairing wharf at Big Bay, in the township of Keppel, North
Grey, during the summer of 1890; whether the work was let by tender or private contract ; who
performed the work ; who acted as inspector, and what compensation did the inspector receive.
Presented to the House of Commons, 4th June, 1891.—Mvr. Somerville....... ........ Not printed-

47. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for a return showing the number
of bushels of potatoes exported from Canada from 1st October, 1890, to 1st May, 1891, and the

. place to which exported. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th June, .1891,—Mr. McMullen—
Printed for sessional papers only.

48. Return to an order of the House of Comanons, dated 3rd June, 1891, for a return of all correspondence
between all persons and the department of marine and fisheries, recommending or with reference

to a reward given to Captain Peterson of the American schooner  Seigfried,” for his services in
rescuing the captain and crew of the schooner ¢ Blizzard,” of Lunenburg, in October last. Pre-

sented to the House of Commons, 16th J un?21891.——1t!r. Flint......... ..cccoevnnnnn Not printed.
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49. Return tc an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd June, 1891, for correspondence with .the
department of marine respecting presentation of binocular glasses to the volunteers rescuing the
crew of the barqueé *“ Medmerly,” lost on Ray’s Island, Pictou County, in November last past,
Presented to the House of Commons, 16th June, 1891.—Mr. Fraser..... .......... . Not printed.

50. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for copy of all correspondence,
papérs and reports, in the possession of the government, relating to the locality for holding the
camp of militia district No. 1, for the years 1890 and 1891. Presented to the House of Commons,
16th June, 1891.—Mr. HYyman. ... ... ... o ceuveinii e iiiiiie e ie ciieaaaas . Not printed.

31. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 5th
May, 1891, for copies of all correspondence, petitions, memorials and any other documents submit-
ted to the privy council, in connection with the abolition of the official use of the French language
in the province of Manitoba by the legislature of that province ; also copies of reports to, or orders
in council thereon ; also copies of the act or acts relating thereto. Presented to the House of
Commons, 18th June, 1891.—Mr. LaRiviére. . .... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers,

52. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 5th
May, 1891, for copies of the order in council of date the 10th May, 1888, gragting a subsidy of
$12,500 per annum to Mr. Julien Chabot, for the use of the steamboat ‘‘ Admiral,” between Dal-
housie and Gaspé, in connection with the Intercolonial Railway ; and also of all other orders in
council which may have been passed afterwards in respect to the same steamboat. Presented to
the House of Commons, 19th June, 1831—Mr. Guay...... ... covviiiiiiiiinanin.. Not printed.

52¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th May, 1891, for copies of the contract with
the owners or owner, or the party in possession of the steamboat ¢‘ Admiral,” made by the gov-
ernment in consequence of an order in council bearing date the 10th May, 1888 ; also of the con-
tracts, deeds or transfers which may have been executed or notified to the government, since the
said date of the 10th of May, 1888 ; also a statement of the sums paid out for the use of the said
steamboat ; the names of the persons to whom these sums have been paid ; and the date of the
payments and of the rceceipts which have been given therefor. Presented to the House of Coma-
mons, 24th June, 1891.—-M7, GUAY.... ..ooriiriiiiiiit i iae e Not printed.

32b. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 13th
July, 1891, for copies of any order or orders in council, adopted between the years 1883 and 1888,
in relation to the steamer ‘‘ Admiral ” and the service performed by the said steamer between Dal-
housie and Gaspé or other points, in connection with the Intercolonial Railway. Presented to
the House of Commons, 10th August, 1891.—Mr, Tarte......... ..o veenn. Not printed.

52¢. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 13th
July, 1891, for copies of the contract or contracts between the owners or owner or person in pos-
session of the steamer ‘‘ Admiral ” and the government, between the years 1883 and 1888 ; also
copies of all deeds of transfer, etc., filed with the government, in respect of the said steamer ; also
a statement of all sums paid during the said period of time for the service of the said steamer,
with the names of the persons to whom the said sumns were paid and the dates of such payments.
Presented to the House of Commons, 10th August, 1891.—Mr. Tarte...... ......... Not printed.

53. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 6th May, 1891, for a return showing the cost of
construction of the several elevators built on the Intercolonial Railway and branches; showing
where erected and the capacity of each ; the date of erection, and the quantity of grain that
passed through each of theny, each year, since their completion. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 19th June, 1891.~-Mr. McMullen. ............ocoove v e eeeeeeno.. vue....Not printed.

53«. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th May, 1891, for copies of all letters, docu-
ments, etc., between the officials of the Intercolonial Railway at Moncton and the department of
railways in relation to the accident at St. Joseph de Lévis, on the 18th December, 1890. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 19th June, 1891.-—Mr. Carroll..... e Not printed.

535, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for all correspondence, tele-
grams, letters, reports and other papers relating to the proposed ‘‘additional property accom:-
modation ” of Intercolonial Railway at St. John, N.B. Presented to the House of Commons,
12th August, 1891 —Mr. DAvies. .. .. cv.viviiiiit toeniirt tivaareres oaie e Not printed.

530. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th July, 1891, for copies of all paper writings,
documents, depositions, etc., respecting or in connection with the enquiry held at St. Flavie, on
the line of the Intercolomal Rallwa.y, into the conduct of Mr. Hormidas Ouillet, superintendent

13
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of the workshops of the said Tntercolonial Railway, as well as in relation to any other employees.
Presented to the House of Commons, 26th September, 1891.—Mr. Choquette. ... ...... Not printed.

54. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 11th May, 1891, for : 1. A statement of all fish-
ing licenses granted in 1890, in the following ‘counties : Berthier, Maskinongé, St. Maurice,
Champlain, Nicolet, Yamaska and Richelieu, showing the names of those who obtained such
licenses, the amount paid by each of them and the date of each payment. 2. A statement of the
quantity and value of the several kinds of fish taken by the said license-holders, according to the
reports of the fishery overseers for the said counties. 3. Copies of all instructions sent to the
fishery overseers of the said several counties in 1890 and 1891, up to date. 4. Copjes of all letters,
petitions and complaints received in relation to this subject during the years 1890 and 1891, up
to this date, and of all replies made thereto. 5. For a statement of the salaries of vhe fishery
overseers of the said counties, and of all other costs and expenditure incurred by the governmsnt
in connection with the fisheries of the counties aforesaid, during the year 1890. Presented to the
House of Commons, 22nd June, 1891.......... e e e i Not printed.

54¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd June, 1891, for a return showing the names
of all pergons in the county of Queen’s, Nova Scotia, to whom fishing bounties have been paid
during the last five years, with the amount paid each, and the dates of payment ; the amount still
unpaid, with the names of the persons to whom such bounties are still due. Presented to the
House of Commons, 23rd June, 1891.—Mr. Forbes. ... .......ccovurnirnns ounennnn. Not printed.

4b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for a return of the names of all
persons in the county of Guysboro’ to whom fishing bounties have been paid during the last three

years, with the amount paid each, the amount still unpaid with the names of the persons to whom

such bounties are still due. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd June, 1891.—Mr. Fraser—

Not printed.

B4c. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for a return showing the amount
paid for the supplies required by the crews of the several government vessels engaged in the fishery
protection service, in the province of Ontario, for the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1890, together
with the names of parties from whom purchases were made, and the prices paid. Presented to the
House of Commons, 24th June, 1891.—M~r, Somerville. .. .......covvuinneranennnn.. Not printed.

54d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd June, 1891, for a return of papers, corres-
pondence, reports and other documents in the possession of the government relating to the subject
of the herring fisheries of the Bay of Fundy and its adjacent waters during the past year, includ-
ing the report of the conference of fishery officers held at Ottawa on the subject. Presented to the
House of Commons, 30th June, 1891.—Mr. Bowers. ... .......ovveerenenneen, + ... Not printed.

54¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th May, 1891, for a return of the costs and
expenses of adjusting the amounts claimed for fishery bounties and of preparing and distributing
the fishery bounty cheques in each year since 1883, and also the names of the persons authorized to
distribute the bounty cheques in the province of Nova Scotia during the years 1889, 1890 and 1891
Presented to the House of Commons, 16th July, 1891.—Mr. Flint—
: Printed for sessional papers only.
B4 f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th May, 1891, for a return giving the names
of all persons in the county of Guysboro’ fined for violation of the fishery laws, since the 1st day
of January, 1890 ; the amount of each fine and costs ; the sum collected of each ; the names of the
parties whose fines have been remitted, with the reason for such remission ; the names of parties in
said county against whom fines are still outstanding, with the amount of each and costs. Presented
to the House of Commons, 22nd June, 1891.—Mr. Fraser........... ........ e Not printed.

549. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 15th
May, 1891, for a return of all papers, letters and documents in any way whatever relatmg to the
dispensing with the services of J. R. Graham, of Fenelon Falls, as fishery inspector or overseer
within the county of Victoria, and of all communications with or representations to the govern-
ment, or any member thereof, or any officer or clerk in the department of marine and fisheries,
relating to the said J. R. Graham and the performance of his duties prior to dispensing with his
services ; and of all new rules or regulations (if any) for the appointment of fishery inspectors imr
said county and the performance of their duties. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd August,
I 7 . T NPT Not printed.

H4h. Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 30th- April, 1890,
for copies of all departmental orders relating to the fisheries of the counties of Richelieu and Ber-
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thier, and a copy of all correspondence had since 1887 between the department of fisheries and the
fishery officers of the said counties on this subject. Presented to the Senate, 14th July, 1891.— Hon.
Mr. GUévrenont...........ouveinrieeraneennnn . Not printed.

54:. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence

connected with the appointment of George Boisvert as fishery officer over that portion of the River
St. Lawrence along the front of the county of Nicolet. Also for copies of all correspondence con-
nected with the issuing of fishing licenses for the county of Nicolet between Fabien Boisvert, at
that time member of the House of Commons of Canada, or any other persons, and the government.
Presented to the House of Commons, le,t’ August, 1891.—Mr. Leduc. . . ... e Not printed.

35. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for a return for the years 1889

56.

57.

B8,

39.

60.

and 1890 of all reports from or correspondence with the superintendent of the Prince Edward
Island Railway, with respect to the condition of the road-bed or the rails of such railway, together
with any reports or representations made with respect to such road-bed or rails by any of the track
masters or other officers of said road. 2. Showing what portion in mileage of such road-bed has
been relaid with steel rails since the completion of such road. Presented to the House of Comnmons,
2nd July, 189L.—Mr. Daries... . ... oot Not printed.

Statement of the affairs of the British Canadian Loan and Investment Company, for the year ended

31st December, 1890; also a list of shareholders on 31st December, 1890. Presented to the Senate,
4th May, 1891, by the Hon. the Speaker................co.oooviiiis cieaiins ... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th May, 1891, for a return showing the quan-

tities and kinds of timber and sawlogs cut annually in the lately disputed territory, in the province
of Ontario, under the authority of timber licenses issued by the government of Canada ; the names
of such licensees ; and showing also how the dues were imposed, and the amount per thousand
feet, board measure, realized by the government of Canada from each person or firm so licensed in
each year from 1875 to 1887, inclusive; or what royalty or other revenue was received by the
government from licensees aforesaid on such quantities cut or sold. Presented to the House
of Commons, 6th July, 1891.—Mr. Barron.... ................. Printed for sessional papers only.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th May, 1891, for a return giving the date at

which the steamer *Stanley ” commenced running between Prince Edward Island and the main-
land in the fall of 1890, how many t2ips made, date of ‘each trip, the number of passengers and
the amount of freight taken to and from Prince Edward Island ; the amount of money collected
on account of passengers and the amount for freight ; also the expenses of working said steamer
during the winter of 1891, and the date at which said steamer stopped running from Prince
Edward Island to the mainland ; together with the report of the deputy minister, dated 5th
March, 1891, touching this steamer, and all correspondence, telegrams and representations made to
the marine and post office departments tonching the mail and steamboat service between the
island and the mainland. Presented to the House of Commons, 13th July, 1891.—Myr. Perry—

Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 8th

July, 1891, for copies of all petitions, correspondence and documents whatsoever, respecting the
grant of a'subsidy to the Quebec Oriental Railway. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th
July, 1891.—Mr. Vaillancourt. . ....... e et e e e, Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, da.ted 1st July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence,

letters or telegrams addressed to the auditor general with reference to the payment of accounts as
rendered to the auditor general by the returning officer of the electoral district of the east riding
of Elgin; also ther names and post office addresses of the returning officer, deputy returning
officers, poll clerks and constables for the electoral district of the east riding of Elgin; also the
respective amounts as claimed by each; the amount actually paid to each up to date, including
amount of balance, if any, as rendered by the returning officer in his original account to the
auditor general. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th July, 1891.—Mr. Ingram—

Not printed.

-80q. Return to an address of the House of Commons, to his excellency the Governor General, dated 27th

July, 1891, for copy of all correspondence between John A. Macdonald, M. P. (Victoria, N, S.),

or any other parties in the county of Victoria, N. 8., and the government, or any department or

official of the government, previous to the late general elections, in reference to the appointment

of a returning officer at said elections for said county. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd

Avgust, 1891.—Mr. Flint...... .......coociviniinas, R Not printed.
15
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81. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th June, 1891, for copy of the report of
Collingwood Schreiber, Esq., upon survey made by him of the river St. Lawrence immediately
opposite and in the vicinity of the city of Quebec, for the purpose of ascertaining whether it was
possible to build a railway bridge there. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th July, 1891.
—Mr, Laurier. . .. ... ... .. . 0 ciiee ol Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

62. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 11th
May, 1891, for all correspondence between any department of the government and H. E. Hartley,
late lockmaster on the Carillon and Grenville Canal, in reference to his retirement from the civil
service, and any report to council or order in council upon the same subject, together with all
papers connected with the dismissal of Mr. Hartley. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th
June, 1891, — Mr. CRIUSEE. . oo it i vine cee e iaee e eaen Not printed.

62a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for a copy of the report of Thos.
Monro, government engineer, upon the Manchester Ship Canal. Presented to the House of
Commons, 21st July, 1891.—Mr. Mulock. .. ... . Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

62b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th May, 1891, for copies of all letters, corres-
pondence, documents and papers showing the number of extra or additional men employed on the
old and new Welland Canal, between the 10th day of February, 1891, and the 7th day of March,
1891 ; the names of such men, the work required to be done, and the amount of money paid to
each man. Presented to the House of Commons, 28th July, 1891.—Mr. German. .. .Not printed.

62¢. Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor (General, dated 17th June, 1891,
for a statement and account showing the amount of money received and taken in excess of what
was just and proper by William Ellis, superintendent of the Welland Canal, if any, from the 29th
day of December, 1879, until the 11th day of September,” 1889; also a statement showing the
amount of money paid back by Mr. Ellis, if any, and date of payments, if any. Further, a copy
of the bond given as security by Mr. Ellis, if any, to secure the payment of the money taken in
excess. Presented to the Senate, 20th July, 1891.—Hon. Mr. McCallum..... . ..... Not printed.

62d. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 17th
June, 1891, for copies of all petitions, letters and communications from the city of St. Catharines,
and other municipalities on the Welland Canal, or from any persons or corporations, for the
privilege of using surplus water from said canal for manufacturing or other purposes ; and of the
reports of engineers cf canals, thereon, and the replies of the government to all such applications.
Presented to the House of Commons, 12th August, 1891,—aMr. Gibson.. ......c...... Not printed.

6%¢. Return to order of the House of Commons, dated 13th July, 1891, for : 1. Copies of the specifications
prepared by the government and which formed the basis of the call for tenders for the work of
constructing a drain from Lachine to Cote St. Paul, along the Lachine Canal. 2. Copies of all
tenders filed for the said work, and of the reports of the officers of the department of railways and
canals thereupon. 3. Copies of the report awarding the contract for the said work, and of the said
contract. Presented to the House of Commons, 12th August, 1891.—Mr. Préfontaine. . Not printed.

62f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for copies of all reports of en-
gineers respecting the proposed Soulanges Canal, showing the number of sections into which the
work is to be divided, the length of each section, the quantities of the several classes of work in
each section, and detailed estimates of the cost of each section ; the whole to be accompanied with
a continuous tracing or plan and profile of the whole line showing the several sections and the
structures of each section. Presented to the Hcuse of Commons, 12th August, 1891.—Mr.
MOUSSEAU . . .. vvt o ot i et e e [ Not printed.

629. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for a statement showing all
expenditure, and a return of all reports and plans of government engineers, if any, in connection
with the Soulanges Canal, from 1873 to 1889, exclusively, and from 1889, inclusively, to June,
1890 ; also a return of all plans and specifications made by engineers and completed by them, at the
said date, June, 1890, in relation to the said Soulanges Canal. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 12th August, 1891. —Mr. Moussecu. ... ... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

62%. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
May, 1891, for copies of all tenders, both first and second calls, for sections one, two and three
respectively, of the enlargement of the Rapide Plat or Morrisburg Canal, a division of the St.
Lawrence Canals, the return to comprise the quantities of the several items in the schedule of
prices on which the tenders were computed, and the aggregate of each tender. Also copies of all
correspondence, orders in council, reports of engineers relating to the tenders, or contracts, lor
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2.

83.

63a,

630

64.

works, or as to changes in location or of designs, and all estimates in detail of the cost of said
works and the reason for rejecting the first batch of tenders. Presented to the House of Commons,
21st August, 1891 —Mr. Murray. . ..... . oot i e e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd June, 1891, for a return of all letters and
memorials complaining of the high water in the Rideau Canal between Kingston and Jones’ Falls ;
copies of letters from Colonel By and others, showing the depth of water allowed for vessels navi-
gating the canal ; a statement showing the average depth of water in the canal for the first forty
years after construction, and for the last ten years; also for copies of plans and reports of
engineers engaged on the survey of the Kingston Mills Level, showing the estimate of cost of
lowering the water and the quantity of land to be reclaimed if the water is lowered. Presented to
the House of Commons, 26th September, 1891.—Mr. Kirkpatrick... . ... e e Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 5th

May, 1891, for copies of all corresponden ce, petitions, memorials, briefs and factums, and of any
other documents submitted to the privy council in connection with the abolition of separate schools
in the province of Manitoba by the legislature of that province; also copies of reports to, and
orders in council thereon ; also copies of any act or acts of said legislature abolishing said separate
schools or modifying in any way the system existing prior to 1890. Presented to the House of
Commions, 26th July, 1891.—Mr. LaRiviére. .. ... Printed for both distribution and scssional papers.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 5th
May, 1891, for a copy of all petitions presented to his excellency with reference to the school acts
of Manitoba ; and all memorials, reports, orders in council and correspondence in connection with
the same. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th August, 1891.—Mr. Derlin. . ... Not printed.

. Supplementary return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor

General, dated 5th May, 1891, for copies of all correspondence, petitions, memorials, briefs and
factums, and of any other documents submitted to the privy council in connection with the abo-
lition of separate schools in the provinee of Manitoba by the legislature of that province ; also copies
of reports to, and orders in council thereon; also copies of any act or acts of said legislature
"abolishing said separate schools or modifying in any way the system existing prior to 1890.

Presented to the House of Commons, 4th September, 1891.—Mr. LaRiriére-—
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th July, 1891, for copies of the petition of
right presented to the minister of justice for his fiaz by Joseph Desmarteau for improvements
alleged to have been made by him on a ‘“piece of land forming part of the property heretofore
known as Logan’s Farm, and being a portion of the lot number eleven hundred and thirty-six
(1136) of the official plan and book of reference of the St. Mary’s Ward, in the city of Montreal,
measuring one hundred and fifty-six feet in width by a depth of four hundred and fifty-two (452)
feet on the south-west side, and four hundred and eighty-seven (487) feet on the north-east side,
English measure, and more or less, and being bounded on the north-east side by the highway
known as Papineau Road, on the south-west side by a portion of the said lot number eleven
hundred and thirty-six (1136), on the south-east by the lot number eleven hundred (1100) of
said plan and book of reference, and on the north-west by Sherbrooke Street, being another
portion of the said lot eleven hundred and thirty-six ;” of the decision of the minister of
justice ; and of all correspondence on the same. .Presented to the House of Commons, 21st July,
1891 —M7. LaUPIer. . ..ot vt it ch et e e e e Not printed.

83, Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 12th May, 1890, for

[ 1,78

a statement showing the expenses incurred by the inspector of penitentiaries in his visits, ordinary
or extraordinary, to St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary during the last ten years, as well as his
personal expenses for each day of such visits, as those occasioned on each day of such visits by his
travelling from Montreal to St. Vincent de Paul, and vice versa, for horses, servants, and their
keep and lodging. Presented to the Senate, 18th June, 1891.— Hon. Mr. Bellerose. . .. Not printed.

Supplementary return »e St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary. Presented to the Senate, 19th June,
1891, by Hon. Mr. Abbott. . ... . ... i e i e Not printed.

855, Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 30th July, 1891,

for a detailed cépy of accepted tender, giving estimated quantity, price per unit, and amount of
all drugs and medicines to be supplied the British Columbia Penitentiary by McPherson &
Thompson, of New Westminster, B.C., for the year ending 30th June, 1892. Presented to the
genabe, 12th August, 1891.—Hon. Mr. Mclniu;; ( Victoria, B.C.)..... ......... ... Not printed.
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66,

67.

68.

69.

70,

71.

.

73.

73a.

74.

?8.

Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 23rd June, 1891,
for copies of all correspondence between the department of justice and the judges in Canada
charged with judicial functions in criminal matters as well as the attorney general of each province,
respecting the expediency of abolishing the functions of the grand jury in relation to the adminis-
tration of criminal justice. Presented to the Senate, 8th July, 1891.—Hon. Mr. Gowan—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Statement of amounts paid for claims for bounty on pig iron manufactured in the dominion ; show-
ing quantities claimed upon and names of claimants, as well as amount paid in each case.
Presented to the House of Commons, 28th July, 1891, by Hon. Mr. Bowell-—

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 1st
July, 1891, for a statement showing the amount of dominion notes in circulation on 31st May,
1891, and amount of gold and guaranteed debentures held in security on said date for redemption
of said notes. Also statement showing the proportion of such gold reserve held by the minister of
finance and receiver-general, and the proportion thereof held by any chartered banks for such
redemption. Also statement showing the arrangements made with such banks, under which they
hold such gold reserve. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th July, 1891.—Mr. Mulock—

Not printed.

Departmental report on charges preferred against the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted
Police. Presented to the House of Commons, 30th July, 1891, by Sir John Thompson—

Printed for sessional papers only.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th May, 1891, for copies of all correspondence
since 1st July, 1890, from the New Glasgow board of trade and other boards or persons, respecting
the through train from Sydney, C.B, to Oxford, Cumberland County, vi¢ the Short Line Rail-
way. Also copies of all correspondence during said time from any person or persons, asking for
better railway accommodation between Pictou and New Glasgow, to and from Halifax. Presented

" to the House of Commons, 31st July, 1891.—Mr. Praser. ...........ccciein vounn. Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for copies of all tenders for the
construction of the Annapolis public buildings ; a copy,of the contract entered into with the Gov-
ernment for the construction of the same; a copy of the conveyance to the Queen of the land upon
which the saine are erected ; a statement of all amounts paid to the contractor on account of the
work, with dates of payment. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th August, 1891.—Mr. Lister—

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence
and all documents, or other information in the possession of the Government, relating to entire
horses stationed at the central experimental farm, or at any other of the experimental farms in the
dominion of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 4th August, 1891. —Mr. McMillan—

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence
and orders relative to the dismissal of William Saunders and William Muttart, section foremen
of the Prince Edward Island Railway, in March or April last. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 10th August, 1891, -—~Mr, Perty......ccvuuuiiiniinn vr civennarnerrieniaaans Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th July, 1891, for a return of all correspon-
dence, letters or papers in any way connected with the dismissal, in June, 1884, of one Samuel
Johnston, from his position as a preventive officer, in her majesty’s customs, for the station from
Clifton to Dunnville. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd September, 1891.— M7, German—

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for a return showing : 1. Copies
of all reports and correspondence relating to the permit system, and the administration thereof ;
copies of all regulations under which liquor is brought into the North-West Territories and sold
there ; also copies of all memorials addressed to the government relating to the present system and
the sale of liquors, and the replies to the same. 2. Copies of orders or regulations relating to the
sale of liquor on passenger trains in the North-West Territories, and within' the limits of Banff
Park, and statement of kinds and quantities of liquor so sold. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 12th August, 189L.—Mr, Watson............. ... oo . . Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th June, 1891, for copies of the pay-roll of the
last military camp at Sorel and St. John’s, P.Q. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th
August, 1801, —Mr. LEDINeC. ... oo eete e e Not printed.
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78q. Statement showing names of tenderers, names of contractors and contract prices of military clothing
for 1891-92. Presented to the House of Commons, 21st August, 1891, by Sir Adolphe Caron—
Printed for sessional papers only.

76. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th June, 1891, for copies of all correspondence
between the minister of customs and the collector of customs at Kootenay Lake, and between the
minister of customs and any other person, relating to the admission of mining machinery into the
Kootenay Lake district free of duty. Also a copy of instructions from the minister of customs to
the collector of customs on Kootenay River, referring to the free admission of mining machinery.
Presented to the House of Commons, 20th August, 1891.—Mr. Mara. ............... Not printed.

7%. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence,
reports, paper writings and documents respecting the seizure and sale of the schooner * Marie
Eliza,” in 1887, by the collector of customs at Rimouski. Presented to the House of Commons,
20th August, 1891.—Mr. Langelier..... .. ..o .. i Not printed,

78, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for a return showing:—1. The
names of all permanent clerks in the department of public works, their duties and annual salaries.
2. Names of all extra clerks in the said department, their salaries, and the kind of work per-
formed ; also copies of their civil service examination certificates. 3. The names of all persons
doing extra work outside of the building, and the nature of work, giving the names of ladies and’
gentlemen separately. 4. The names of mechanics or 6thers employed in the government work-
shops at Ottawa. 5. The names of all messengers employed in the said department, either perma-
nent or temporary. 6. The number and names of all labourers employed by the said department
since January last, in and around the buildings under government control at Ottawa, including
Rideau Hall, stating the kind of work performed and wages paid. Presented to the House of
Commons, 218t August, 1891.—Mr, McMullén. . ............ ......... .o cee venl Not printed.

79. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 13th J u]y, 1891, for: 1. Copies of all claims pre-
sented to the government since 1880, by Mr. Joseph Antoine Maurice, merchant, of the village of
Chambly Basin, and Dame Julie Fournier, his wife, for losses suffered by them in reference to
lands purchased by them from the government in 1875. 2. Copies of all correspondence and letters
addressed to any department of the government by any person or persons, in relation to said mat-
ter. 3. Copies of all correspondence between any of the said departments, or between any De-
partment and the claimants, or any persons acting for them or in theirinterests, in relation to such
claims. 4. Copies of the order of reference made by government referring the said claims to
Joseph Simard, Esq., then dominion arbitrator, and of his award. 5. Copies of correspondence
following the said award. 6. Copies of the opinions given on the subject by the honourable the
minister of public works, and of the opinion of the honourable the minister of justice. Presented to
the House of Commons, 21st August, 1841.—Mr. Préfontaine...... ..... .......... Not printed.

80. Return to an address of the House of Commens to his excellency the Governor General, dated 18th
Jiine, 1891, for copies of order in council, correspondence, reports, statement of claims, receipts
or accounts with or made by Dr. Walker, or on his behalf, or with or by any other person respecting
the Dundas and Waterloo macadamized road, since the close of the session of 1889. Presented to
the House of Commons, 24th August, 1891.—M7, Bain... ... .....cooviuunreennnn.. Not printed.

81. Return to an address of the House of Commons to his excellency the Governor General, dated 3rd
June, 1891, for copies of all correspondence between the imperial government and the government of
Canada, on the subject of the copyright laws of Canada, and all other papers relating thereto, not
already brought down. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th August, 1891.—M». Edgar—

Not printed.

82. Third census of Canada—statement of population—compared with preceding censuses, 1891. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 26th August, 1891, by Hon. J, Haggart—
Printed for distribution only.

824, Census of Canada, 1891—electoral divisions—statement of population by districts. Also census
bulletin No. 1, and statements of population of cities, of towns and of villages. Presented to
the House of Commons, 27th August, 1891, by Hon. J. Haggart. ... Printed for distribution only.

83. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8rd August, 1891, showing : 1. The names of all
employees of the customs at Montreal ; the date of their appointment ; their respective duties ;
the salary of each; their nationality ; their place of birth ; and, in case of their not having been
born in Canada, for what period they had been in this country at the time of their appoint-
ment; and upoh whose recommendation tilgy had been appointed. 2. Whether they have all
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84.

85.

865,

87.

88,

passed the civil service examination, and the names of those, if any, who have not passed
this examination, since the law requiring it has been in force. 3. The names of those, if
any, who have received salaries or pay in addition to that attached to the offices to which they
were appointed ; the amounts received by such persons, and for what additional work given. 4.
The names of the extra labourers for whose services there was paid in 1889-90 the sum of $12,176.25,
as recorded in the Auditor General’'s Report for the year 1889-90 at page C—254. 5. To whom was
paid the sum of $5,930.29 for cartage at the customs house at Montreal, as recorded in the said re-
port of the Auditor General at page C—254. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th Septem-
ber, 1891L.—Mr. Lépine. ...... .. . oo e e e e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th May, 1891, for copies of all correspondence,
memoranda, documents, letters, petitions and all papers whatsoever in relation to the encourage-
ment of the cultivation of the sugar beet and the protection of the manufacture and refining of
beet-root sugar in the dominion of Canada, exchanged between the government or any of its mem-
bers and any person or company. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd September, 1891.—
Mr. Beausoleil. e e e e e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st July, 1891, for copies of all correspondence,
papers and documents relating to the appointment of customs officers at Crystal Beach and Point
Abino, in the township of Bertie, and Carroll’s Landing, in the township of Humberstone, in the
county of Welland. Presented to the House of Commons, 23rd September, 1891.—M7r. German—

Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 14th September,
1891, for all correspondence between his excellency and the Lieutenant Governor of the province
of Quebec, in connection with the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and all other papers and correspon-
dence in the possession of the government on that subject. Presented to the Senate, 16th Septem-
ber, 1891.—Hon. Mr. Miller....... ...ooooii it i . Not printed.

. Supplementary return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 14th

September, 1891, for all correspondence between his excellency and the lieutenant governor of
the province of Quebee, in connection with the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and all other papers
and correspondence in the possession of the government on that subject. Presented to the
Senate, 23rd September, 1891.—Hon. Mr. Miller..... .......... cce ier crirennnen Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Governor General, dated 21st August, 1891,
for an account showing all the moneys expended by subsidy or otherwise on the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway, from the commencement of the works thereon to the present time ; the names of those to
whom paid, and the amount, if any, appropriated to said works and remaining unpaid by the

" government of Canada. Presented to the Senate, 24th September, 1891. —Hon. Mr, MclInnes
(Victoria, B.CL). ..o o it o i e e e e Not printed.

Return to an address of the Senate to his excellency the Goverror General, dated 29th May, 1891,
for copies of all orders in council, commissions and instructions for nominating a person or persons
specially charged to examine the situation and resources of that part of the dominion known as the
Great Basin of the Mackenzie ; and also of the report or reports made by such persons, in order
to put the government in a position to decide upon the measures necessary for the protection and
development of the territory. Presented to the Senate, 23rd September, 189l.—Hon. Mr.

GUrATA . . ove o e i e e . Printed for sessional papers only.
General statements and returns of baptisms, marriages and burials in the district of Chicoutimi,
Gaspé, Montmagny and Tberville ............ coeiiiei i i, Not printed.
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To His Excellency the Right Honourable Sir Frederick Arthur Stanley, Baron Stanley
of Preston, in the County of Lancaster, in the Peerage of Great Britain; Knight
Grand Cross of the Most Honourable Order of the Bath; Governor General of
Canada, and Vice Admiral of the same, dc.

May 17 PLEASE YoUur EXCELLENCY:

In compliance with the requirements of Chapter 36, Section 37, of the Revised
Statutes of Canada, I have the honour to submit the Annual Report of the Depart-
ment of Public Works for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890,

This report is divided into four parts; the first contains a statement of the
expenditure of the Department, amounting.to $5,717,897.75, of which the details
will be found in Appendix No. 1, pages 7 to 23, followed by the annual reports of
the Chief Architect, Chief Engmeer, Chief Mechamcal Engineer, the Superintend-
ing Officers of the slides, etc., on the different districts, of the Superintendent of the
Government Telegraph Servwe and of other officers of the Department, as well as
statements containing mformahon pertaining to the Department.

The second part contains the reports—with appendices—submitted by the
Commission appointed to investigate the causes of the floods at Montreal and
vicinity.

In the third part will be found records of Engineers and their Assistants em- -
Ployed on Public Works, exclusive of railways; of Superintendents; and of Pubhc
Works and the engineers engaged on them from their commencement.

Part four refers to Canada from the Atlantic to the Pacific, showing its pro-
gress, water and land routes, having special reference to the northern portion of the
Domlmon Also a record of the Heads, Deputy Heads and Chief Officers of the
Department from 1841 to 1890.

The works under the control of this Departmont are :—
PusLic BuiLpinas, their construction and maintenance.
HarBouRs AND PIERs, their improvement and construction.
Works oN NaviGABLE RivERs.
DrepciNg AND DREDGE VESSELS.
Roaps anp BRIDGES.
Suipes AND Boowms, and collection of revenue therefrom.
TELEGRAPHS. '

DESCRIPTION OF WORK DONE.

—e

The following is a description of the work done during the fiscal year on Pubhc

Uildings, Harbours, Rivers and Dredging, arranged by Provinces.
9—s%
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PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

—

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

During the fiscal year which closed on the 30th June, 1890, the sum of
$37,375.54 was expended on construction and repairs of Public Buildings in this
Province.

At AnnaPpoLs, a site for a Post Office and other Government Offices having
been obtained on the corner of St. George and Railway streets, on the 7th June, 1889,
a contract for the construction of the building was entered into. It will be of two
and a-half stories, of brick, on a stone foundation, 58 feet by 35 feet, with a one-
gtory brick annex for an examining warehouse, 13 feet by 3! feet.

Work has been continuously carried on during the past year, and the building
will, it is expected, be completed during 1890-91.

Havripax.—A contract for the erection of an Immigration Building at the Deep-
water Terminus was entered into 14th April, 1890, and the building is now
practically completed. It is a one-story wooden building, 262 feet in length, but of
varying width, from 58 feet at its greatest to 7 feet at its least, and, excepting three
small offices for baggage, tickets and agent, the floor space is undivided.

Adjoining is an old three-story and attic wooden warehouse, 50 feet by 30 feet,
which has been fitled up and now furnishes the following accommodation :

On the ground floor a stairway, hall, kitchen, coal store, storeroom and pantry;
on the second flat a dining-room and pantry; on the third flat eight rooms and in
the attic four rooms.

Narpan.—The buildings for the Experimental Farm were described in my
report of last year, and are now practically completed. The Superintendent’s resi-
dence will be supplied with a heating apparatus, plans of which are being prepared.
Precrou.—A new drain from the Custom House, with a catch basin, has been
put in. ’

At SypnEY, work on the building—to contain the Post Office and other Govern.
ment offices—described in my report of last year—has been carried on continuously.

In April last, a contract was entered into for the construction of a heating
apparatus.

Repairs, alterations, and improvements were effected to the following buildings: —

AmuersT—Public Building; ANrtigonisH.—Public Building; Havrrax.—Dom-
inion Building ; Examining Warehouse; NEw GrLasgow.—Public Building ; TRuro.—
Public Building; Winpsor.—Post Office; YarMourH.—Public Building,.

(Part I, Appendix No. 2, pages 27-29.)
HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

Durirg the year there has been expended on construction and repairs the sum
of $53,213.30, which does not include the cost of dredging charged to the appropria-

tion for dredging in the Maritime Provinces, which amounted to $16,958.99,
xvi [1890]
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Arisaie.—The extension of the pier 100 feet and the protection of the same by
a talus of large stone, on its seaward face, was nearly completed at the end of the
fiscal yoar.

At BARrINGTON, the first and second sections of the pier referred toin my report
of last year, as well as 300 feet of pile-work, have been completed.

At Brg LoRRAINE, a straight channel was opened through the'western extremity
of the bar obstructing the entrance, the depth obtained being 2 feet at low water on
a width of 20 feet.

Bic Tracapie.—With the amount appropriated by Parliament the work of
improving, by dredging, the navigable channel at this place was carried on.

CrEeTIcAMP.—A contract was entered into 10th June, 1889, for the construction
of a wharf on the eastern side of the harbour, to consist of an approach 125 feet in
length and 30 feet in width over a distance of 60 feet from its outer end, with side
walls of stone and centre filling of earth or stone; and an extension 80 feet in length,
in two blocks, with openings of 17 feet 6 inches. The outer block is to be 60 feet in
length along the channel face, and to have a depth of 11 feet at extreme low water.

At the end of the fiscal year the approach was completed and the.remainder of
the work well under way.

Easr Bav.—During the year a site was selected and a wharf built on the north
side of the East Bay of the Bras d'Or Lake, half a mile to the westward of McAdam's
Point and 5} miles to the westward of the head of the bay. The distance to Sydney
is 17} miles and to the nearest station on the Cape Breton Railway 103 miles. The
structure is 220 feet in length and 20 feet wide, with a return of 20 feet at the outer
end, giving a channel or end face 40 feet in length. The depth at the outer end is
10 feet at the lowest lake level, or 11 feet 3 inches at extreme high lake level.

East River, Prcrou.—A number of boulders were removed during the year, and
Points of rocky ledges cut through,

At EATONVILLE, the top of the breakwater constructed during 1887-88 was
cut down to the level of the extension, and its inner face close-piled. The new top
Wwas built simultaneously with the extension, a distance of 203 feet, and the whole
work was completed in a satisfactory manner.

The total length of the breakwaler is 220 feet, and its width on top 20 feet,
sloping about 1 in 6 on the seaward face and end.

Economy.—The breakwater and wharf combined, constructed by the Depart-
Ient at this place in 1887-88, has been, during the past year, extended 100 feet in
length, with a width on top of 25 feet and an |_, 25 feet by 25 feet, built on the
éastern side of the outer end.

At FrencH CoVE the boat landing was improved by the removal of rocks and
boulders,

At Green CovE, bedded rocks and boulders were removed over a distance of 60

feet, measured along the shore, to enable fishing boats getting to land with greater
safety
[1890] xvii
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GROSSES COQUES.—TBe greater portion of the pier at this place was renewed
by the Department, assisted by the inhabitants who supplied some materials and
labour.

At Jones HarBour a landing wharf and breakwater have been constructed
inside the mouth of the harbour, to enable the fishermen to use a larger class of
boats, and also to give them landing facilities.

The wharf is 175 feet long, and consists of an inshore end 90 feet loug and 15
feet wide, built of large stone; a centre portion of cribwork, which is of the same
width and 45 feet long, and an outer or channel block 40 feet long and 20 feet wide,
also of cribwork. It has, at its outer end, a depth of 9 feet at low tide.

At LisMorg, the work done during the year consisted in obtaining an additional
depth of one foot on the reef which lies beyond the outer end of the wharf.

MaBou.—The brush and stonework constructed off the entrance to this harbour
was raised during the period covered by this report.

MarRGAREE.—During the year 1889-90 a contract was entered into for repairs
to the pier and for an extension 200 feet in length, 20 feet in width on top, over a
distance of 170 feet, and 25 feet over the remaining 30 feet. The work under con-
tract has been prosecuted vigorously since thespring, and is approaching completion.

At NEaro IsLanp the beach protection work was extended and the old portion
repaired.

PortT GEORGE.—Storms of the autumn of 1888 destroyed the outer end of the
breakwater at this place over a length of 190 feet, rendering the harbour practically
useless.

During the Session of 1888-89 an appropriation of $5,000 was made for re-building
the breakwater, and during the present fiscal year a contract was entered into for
carrying out this work, but owing to difficulty in obtaining timber, and other delays,
active operations were not begun until late this spring, since which time the work
has progressed rapidly.

At Porr GREVILLE, the top of the beach protection work was re-constructed
over a length of 2,040 feet, and a cribwork wall 120 feet long built along the bank
on tho northern side of the mouth of the harbour.

At Port Hoobp, the amount appropriated for the year 1889-90 was expended in
building and close-piling a block 71 feet in length and 24 fect in width against the
outer face of the pier between the north corner and the close-piling, constructed in
1888-89, and connecting it with new top work back of it; in renewing the close-
piling over a distance of 34 feet on the north side of the pier near the outer end,
and in repairs to the covering of the pier and to the rip-rap of the stone slope onits
north side.

PorTER’s LAKE.—A channel 400 feet in length leading from the lako to Three
Fathom Harbour was re-opened during the year, the same having been closed by an
accumulation of gravel and shingle.

Port MarrLanD (or GREEN CovE).—Tn the winter of 1887-88 the breakwater at

this place was seriously damaged by a succession of storms, a breach 86 feet in length
xviil [1890]
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being made directly through the middle of the structure, and $500 was expended
by the Department in clearing away the wreckage and securing the work from
further damage.

During the year a contract has been entered into for making good the breach
and repairing the other parts of the structure where required.

SHEET HARBOUR.—In January, 1889, a contract for the construetion of a ballast
wharf, on the eastern side of the East River, was entered into.

This wharf, which was completed in November of the same year, was built
from the end of the remains of Hall's Wharf, and extended southerly a distance of
180 feet. 1t is 20 feet wide, and has an L, 20 feet by 20 feet, at its southern end.

At Teree FarHom HArBOUR, the beach protection work has been extended
northwardly, and other work done,

TipNisE RIVER.—A contract has been entered into for the construction of a
Public whatf on the south-eastern side, and near the mouth of the river. This wharf
is to be 220 feet in length on the centre line, 20 feet in width, with an L 20 x 20
feet on the upper side of the outer end, and a stone approach ; the depth at its outer
end will be 9 feet at high water,

At Two Rrvers, some large boulders were removed from the mud flats on the
banks of the navigable channel of the Big River.

WaLLacE.—During the past year the wharf at this place was extended a further
distance, the total length of the structure being, at the present time, 345 feet.

WesTERN HEAD.—The stone breakwater at this place was repaired and re-built
over a length of 106 feet.

At West Jordan Bay a pier 144 feet in length, 18 feet in width and 13 feet high
at the outer end, has been built at the back of the island, to prevent the gravel being
8wept into the channel.

Repairs and improvements were made to the undermentioned piers and break-
Wwaters in this Province, viz, :—

Cuurce Point, Cow Bay, Diasy, McNair’s Cove, PArTRiDGE IsLAND PiER,
Porp Mepway, Rounp BaY and SUMMERVILLE.

Dredging was done at the following places:—

Arisare, Barrinaron, Cow Bay, Lockerorr, MaBou, MaIN' A Diev, Market
Wharf Prorou, and TRACADIE,

(Part I, Appendix No. 5, pages 68 to 83, and 112 to 149).

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

i The sum of $1,649.11 was expended on construction and repairs to Public
Bmldings in this Province during the year.

[1890] xix
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CHARLOTTETOWN.—The town water supply was connected with the Dominion
Bailding, and the grounds laid out in grass plots, walks, etc. Other repairs and
improvements were effected on this building. '

At MoNTAGUE, the plaster, woodwork, ete., of the Post Office, were repaired.
(Part I, Appendix No. 2, page 27).

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

The sum of $10,777.56 has been expended on account of this service during the
year. This does not include the sum of $9,757.21, the cost of dredging, and charged
to the general appropriation for dredging in the Maritime Provinces.

CascumpEc.—ALt this place, the work of excavating a channel through the inner
bar has been continued, and some 4,000 cubic ysrds of rock have been blasted, ready
for removal by a dredge. By adopting this procedure it is anticipated the channel
will be completed at an earlier date and at less cost.

At CraPEL PoInT a contract has been entered into for repairing the superstruc-
ture of the existing pier and extending it a distance of 44 feet; at the close of the
fiscal year about half of the work was completed.

At CaINA PoINT, extensive works of renewal and repairs were commenced by the
Department, under contract, nearly half of the work undertaken being completed
at the end of the year. )

GENERAL REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS were made on the following piers, viz.:
ANNANDALE, BELFAsT, HiokEY's, KIER'S SHORE, LAMBERT’S, MALPEQUE breakwater,
New Lonpon breakwater, NorTH Rustico, PINETTE, PoRT SELKIRK, PoWNAL, ST,
MAary’s Bay, Souris (or CoLVILLE BaY) breakwater, Souta RivER and STEVEN'S,

DrepeiNG was done at CHARLoTTETOWN, NOoRTH Rustico, REp PoinT and SourH
Rusrico.

(Part I, Appendix No. b, pages 61 to 68, and 113 to 149.)

NEW BRUNSWICK.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

On constraction and repairs, there was expended on Public Buildings in this
Province, during the year, the sum of $15,671.68.

BaraursT.—A clock was placed in the tower of the Public Building.

Davnousie.—The Post Office, ete., building, has been completed and is being
fitted up. Heating apparatus is also being supplied. Cribwork was built during
the year to protect the site from the wash of the sea.

FreEpERIcTON.—Further grading has been done, and plans prepared for a heat-
ing apparatus for the Post Office, etc., building.

St. JoHN.—The yard of the Custom House on Water street was laid with
asphalt, and the furnaces under the boilers were re-laid and supplied with new dead-

plates.
XX [1890]
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At WoopsToCK, a clock has been placed in the turret of the PostOffice, Custom
House, ete., building. ' '

REPAIRs AND IMPROVEMENTS were made to the Post Offices at CARLETON and
ONCTON, to the Public Building, NEWCASTLE, to the quarantine station on Pamrt-
RIDGE Israx, St. John, to the PorTLAND Post Office ; at St. Jonn to the Custom House,
Post Office, Marine Hospital, Penitentiary and Savings Bank, and to the Public
buildings at St. STEPHEN'S and SUSSEX.

(Part I, Appendix No. 2, pages 30 to 32.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.
Expenditure on construction and repairs, $71,244.05.

At CaMPBELLTON, in order to provide a place of deposit for ballast, a contract
Was entered into on the 23rd April, 1889, for the construction of a ‘ ballast wharf,”
the Proposed structure being an isolated block 140 feet in length by 35 feet in width,
and having at it a depth of 18 feet at extreme low water, spring tides. :

At the close of the year the wharf was nearly completed, having been built up
10 the specified height.

A length of 116 feet of a landing for the steamer crossing from Campbellton to
Toss Point on the opposite side of the river, was constructed by day's labour.

Care TorMENTINE.—At the close of the fiscal year the stone embankment had

een. completed to its full length, viz: 1,300 feet—on top—and the cribwork
POrtion commenced.

D At Epgerr’s LaNDING, the contractors being unable to carry on the work, the
®Partment assumed the same in May last, and is carrying it to completion.

At Forr DurrERIN, at the inner end of Negro Point Breakwater, St. John
arbour, a further length of 100 feet of protection work has been built.

At GranDp ANsE, the L, or return, at the western end of the breakwater, was
“Xtended 100 feet towards the shore. '

Lincorx.—For many years the wharf at this place has, owing to its bad state,
_V€en unserviceable; to make it, therefore, of use to the public, it was, during the year,
‘Completely repaired and enlarged. -

At MizzoneTTE, the wharf referred to and described in my report of last year
Wag tompleted and taken off the contractor’s hands on the 19th September, 1889,

At Ricarsuoro, a further length of 94 feet has been added to the inner end of the
each protection” work, connocting it with the Sand Hills, und it is hoped its
Urther extension will be unnecessary.

o On the River St. JorN navigation was improved by the removal of boulders,

nd bars, rocky ledges and snags between the mouth of the River St. Francis and

¢ City of St. John,and the tow-path was repaired at different points. A number of
Ocky ledges were also blasted and removed on the ToBIQUE, one of its tx-ibn1tm~jes.

At Sr. Louss, the wharf which was commenced during the fiscal year 1888-89,

31d described in my report of that year was completed on the 21st September, 1889,
[1890] xxi
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SHIPPEGAN.—On the 26th November a contract was entered into for the construc-
tion of an additional block at the end of the eastern or present breakwater, and of a.
breakwater extending 1,100 feet in a southerly direction from the western beach at
the entrance of the “Gully.” Materials for the works were got out during the
past winter, a large portion having been delivered at the site by the end ot the
fiscal year,and 7 feet in height of the “ additional block” (40 feet by 50 feet) had been.
built, placed in position and secured by ballasting.

The works so far built at the “Gully” have given most favourable results,
improving the depth of water in the channel fully 2 feet, and already proving of.
great benefit to the fishing fleet of the harbour and surrounding districts.

Rerairs and IMPROVEMENTs were made to the works at MispEo, Quaco and
UppER SaLMoN RIVER,

Dredging was done at the following localities during the year, viz: DALHOUSIE;
GrAND LaxEe; River KENNEBECAsiS; OroMooro SHoals, River St. John; RicHI-
Bucto; and the Traverse, River REsTiGoucHE—the amount expended being
$14,957.95 and charged to the appropriation for Dredging in the Maritine Provinces.

(Part T, Appendix No. 5, pages 84 to 90, and 112 to 149).

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

On construction and repairs there was expended, during 1889-90 the sum of
$107,982.23, on the following public buildings :—

AyvLuER, Post Office.—This building has been completed and occupied.

CariLLon, Inland Revenue Offices.—The offices have been fitted up and fur-
nished and neceessary outbuildings constructed.

Carcourimi, Marine Hospital.—A drain from the hospital to the river was put.
in, the hospital was painted throughout, and the reservoir enlarged.

Coaticoor.—The public building at this place has been completed, fitted up and
occupied.

FRrASERVILLE, RiviERE DU Loup.—On the 27th November, 1889, a contract was.
entered into for the construction of a building—to contain the Post Office, Customs.
and Inland Revenue Offices—on the corner of Iberville and Champlain streets. The
building is to be two stories, basement and attic, 62 feet by 35 feet, to contain on the
ground floor the Post Office and Examining Warehouse; on the first floor the Cus-
toms and Inland Revenue Offices ; on the attic floor the caretaker’s apartments, and
in the basement the heating apparatus and fuel. The outside walls are to be of
stone, the partitions, floors and roofs of brick.

JorierTE.—The Post Office, &c., building, described in a previous report, has been
completed and occupied.
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) Lacuing, Post Office, &c., Bnilding.—A contract for the construction of this
buxlding on lot No. 253, fronting on St. Joseph street, was entered into on the 30th
€ptember, 188Y). The building consists of a main portion 40 feet by 30 feet and an
dnnex 20 feet by 11 feet, the ground floor for the Post Office, and first and
3ttic stories for the caretaker’s apartments. The walls are to be of stone; the par-
t‘?‘oﬂs, floors and roof of wood. The front gable will carry a wooden clock turret
With four openings for dials.

MontrEAL.—At the Custom House extensive renewals of metal roof covering,
?I‘Damental vases and woodwork of eaves were carried out, and alterations of plumb-
Ibg and boiler were made; some new gas fittings were supplied and a new and larger
838 main was put in the cellar.

A one-story wooden building, 25 feet 6 inches by 13 feet 6 inches, on a stone
Oundation, was built at the lower entrance of the Lachine Canal for the transaction
of Customs business.

Extensive renewals and improvements were effected to the boilers, engines,
€ating apparatus, &c., at the Examining Warehouse.

At the Post Office, a new safe was supplied for the Northern Receiving Office ;
® Assistant Postmaster’s Office was enlarged and other work done.

St. Hyacintae.—On 19th March, 1889, a site, consisting of Lot 225, and a por-
of 524, on the corner of Girouard and St. Joseph streets, with frontages of 81
%6t 6 inches and 133 feet 3 inches, respectively, was acquired, and plans, &c., for the
Construction of a public building have been prepared.

tion

. St. JeromE.—The Public Building at this place was completed, fitted up, fur-
Mshed and oceupied.

St. Vincent pE Paun PentrenTiARY.—A large amount of construction and
Works of improvement were carried out by convict labour during the year, a
aescription of which will be found in the report of the Chief Architect, on pages 35
1 36 of the Appendices, Part I.

- .Repairs and improvements wers carried out on the Marine Hospital, Carcou-
i I; Quarantine Hospital, Grossk [sLE ; Post Office, HoLn ; Custom House, Examin-
g Warehouse, Inland Revenue Office and Post Office, MoNTREAL; the Citadel,
Ustom Houge, Examining Warehouse, Immigration Building, Marine Hospital and
98t Offico, QuEBEC; and to the Custom House and Post Office at THREE RIVERS.
art I, Appendix No. 2, pages 32 to 36).

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

e There has been expended during the year on construction, repairs and improve-

Pen’:;.s the sum of $322.900.25. To this may be added $2,725,504.10, being the ex-

e iture on the ship channel of the St. Lawrence between Montreal and Quebec,
Umed by the Dominion.

ad _I?AIE St. PauL.—A contract has been entered into for the construction of an
. tion of 75 feet in length to the wharf at Cap aux Corbeaux, which will have a

Pth of 9 feet at the end at low water.
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Cap Caarre.—The channel has been cleared of rock, and vessels can now enter
with safety.

At Car DE LA MAGDBLEINE, the wharf was ballasted, the approach raised,
filled with ballast and planked.

At Cap SanTEk, a large number of boulders were removed from the channel
leading to the wharf.

CrENAL DU Moine.—Materials have been procured for the construction of an
additional ice pier.

CuicouriMr.—The head of the wharf at this place was extended westwardly a
distance of 130 feet.

ConTREC®UR.—A channel was opened from the main channel of the river to the
Village of Contrecceur, a beacon erected on lle Hurteau, and two small ones were
placed on the main shore for guidance through the channel at the bend.

Coreav Lianping.—The approach to the wharf 800 feet in length, the re-building
of which was commenced in March, 1889, was completed in August of the same yaer.

GRAND PABOS.—A number of dangerous rocks were removed from this harbour
during the past fiscal year, and crib-work 215 feet in length, 24 feet in width, of and
average height of 10 feet, was built,

ILe PerroT.—The connection between the block built on the. north side of the

island in 1887-88 has been completed, its width being 16 feet. A shed 16 by 20 feet
was also constructed, :

At ILE VERTE, a further length of work to connect the block built at the mouth
of the river with the shore was constructed.

At KaMoURASKA, an extension 110 feet long, 25 feet wide and 13 feet high, was
built, and repairs to the old portion of the wharf were commenced.

Larramrie.—The retaining wall, 335 feet in length, commenced in 1888, was
completed in the autumn of 1889,

Loxguruin.—The work of connecting with the shore the block built by the
Department in 1887-1888 has been carried on by. the contractor during the past
fiscal year, and, it is expected, will be completed before the winter sets in.

Newport River.—The eastern retaining wall was extended 90 feet, and the old
work repaired where required. ’
NicoLET.—An additional length of 686 feet of pile-work was constructed during
the year, stone was placed in those parts of the work where settlement had taken

place, and a quantity of sand which had washed into the channel was removed by a
dredge.

PoinNTE A VALois.—The wharf under construction at this place consists of a block
%5 feet by 25 feet, with an approach of 110 feet, 20 feet in width. There is a depth
of 6 feet 3 inches of water at its outer end, and the total height of crib-wurk is 17 feet,
but it was not completed at the end of the fiscal year.

At PoinTe St. PIERRE a dangerous grinite reef rendered the harbour unsafe.
Its removal has been commenced, and the work was progressing well at the close of
the fiscal year.
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Porr DanreL.—On the 15th of November, 1889, a contract for the construction
of an additional length of pier at Port Daniel, 70 feet by 50 feet and 27 feet in

height was entered into, At the close of the fiscal year about one-half ot the work
had been done,

 RmMousgr.—A contract has been entered into for the construction of a protection
Pler, 325 feet in length, 18 feet in width, on the westerly side of the wharf at its outer
end, and on the 30th of June last the work was in progress.

Rivikre pEs PrAIRIES.—On the 24th October, 1889, a contract was entered into
f?r the construction of two piers one at St. Geneviéve and the other at St. Raphael de
Vlle Bizard, County Jacques Cartier,and at the close of the fiscal year the greater part

of the materials required had been delivered in readiness for an early commencement.
of work

River pu Likvee.—During the year the work of constructing a lock and dam,
80d other works, at the Little Rapids, has been continued.

On the RiveEr L’'AssoMpTION the stream was improved by the construction of
%‘}“16 piers, one at the head of Chute Monte 4 Peine and the other at the foot of the
alls, .
. On the RiveEr MEKINAC a number of boulders were removed from the channel
10 the first and second rapids above the mouth of the riven,

River Ricueniev.—An additional ice pier was commenced near the mouth of
he Tiver, but not completed at the close of the year.

_ Rrver §r. Francis—During the year dredging was continued opposite Tour-
ville’s Mills, at St. Thomas de Pierreville, and other points on the river.

RIVEB St. MAuricE.—A channel 2,800 feet in length, 30 feet in width and 9
f(?et deep at low water was dredged during the year in the western channel of the
Tiver up to the highway bridge.

_ Rrver Yamaska.—The heavy rains of September, 1889, raised the water in the
Tiver to such a height that a break occurred in the dam. That portion which
T®mained was repaired and strengthened, and the Petit Chenal was closed.

Sure Cuansel, River St. Lawrence.—The work of improving the River

t. Lawrence from Montreal to Quebec was continued during the year by the

epartment, the principal points operated at being Cap & la Roche, Pouillier Rayer,
Cap Charles and Grondines.

StE. ApELAIDE DE PaBos.—In June, 1888, a contract was entered into for the
“onstruction of a strongly-built breakwater, 200 faet in length, to afford shelter
to the boats engaged in the fishing industry in this locality, and the work has been
Batisfuctorily completed.

. Ste. ANNE DE LA PERADE—A further quantity of dredging was done to
Improve the navigation of this river.

At STE. ANNE DU SAGUENAY a further length of work has been built, but the
Wharf is not completed. v
St. LAuRENT.—On the 4th of February last a contract was entered into for the

Construction of an additional length to the pier of 60 feet, 60 feet wide at the outer
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end and 50 feet at its junction with the old structure, and was well in hand
at the close of the fiscal year. The depth of the water at the end of the new struc-
ture will be 9 feet at low water spring tides.

St. SiMEoN.~—On 20th December, 1889, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of an isolated block 40 by 50 feet dimensions, with 13 feet at its outer end
at low water spring tides, and at the close of the fiscal year the work was well
under way.

Sr. Timora£E.—During the summer of 1889, the wharf which has a length of
100 feet, was extended out 45 feet, the extension being 45 feet by 100 feet. The
steamers have no trouble in swinging round since the construction of this extension.

Tapoussac,—A further portion of this wharf was repaired and raised 3 feet,
the face timbers of the outer end were renewed and a temporary slip built.

Taree Rivers.—In November last a contract was entered into for the construc-
tion of a wharf between the Richelieu and Ontario Company’s wharves and the
"Harbour Commissioners’, and at the close of the fiscal year the contractor had
delivered a large amount of the materials required.

Trors Pisrores.—The 60 feet extension to the wharf commenced in 1888 has
been completed, and another extension of 50 feet square has been commenced.

Repairs and improvements were made to the piers or wharves at the following
places: Baie St, Paur, Isolated Block; BrrtHIER (en bas); Erane pu Norp;
GATINEAU PoINT ; GEORGEVILLE ; ILE AUX CoUDRES ; LEs EBOULEMENTS ; MURRAY Bay;
Rivigre OvueLLE; RivEr St. DAaviD; St. ALPHONSE; S1. JRENEE; ST. MICHEL DE
BELLECHASSE. ’

The sum of $13,648.14 was expended from the vote for ‘ Dredging Quebec and
Ontario” at the following places: BEAUHARNOIS; BoUCHERVILLE, "River St.
Lawrence; Caateaveuay; Como and Hubpson, River Ottawa; KIERNAN Bay;
LacHINE ; MoNTEBELLO and PoINTE AUx ANaLAIs, River Ottawa; River pu Loup

(en bas); River 1’AssomprioN and St. Pracipe. (Part I, Appendix No. 5, pages
91-101 and 114-149.) ‘

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The expenditure for construction and repair of Public Buildings in this Pro-
vinee for the year amounted to $579,734.65.

ALMONTE.—A contract was entered into on the 11th June, 1889, for the erection of
a post office and building on a site obtained at the junction of Mill and Little Bridge
streets. It is to have a main portion 2} stories and busement 51 feet by 31 feet, and
a one story anuex 27 feet by 18 feet. The wallsare to be brick, with stone dressings,
on stone foundations; the work has been carried on during the year, butis not
completed.
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—

Brampron.—The Post Office, etc., building, which was described in my report
of last year has been completed, fitted up, furnished and occupied. ‘

Cayuea.—The post office building was completed and occupied.

CoBoura,—The additions to the Post Office, Custom House, etc., have been
Completed,

GANANOQUE.—A granolithic sidewalk has been laid on the line of the street.

__GopericH.—The Post Office, etc., building, described in my report of last year
Will, it is expected, be completed at an early date.

Plans have been prepared and a contract entered into for a hot-water heating
apparatus,

GueLPH.—A't the Post Office building the attics were fitted up for the use of the
Caretaker, the basement water closets removed, and a new set of ventilated water
closets constructed in the attic.

Haminron.—A clock was supplied and fitted up in the tower of the Post Office.
ete., building, the eaves supplied with troughs and other work executed.

Linpsay.—The Public Building at this place is completed and occupied.

Naranee.—The building for the Post Office, Customs and Inland Revenue

Offices has been completed, fitted up, furnished and occupied, and a clock placed in
the tower, :

Orrawa—Central Experimental Farm.—The greenhouses and seed store, cot-
tage No. 1, and the stable described in my report of last year, were completed during
the fiscal year 1889.90. A silo 40 feet by 20 feet and 24 feet in height, was con-
Structed as a lean-to at the western end of the barn. Two cottages, similar to No. 1
Cottage, were erected, one each at two of the entrance gateways. A 1} story wooden
buj lding, 85 feet by 55 feet, for use asan implement and harness shed, was constructed
at the southern side of the barnyard.

Departmental Buildings.—A. large steel and iron vault has been constructed in
the Eastern Block for the Finance Department; the offices now occupied by the
Post Office and Agriculture Departments in the new building on Wellington street

Were fitted up and furnished, and many necessary ilaprovements made to various
offices in the Western Block.

Parliament Building.—The slate covering was removed from the front roof
extending from the eastern to the western wing, and was replaced by copper, and
the large sky-lights on the House of Commons Chamber were replaced by others
of Qoppel.' .

Printing Bureau.—This building is completed, fitted up and occupied.

Victoria Hall.—A fence has been erected on the O’Connor and Queen street

gonts of this building occupied by the Fishery Exhibit and the National Art
allery, .

PrmBroxE.—The Post Office, &c., building has been completed and occupied.

PerErRBOROUGH.—A clock was fitted up in the tower of the Post Office. )
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PrEscorT.—The Public Building, for the Post Office, Customs and Inland Revenue
Offices, has been completed and will shortly be occupied.

STRATFORD.—A two story and basement addition, measuring 46 feet by 14 feet,
was constructed at the eastern side for the use of the Post Office Inspector. The
basement contains a furnace room, a fuel room and a W. C.; the ground floor, an
Inspector’s office and a Clerk’s office: and the first floor, a stationery office and a
Clerk’s office. The two lower stories are of stone and the upper of brick. Fittings
and furniture and a separate hot-water apparatus were provided.

STrRATHROY.—A contract was entered into on 31st July, 1889, for the erection of
a post office; ete., on the corner of Front and Centre streets. The main building 41
feet by 54} feet, will consist of a basement, ground floor, first floor and attic, a four
story tower 15 by 15 feet, and a one story annex 50 feet by 21 feet. The foundations
of stone, brick superstructure with wooden floors, partitions and roof.

The ground floor will be occupied by the Post Office, the first floor by the Excise,
the attic by the caretaker and the annex by the Weights and Measures.

Sr. THoMAs—Post office, etc.—An iron fence on a stone wall was erected on the
front street, and the heating apparatus extended. Other improvements were also
effected.

TreNtoN.—The Post Office, etc., building at this place has been completed and
occupied.

Repairs, alterations and improvements have been effected at the Post Office, etc.,
AMHERSTBURG ; Post Office, ete.,, BaARrIE; Post Oﬁice Berrin; Post Office, ete.,
Dunpas; Post Office, ete., HAMILTON Post Oﬁ“ice ORANGEVILLE; Government Hoube,
Orrawa; Departmental Buildings, OTTAWA, while the Parliament Grounds and
Major’s Hill Park were kept in good order. Various streets, under the control of’
the Department, were graded and macadamized, and otherwise improved, and the
roadways, sidewalks and footpaths were kept clear of snow during the winter; Post
Office, Port CorLBoRNE; Post Office Inspector’s Office, Porr Arraur; Custom
House, Examining Warehouse, Immigration Building, Inland Revenue Office and
Post Office, ToronTo. (Part 1, Appendix No. 2, pages 36 to 42.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

There was expended on construction and improvements of harbours and rivers
in this Province during the year the sum of $381,192.

CoBourG.—The outer end of the western pier has been re-built and other work
done. '

CoLLINGWO0O0D,~A number of large boulders and other obstructions were removed
from the channel and other parts of the harbour.

DrEspEN.—In September, 1889, a contract was awarded for the construction of
sheet-pile protection work on the north-west side-of the turning basin. At the close.

of the year the work was well under way, being nearly completed
xxviii [1890]



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

) Kincarpine.—During the past fiscal year the sheet-piling of the south and east -
side of the basin was completed, and the pile protection work on the inside of the
northern pier was extended a distance of 200 feet northwardly.

Kingsron.—The removal of Point Frederick Shoal was continued, 2,754 cubic
Yards of rock being removed.

Kinaston, DrRY Dock.— At the close of the fiscal year the bulk of the excavation
(rock) had been completed, and a large quantity of stone delivered for floor, altars, -

&c., and much work done in the construction of wharfing, and in filling and grading
the grounds,

Lirrie Current.—The work of improving the channel was continued and 2,265
cubic yards of rock were blasted and removed.

Lirrre Nation River.—The removal of the shoal at the mouth of Moose Creek
has been completed.

Mzarorp.—In August, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction
of the following works :—Cribwork, 80 feet in length and 20 in width, at the north
end of the eastern breakwater; cribwork, 160 feet in length and 20 in width at
the south end of the eastern breakwater; sheet-piling, 200 feet long, at the east
8ide of the entrance to the inner harbour,

These were satisfactorily completed in May last, and a quantity of stone was
Placed in the pile work of the old breakwater, and a space between the breakwater
and the shore was also filled svith stone.

MipLanD.—In August tast a contract was entered into for the construction of &
further length of 2,000 feet of work on the harbour front, and was nearly completed
at the close of the fiscal year. ‘

Owen Sounp,.—On the 9th October, 1889, a contract was enteréd into for dredg-
ing and other improvements in the harbour, and at the close of the fiscal year the
contractors had delivered a large amount of materials, and were getting their plant
in readiness for active operations.

During April and May dredging was done over a part of the channel at the
entrance to the harbour, which had become shoaled. The length dredged was 2,400
feet on a width of 60 feet, and to a depth of 16 feet 5 inches at lowest water.

PeneranguesgENE—The harbour improvements at this place were completedin
August 1889, and at the close of the fiscal year a dredge was engaged in obtaining a
8reater depth of water.

Porr ArtHUR.—During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890, good progress
has been made by Messrs. Kirby & Stewart on the 1,500 feet of breakwater com-
Menced by them in May, 1889, and the whole will be completed within the time
8pecified in their contract.

A large amount of heavy stone was placed as a talus in front of the old work, as
well as of that under construetion.

Porr Erein.—A channel 870 feet long and 175 feet wide, was dredged from inside
the harbour to deep water outside, and a berth opened for vessels on the east side of
the wharf.
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Porr Hope.—The superstructure of the railway wharf was re-built in part and
repaired,

PorrsmouTH.—The re-building of the superstructure of the p <1 : 1 this place
was continued and nearly completed on its entire length.

River Kaministiquia.—During the past year a further amount of dredging
- was done in the river to better accommodate the large steamers now plying on these
waters.

RIvER OTTAWA, BETWEEN PEMBROKE AND THE PETEWAWA RivER.—During the
last fiscal year the dredging of the shoal which obstructed the channel leading to
the Culbute Canal was carried on, and 2,216 cubic yards of sand and gravel were
removed. To indicate the new channel way, which has a depth of 8 feet, ten buoys
were placed on the north side of the channel.

River TraMES.—Difficulty being experienced by vessels entering or leaving the -
river owing to the bar off its mouth in Lake St. Clair, a dredge operated in opening
a passage through this obstruction,

SouraaMpTON.—In December last a contract for the construction of an addition
of 200 feet to the landing pier and necessary dredging was entered into, but at the
close of the fiscal year little progress had been made.

SumMMERSTOWN.—The warehouse has been completed and other work done.

Toronro.—In May, 1889, a contract was entered into for improving the eastern
entrance, the works required consisting of the dredging of a channel 300 feet in width
to a depth of 12 feet below low water, the construction of protection works on either
side of the new channpel, and the continuation and completion of the harbour protec-
tion works on the eastern side of the proposed entrance—extending from Fisher-
man’s Island westwardly to a junction with the channel works.

During the past fiscal year a channel 250 feet in width and to a depth of 12 feet
was dredged through the gap, 122,000 cubic yards of sand having been removed.

The contractors have delivered materials for the piers, and framing of cribs has
been commenced.

A large quantity of heavy stone was placed in the talus in front of the break-
water at the island, a total length of 3,700 feet having been thus protected, This
work was done by day’s labour, under direct charge of the Department.

WiarTON.—On the 8th November, 1889, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of a breakwater 380 feet in length and 25 feet in width, near the head of
the harbour, on the west side, to afford protection to small craft; and at the close
of the fiscal year the work was nearly completed.

Repairs were made to the structures at the following places, viz. :—BURLINGTON
CHANNEL ; GoDERICH; KINGgsVILLE; PoRT ALBERT; SAULT STE. MARIE.

There was expended on dredging at the undermentioned places the sum of
$17,454.83 : BowMANVILLE; BRIGHTON; GoDERICH; KINCARDINE; KINGSVILLE;
Newcastis ; Port Hore; RipEau River, North Branch; Point Epwarp, River
Sr. CLaIr; SouTHAMPTON and THORNBURY.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 5, pages 101 to 108 and 115 to 149.)
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PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

During the year the sum of $61,168.32 has been expended on construction and
repairs of Public Buildings.

BranpoN.—On 21st September, 1889, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction at the Experimental Farm of the barn and stabling, and on the 21st
October, 1889, for the construction of the Superintendent’s residence, both of which
are now in progress.

The Superintendent’s residence is to be a two-story and attic wooden building
on a stone foundation, having on the ground floor a hall, a sitting-room, a dining-
room, an office, a kitchen and a shed; on the first floor four bedrooms, and in the
attic three bedrooms.

The Post Office building, described in my report of last year, has been carried on
steadily, but is not completed.

St. Paur’s.—The buildings for the Industrial School which were described in
Iy report of last year have been completed, and a drain put in from the school
building to the Red River.

Srony MounTaAIN—Penitentiary.—A brick passageway between the prison and
the laundry was built; the Surgeon’s and Chaplain’s residences, referred to in my
Teport of last year, have been completed and fitted up, sammer kitchens added to the
Guards’ cottages, and a smoke-house, 12 by 12 feet, was erected.

WinNIPEG.—A stone pavement, 18 feet in width on Main street and 10 feet on .
Owen street, was laid around the Post Office, and storage and compression tanks in
connection with the water supply were put in, and other improvements effected.

Repairs were made to the Custom House, Examining Warehouse and Post Oﬂiee
Winniega.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 2, pages 42 and 43.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.
Tue Rep River—The sum of $8,640.76 was expended in continuing the
dredging of the river at various points.

Tee WaiTe Mup.—Several of the bars obstructing the navigation of this river
were removed, at a cost of $5,335.29.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 5, page 108, ard pages 116 to 149.)

NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

On construction and repairs there was expended the sum of $158,736.60.

Carcary.—The Barracks building has been completed, and a new guard-room,
containing 12 cells, erected.
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The Court House is completed, and is being furnished with a hot-water heating
apparatus.’ '

Inpian HEAD.—The Experimental Farm buildings, described in my report of
last year, are completed and occupied.

LerneripoE.—At the Barracks a 13-story Hospital building, 44 feet by 30 feet,
was crected, and a kitchen wing to same is in course of construction. An addition
to the recreation room, 36 by 12 feet, with cellar, was also built, and other improve-
ments effected.

MacLeEop.—The well at the Barracks was deepened and improved and a tank
constructed.

Moosomin—Court House.—On the 18th day of April last a contract was entered
into for the construction of this building on Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6, Block 25, and the
works arc now in progress,

It will consist of a wooden two-story main building, 65 feet by 33 feet, on a stone
foundation, and a one-story kitchen, 22 feet by 13 feet, resting on blocks. On the
ground floor will be a guard room, a constable’s room, two non-comissioned officers’
offices, a sheriff’s office, a clerk’s office, two stairway halls, five cells and two brick
vaults, one each for sheriff and clerk; on the first floor will be the court room, and
a room each for judge, jury, counsel and witnesses. The basement will contain
heating apparatus, fuel, &e.

PoLick BarracKs, GENERALLY.—Various and numerous repairs and renewals,
not elsewhere enumerated in this report, were carried out by police labour at the
police posts at Calgary, Fort Macleod, Lethbridge, Maple Creek and Regina, under.
the superintendence of this Department.

QU'APPELLE.—A portion of the Immigrant shed was fitted up as a court room,
and other offices were provided in the building.

Reaina.—At the Barracks, two stables, each 75 feet by 30 feet, with an addition
75 feet by 30 feet for saddle-room, and one stable 50 feet by 28 feet, were erected,
and a frame 50 feet high by 28 feet by 28 feet at base, supported on concrete and
stonework foundation, to carry the 50,000 gallons of water supply and fire protec-
tion tank, was put up. Other works of repair and improvement were also carried
" out.
An Immigrant shed, 50 feet by 24 feet, was erected and occupied.
The Industrial School, described in my report of last year, has been completed. -

On the new residence for the Lieutenant-Governor steady progress has been
made. ‘

The drainage and water supply system at the gaol and lunatic asylum have
been attended to, and two pairs of cottages for gaol officials are being built.

At the Post Office a well was sunk, a pump put in and a well-house, ete., built.

The riding hall, referred to in my report of last year, has been completed.

WaIrEwood.—An Immigrant shed, 50 feet by 24 feet, on plan, with an addition

for kitchen and latrines, was erected under the supervision of this Department.
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Repairs and improvemehts were effected to the Barracks, old Government House
and Post Office, REGINA.

(Part I, appendix No. 2, pages 44 to 47.)

BRITISH COLUMBIA.

—

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

Expenditure on construction and repairs during the year, $53,206.12.

Kawroops.—The Indian Industrial School buildings, described in my report of
last year, are completed and occupied.

Kvurer —The buildings at this place for the Indian Industrial School have been
completed. '

NEw WesrminsTErR—Penitentiary.—The Warden’s residence, to which refer-
énce was made in last year's veport, has been completed and occupied.

Viororia—“C” Battery Barracks.—On the 3rd of February, 1890, a contract was
entered into for the construction of the officers’ quarters, a 2}-story wooden building
on a stone foundation, 210 feet by 36 feet, exclusive of kitchen wings. It will
contain the Commandant’s house, a Major’s house, a Surgeon’s house, a 1st and

20d Lieutenant's house, a mess house, two houses for attached officers and oue for a
Quartermaster,

Repairs alterations and improvements wore effected at the Quarantine Statjon,
ALERT HEaD; Post Office, etc, Nanamo; Public Building, and old Custom
House, NEw WesruinsTer ; and at the Custom House and Post Office, VIcTORIA.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 2, pages 47 and 48).

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.
Expenditure on construction and improvements, $62,543.57.

Tre Corumsia Rrver.—The navigation of this river has been further improved
by the removal of obstructions from the channel below Revelstoke, and by the con-
struction of dams above Golden,

TaE Coquiti.AM.—The removal of timber jams and other obstructions in the
channel has been continued.

TaE CowicEAN RiveEr.—The work of straightening the channel between the

Somanos and the Quamichan Indian villages—a distance of about 2 miles—was con-
tinued.

EsquiMavt DrY Dock.—-New keel blocks, hand-rails, staunchions, ete., were pro-
vided, and improvements effected by the dock staff.

Two of Her Majesty’s ships, the “ Icarus” and the “ Amphion” (twice) were

docked and repaired, as well as seven other steamers.
[1890] xxxiii



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A 1891

TeE FrASER.—The work of improving the channel across the Sand Heads at the
mouth of the river has been continued, a further length of dam being constructed.
The channel is being gradually improved, straightened and increased in depth, from
the effects of the works carried out by the Department.

The “Samson” was engaged in removing snags between Harrison and the mouth
of the river.

Nicor Rock—Nanaimo Harbour.—During the year the whole area of rock to
be removed was broken up, but there remains a large quantity of stone to be raised
and removed.

Tue Somas.—The channel was further improved by the removal of snags and
overhanging trees.

Vicroria HarBouR,—The removal of the boulder shoal off Shoal Point, referred

to in my report of last year, by means of explosives and the dredge, was continued
during the year.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 5, pages 109 to 111, and 117 to 149).

L ]

DREDGES.

A report on the operations of the various dredges, together with a list of the

dredging plant belonging to the Department, will be found in Part 1) Appendix No.
5, pages 112 to 149,

ENG[NEERS, ENGINEMEN, FIREMEN AND CARETAKERS.

* A list of the various engineers, etc., employed in the Public Buildings through-
out the Dominion, with salaries paid them, etc,, will be found in Part 1, Appendix.
No. 3, pages 52 to 54.

L —

DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The amounts expended in connection with heating, lighting and water of the
various Public Buildings throughout the Dominion will befound in Part 1, Appendix
No. 1, pages 12 to 15.

it

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, OTTAWA.

The heating, electric lighting, gas, water and bell services of the various Public
Buildings in Ottawa were efficiently maintained, ordinary maintenance—only—as a
rule, being required. (Appendix No. 4, pages 57 and 68).

SURVEYS AND EXAMINATIONS.

Surveys and examinations were made at 102 places, a list of which will be found
in Part 1, Appendix No. b, page 111,
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SLIDES AND BOOMS.

et

SAGUENAY DISTRICT.

The slide and booms to facilitate the descent of timber from Lake St. John to
the River Saguenay are situated on La Petite Décharge, the smaller of the two outlets
from the lake to the river. The slide is 5,840 feet long and the booms 1,344 feet.

The Slidemaster’s house and other buildings, dams Nos, 2,3 and 4, as well as
148 feet of slide, were repaired.

(Part 1, Appendix No. 6, page 153).

ST. MAURICE DISTRICT.

The works on the St. Maurice are situated at seven stations, from the mouth of
the river to La Tuque Falls, a distance of 100 miles; and there are also two stations
on the Vermillion River, a tributary of the St. Maurice.

Although the water was very high no damage was caused thereby to any of the
works. Logs are being floated down without much difficulty.

Repairs were effected to the works at the mouth ofthe river, Cap aux Corneilles,.
Shawenigan, Grand Mére and Grand Piles.
(Part 1, Appendix No. 7, pages 157 to 159).

OTTAWA DISTRICT.

This district embraces the River Ottawa and its tributaries, the Gatineau,
Madawaska, Coulonge, Black, Petewawa and Dumoine Rivers. There are on it
eight-three stations, and the works for facilitating the descent of timber aggregate
about 1 mile of canal, over 3 miles of slides, nearly 13 miles of booms and over
17,000 lineal feet of dams, with bulkheads, piers, glance piers, etc., in proportion.

During the latter portion of the season of 1889 the waters of the Ottawa and
tributaries, which had been at a fair pitch for driving operations, fell to their normal
level, but the quantity of timber that did not reach its destination was comparatively
small. The foundations of the works, as soon as accessible, were examined during
the autumn months, and preparations made for carrying out the necessary works of
reconstruction and repair.

There passed through the works 438,907 pieces of timber, 4,500,518 saw-logs

and 2 cribs of sawn lumber, the revenue accruing on the above amounting to
$96,5642.97. '

A description of work done at the different stations on the main river and ite
tributaries will be found in Part 1, Appendix No. 8, pages 163 to 165.

NEWCASTLE DISTRICT.

The works in this district are of two classes : those connected with navigation,
which are under the control of the Department of Railways and Canals, and those
constructed to facilitate the descent of timber down the River Trent and its tribu-
taries, which are under the control of this Department.
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There was & good flow of water during the whole season, though the latter part
was very dry, and the extra water retained in Clear, Stoney and Buckhonn Lakes
proved of great service,

The works suffered no damage, further than that caused by ordinary wear and
tear, and a description of the work executed will be found in Part 1, Appendix
No. 9, pages 169 to 171.

STAFF EMPLOYED ON SLIDES AND BOOMS.

A list of the staff employed on the different slides and booms, with date of
appointment, salary, etc will be found in Part 1, Appendix No. 10, pages 174 to

176b.

COLLECTION OF SLIDE AND BOOM DUES.

This service was transferred to this Department by Act 52 Vie., chap. 19, and
the report of the Collector for the Ottawa District, with statements of dues accrued,
dues outstanding uncollected, ete., will be found in Part 1, Appendix No. 11, pages
179 to 186.

———

ROADS AND BRIDGES.

BarrLE River BripgE, BarrLerorp.—This bridge, which has been in course of
construetion for the past two years, was completed by the Department. (Part 1,
Appendix No. 5, page 108).

BerrY River Bripge—Lethbridge.—A contract having been made for the con-
struction of this bridge, work was commenced in October, 1889, and was well
advanced at the close of the fiscal year. (Part 1, Appendix No. 5, page 108).

CHAUDIRRE BripGE, Ottawa.—The reconstruction of this bridge across the
Ottawa was completed about the end of December, 1889. Its extreme length is 236
feet, and the span between the abutments 229 feet in the clear. The roadway is
30 feet clear width, with two footpaths of b feet wide each. (Part 1, Appendix No. 5,
page 102).

m—————

TELEGRAPHS.

The various lines owned and operated by or on behalf of the Government were
maintained during the year.

The “Newfield ” was engaged in November, 1889, in laying the cables connecting
Brier and T.ong Islands with the town of Digby, N.S. A half knot of new cable was
laid between (Grindstone and Allright Islands, of the Magdalen Group, and a cable is
being laid between Meat Cove Station and St. Paul’s Island to take the place of the
Bird Rock Cable, which has been abandoned. On the north shore of the St. Luwrence
the line has been completed to Point aux Esquimaux. In British Columbia, a line
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from Victoria to Cape Beale has been nearly completed, and the line between Asheroft
and Barkerville is being re-poled. Full details regarding the Telegraph Service, will .
be found in the report of the Superintendent of Government Telegraph Service in Part
1, Appendix No. 12, pages 189 to 212.

OPENING AND CLOSING OF NAVIGATION.

Part 1, Appendix No. 13, page 215, gives a statement of the dates of the closing
of navxrmtwn in the winter of 1888 and of the opening in 1889, at the prmcxpal
ports of Canada.

—

CONTRACTS, PROPERTY PURCITASED, &

Part 1, Appendix No 14, pages 219 to 225, contains statements of the contracts
entered into by the Department, of property purchased by the Department, and of
property leased by or to the Depariment, during the fiscal year.

——

ACTS RELATING TO PUBLIC WORKS.

Part 1, Appendix No. 15, page 229, contains a list of some of the Public Acts of
the Parliament of Canada passed at the Session of 1890, and having reference to the
Public Works Department, or works under its charge.

NATIONAL ART GALLERY.
Three oil paintings and one water colour have been added to the collection.

The number of visitors is largely in excess of that of the previous year (Part
1, Appendix No. 16, page 233).

OFFICIAL CORRESPONDENCE.

Part 1, Appendix No. 17, pages 237 and 238, contains a statement of the official
correspondence of the Department from 1867 to 30th June, 1890, as well as that of
the principal officers of the Department.

GRAVING DOCKS.

There are at present three graving, or dry docks, opened for the veception and
repairs of ocean-going steamers aud vessels, viz., at Halifax, Nova Scotia; Levis,
Quebec; and Esquimalt, British Columbia; while a fourth, to accommodate vessels
engaged in the lake trade, is approaching coun pletion at Kingston, Ontario. Their
dimensions are as follows :—

[1890] xxxvii
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Esqumarr (Built by the Dominion.):

Feet

Length.vics vt it R 430
Width at bottom.......coeeuvinennnen. SO ORI 41
do coping level ........ccooiuiiiiniiiiii . 9

do  eDnErANCe «iiviniiiiiiii e s 65

Depth of high water on sill at high water ordinary springs.... 26%
(Spring tides rise 7 to 10 feet, neaps b to 8 feet.)

KinasTon (Under construction by the Dominion.).
‘When completed, this dock will be of the following dimensions :—

Feet.
Length on the floor...c..coiiiiiiiis viiiiins veviviiiiiie i evieeanes 280
Width dO e e 47
Width at coping level .....cceeivveriiiieiiiiiiiiniiiiniininiinnnn ., 79
Depth from coping t0 loor.......cvvviiinins cerviviiiinrininenene. 26
Depth of water on sill at low water.........ccooveves vrrvrencennenans. 16%
Width 0f @ntrance....coces veveeeiiiiiiianiiniiiii e ceaeenes 55

(The level of Lake Ontario has a range of 3} feet.)

Levis (Built by the Harbour Commission of Quebec and assumed by the
Dominion.) :

Feet.

Length c.oeerniiiiiiniiiii e O 495

Width at coping level ....oo. o0 i . 100

do  bottom...cceiiiiiii i e s 73

do  entrance......... ... ceiireriiiiiiiieni e e, 62
Depth of water on sill at high water ordinary spring tides.... 25}
do do neap tides............. 20%

Havirax (Built by the Halifax Graving Dock Co., Limited, of England. Sub-
sidized by the Dominion under Act 45, Vic., chap. 17; by the Imperial Government
and the City of Halifax.): ¢

Feet.
Length ... et e eaeas 385
Width at coping level........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiin s v 102
do  bottom........ ... i e e 12

do  entrance.........coeciiiiiiiiiiiin s . 89%
Depth of water on sill at ordinary spring tides......... T 30

(Spring tides rise 6 feet, neaps 3 feet.)

The question of the improvement of the harbour of Montreal to give additional
accommodation for the increasing traffic, as well as to guard against the flooding of
the lower portions of the city, having been brought prominently befors the public, the
report of the Commission appointed in 1886 to enquire into the causes of the
periodical inundations which have caused so much damage and inconvenience, has
been printed, and forms Part II of the appendices attached to this report.

HECTOR L. LANGEVIN,

Minister of Public Works.
Ottawa, December, 1890.
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APPENDIX No. 1.

STATEMENT - OF EXPENDITURE

DURING FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30t JUNE, 1890,

BY

O. DIONNE, ACCOUNTANT.
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(Referonce No, 112,340.)

APPENDIX No. 1.

46,318 13
90]

SrareEMENT showing the Amount expended %{ the De?artment of Public Works,
Dominion of Canada, during Fiscal Year ended 30th June, 1890.
Con-
; Staff
Name of Work. struction Repairs. | and Main- Total.
and Im- tenance.
provements. * :
PUBLIC BUILDINGS. $ cts $ cts $ cts. $ cts.
GENERALLY . ..ot viiivii e 14,481 83 | 14,481 83
Nova Scotia.
Amherst Post Office, &C . ... vveeenees oeereannens |oveeniinns 3209 |............ 32 09
napolis do e e 9934 24 ... oL el 9,934 24
Antigonish  do . ..iiiieeieiiiieii e 240 56 |............ 240 56
alifax Dominion Building . ... ..o.coevernveeannn. 85000 | 1,50768 |............ 2,357 68
do  Examining Warehouse .. ..........cooe vvofianeeeeans © 1,576 86 |...... .... 1,576’ 86
do  Immigrant Building ...........ccoeveeen... 491972 ... o 4,919 72
A0 Penitentiary... .......oeeeriiieris aeeriileriianaiiiis 024 |............ 024
Nappan Experimental Farm ... ...............o0.. 489794 | ... 4,897 94
New Glasgow Post Office, &G. . ...v . vens oernrerrsieenanennnnnn 39084 |, 390 34
N,Ofth Sydney do e 945 |. ......... 9 46
Pictou do ... SOOI ORI 37142 (..ol 371 42
Point Edward (Sydney) Quarantine Hospital........|............ 2100 | ........... 21 00
Sydney (South) Marine Hospital 15 70 15 70
do Post Office, &ec. .- 12,3880 38
Tl‘}lro Post Office, &C ...ovvvviiinniins venens 7875
Windsor  do ... . e e, 6 00
Yarmouth do . vereininenini 148 17
Prince Edward Island. ‘ :
Charlottetown Dominion Building............. e 888 64 6520 )............ 953 84
ontague Post Office, &C ...... ovevvnrnveeneien foveeierernnn 87 27T |.evvvvnn. 87 27
Summerside dO  eii e 608 00 {..veeureenni]ineininann.. 608 00
New Brunswick.
Bathurst Post Office, &C ... ..ovonvenereennnn.. - 252 53 U810 4.....e..... 370 63
Catleton (St. John) Post Office........... B s 72al............ 17 24
alhousie Post Office, &C .....vvvueer v vevvnnnnnns 10,366 61 |........oo.fieeiiinnii. 10,366 61
redericton ' 1o PPN PO PN 73201 |......cuntn 732 01
oncton do Y P 59020 |............ 590
ewcastle do  ...... R 242 T84 ... 242 78
Partridge Island Quarantine Station................loeieonnnnn.. 30000 |............ 300 00
Portland Post Oce . .. .....oooeerrvonrirvnonns fovannvnnn, 133158 f.ovvnvnnnnn 133 15
8t. John Custom House...........o0oomeeeeseonmisiloomnnnninns 60876 I..oovnunin. 608 76
do Marine Hospital.. . .....vieereeeeeninrrnaforeneennnans 4268 |........ ... 42 68
do  Penitentiary............ I AT 360 41 {............ 360 41
Ao Post OffCe . .vvvvvr e verrennaaninnene eiieeian, 50010 |............ 500 10
do SavingsBank.................. e e 5249 |..iiiieniinn 62 49
St. Stephen’s Post Otfice, &6. ... ... ovnoveioinnii|oae 1o 13456 |............ 134 56
Sussex A0 e 128 L 172 85
~ Woodstock o i i, 1,047 72 | 1,047 72
Carried forward................ ..... 8,378 20 | 14,481 83 | 69,178 16



ggerbmoke Post Oﬁicc, &

St. Henri Post Oﬂice ............................
St. Hyacinthe Post Office, &c

St. Jerdme do

St. John’s Post Office........... v.cvvv vevivnnnnn..
St. Vincent de Paul Penitentiary

Three Rivers Custom House................... ....
do Post Office. . .....covvviviniivinnnan...
Ontario. ;
Almonte Post Office, &c................ . ....onel 7,063 00
Amherstburg cdio ...........
Belleville Drill Shed. . 10,000 00
do Post Ofﬁce, 418 63
Berlin 116 95
Brampton 12,828 33
Brantford Dmll Shed .. 152 40
do  Post Office, Koo
Brockville [ 1o 2 D
Carleton Place do 4,039 80
Cayuga do 3,395 67
Chatham do e s
Cobou do 5,960 81
Cornwall do
Catried forward... .. ................ 184,341 56
8 [1890]
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
. . Staff
Name of Work. szgl:ftllyoﬁ Repairs. | and Main- Total.
provements. tenance.
$ cts. $ ots. $ cts. $ cts.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. :
Quebec.

Brought forward..... ...l ' 46,318 13 69,178 16
Aylmer Post Office, &c....................... ... 5,998 78 5,998 78
Carillon Inland Revenue Office. . ... .ooovvrovron. 435 435 00
Chicoutimi Marine Hospital........................ 644 22 1,094 27
Coaticook Post Office, &c......cocovive vuve o 4,910 69 4,910 69
Grosse Ile Quarantme Station........oveieiiiiiii i 532 19
Hull PostOffice, &c............ ..covviinnn. 681 55 980 30
Joliette do .. e . 8,187 04 8,187 04
Lachine do 1,610 96 1,610 96
Montreal Custom House. .. 4,015 00 4,385 68
- do DrillHall .... ........ 1,743 68 1,743 68
do Examining Warehouse. . 3,366 14 3,480 57
do  Inland Revenue Bmldmg .................... 74 90
do Lachine Canal Office..................o. | ol 61 75
do Post Office.. ........... ............. 1,627 78 3,713 79
- Quebec Citadel Bulldm B s vt e, 8,107 37 5,551 78
do do “CHff”... ... i, . © 373 56 373 56
do Clerk of Works Office........ ........ .... e e 869 00
do Cullers’ Office.........covvvniiiniiinienneen]iniennennn.. 711
do Custom House. ....... ....cocvviiiiiiiiiiideinn weun 2,309 09
do Drill Hall...................c..... 100 00 100 00
* do Examining Warehouse. 1,382 73 1,566 73
do Immigrant Building ........... T 143 07
do Inland Revenue Office... .............c.o o) coeeneene. 27 17
do Marine Hospital.......... ........... . e i 805 98
do Old Parliament Building, site...............| «...... ... 176 25
do PostOffice..........ooooviiiinn vivivnnneieiiin 1,800 37

do Weights and Measures Office......... .. wefeees Lol 7
Riviére du Loup (Fraserville), Post Office, &c.. .... 477 86 477 86
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

Con- Staff
Name of Work. struction | porgirs, | and Main- | Total.
and Im- tenance
provements. "
S ——
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued.
Ontario—Continued.
Brought forward ...... ........... 184,341 56 222,080 62
gundas POst Office, &C.onvrenernneaneerneanneneefeeneannnnen 554 50
Galt do e e 27 15
ananogue O i e 2,622 66 3,036 66
4 erich [ Lo Z D 7,022 01 7,022 01
ﬁuelph do PSP 2,267 98 2,279 48
amilton Drill Shed.........cov0 civverieenanienans 182 70 349 95
.80 Post Office, &C.......couerrrrarerrnannn .. 2,662 05 2.808 05
Kingston Civil Service Examination Office. . ... . |........... 10 35
Ao Custom HOUSE .......ocvvveeieenanneeenniliinsaennnes 430 70
do  Inland Revenue Office..........cooeevvennnfoioeueennnns 30 00
do  Military College.......ccoeueeeaene. N P © 13 28
Ao Penitentiary..........ceeoeeie ceieienean. 18,024 93 18,024 93
.40 Post OfiCe. ... oeeiiraeeenriennaneeennioeiainns 480 88
Lindsay ~ do  ....ooiiiii i, 12,482 03 12,496 03
London Custom House. ... .. e e 2,923 40 2,925 90
do  Infantry School.........ccoiveivnes vonenn. 7,869 21 7,869 21
do Post Ofice......cvovvrneerenivennecnnnnnns 388 88 388 88
Napanee  do  .......c.cooeeees v DR 16,284 26 16,284 26
Niagara Falls Post Office.. ... ..nvovuvne cornernns SR 44 00
Jrangeville do e e e e .. 133 21
ttawa Examining Warchouse. ........ e RN 850 00
do Experimental Farm........c.covveeneiennn. 13,847 65 13,847 65
do  Geological Museum...... . .. ..ooooon... deveiiieeen 1,394 34
do do gas and electric lighting. . 543 00
do Government Printing Bureau............... 34,766 48
do 0 gas and electric lighting. .|. 2,119 36
do National Art Gallery...... ......ocuoiennn. . 716 93
do Post Office... oooovnvnerens veveiiuieianes 345 76
do do gas and electric lighting 1,980 20
do Public Buildings...... ..... ......... . 145,542 40
do do East Block, new vault
do do Langevin Block...........
do do Parliament Building, sky-
light and copper roofing. 6,040 13
do do Western Block, elevitor. .. L2AT5 00 }oonsieeiiideieneeann 139,989 95
do do Gas and Electric Light- '
: ng......... $ 18,479 30
do do Gas & Electric
Lighting
(Langevin
Block) 1,161 60
- 19,640 90 | 19,640 90
do do Grounds 6,725 44 6,725 44
do do Heating 61,889 99 | 61,889 99
do do Major’s Hill Park. . .. 5,017 50 6,432 50
do . - do Removalof snow......... J........... .o 1,286 00 1,286 00
do do Telephonic service ........ .cooeeeeii]ininna.. 3,021 95 3,021 95
do do Water,.......covenieve e i i e 15,123 93 15,123 93
do Supreme Court........ .. . 894 51 |............ 394 51
do Victoria Hall ... 36410 |............ 834 15
Pembroke Post Office, &c ... . 1,970 30 |, ... .. 11,970 30
Peterborough Custom House, &c 2,013 05 |.....oovii]inannnian.n. 2,013 05
do Post Office. ...... 1,953 25 442140 ..., 1,957 67
Port Arthur Immigrant Building U 7200 {..ooninnnn. 72 00
do Post 0O 4 ettt 9400 |...oooii )i e 94 00
Port Colborne  do O PN 12829 |............ 123 29
Carried forward........... e 463,631 40 ) 174,887 37 | 132,547 02 | 770,965 79
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
s Staff
Name of Work. struction | peigirs, | and Main- | Total.
and Im- ‘tenance,
provements. *
. .
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued.
Ontario—Concluded.
Brought forward.................. 463,531 40 | 174,887 37 770,965 79
Port Hope Post Office, &C..oovvevvnvnriinivnenns]oeeneenen, 97 15 97 15
Prescott Post Office, &c................ .. ... ... 11,494 66 |........ feans 11,494 66
Rideau HaN ........ ... coiiiiiiiiiiiieiennn]orneinennnn. 18,007 41 18,007 41
“do Allowance for fuel and light ...........[..........0 [0 L.l 8,000 00
do Electric lighting ......... oot e el 200 00
. do Removal of snow .........oooooia oo o ... 509 65
St, Catharines Post Office, &c................. .... 12 52 228 97 241 49
St. Thomas [ 2 YN 1,508 03 633 37 2,141 40
Stratford do e 3,150 55 416 00 3,566 55
Strathroy do i 11,402 98 |.... .......|oill 11,402 98
“Toronto Civil Service Examination Office ..o vovoileeeerennsn. 61 75 61 75
do Custom House ... .. . ....... ..... R 110 81 110 81
do  Examining Warehouse..................... 152 15 378 71 530 86
do do do Water Lots. ......... 834,955 55 |....ooonnil]en 34,955 55
do Immigrant Building. ..................... 1,064 85 |..... .....[.... 1,064 85
do Post CE.... e e e e 6,069 70
Trenton Post Office, &c 12,443 47
‘Walkerton  do .. 1,609 84
* Windsor do 195 97
Manitoba.
Brandon Kxperimental Farm...... ................ 2772 29 | o e 2,772 29
do PostOffice...... ...oooveiniiiiiniiinann.. 18,943 55 |..... coviiierennieninn, 18,943 55
St. Paul’s Industml School...........cooiiiiiil. 15586 70 |........ ... . ... 15,586 70
Stony Mountain Penitentiary... ... .............. 18 999 6L {........... cieeiennn 18,999 61
‘Winnipeg Clerk of Works Office....................J..... ... . 1,540 82 |............ 1,540 82
do  Custom House..... ... .. ..coiiiiiiiniennnn cuun 2368 . ......... 23 68
do  Dominion Lands Office ..... ........... [..oooeoasl 28333 [..eeaniinin, 283 33
do  Examining Warehouse. . ..............o..|oeiiieionin. 37|, 113 71
do Immigrant Shed..... ..... .. [ 30000 |............ 300 00
do  Post Office.......... e i 2,612 38 9225 |............ 2,604 63
North-West Territories.
Banff Mounted Police Barracks. .... .............. BT4 55 |...ooiei fe i 574 55
Battleford do do i iivee e 2,680 92 | ... e, 2,580 92
Cal‘fary Clerk of Works Office....... ..... ........ e e 21865 ( ........... 218 65
Court House, Gaol, Registry Office, &c...... 19,626 37 | deees e 19,626 37
do MinesOffice......... ...ovvirienenieinneni]orneneannn.s 9110 |.......... . 91 10
do Mounted Police Barracks............co... .. 10,377 87 {.evevenneeidonnnis, 10,377 87
Edmonton do do ...l . 67 00 |...ovneenniiliiiinn oiunn 67
Fort MacLeod Custom House..................... 624 42 | ... el 624 42
do Mounted Police Barracks............ 4527 35 | ..o e 4,527 35
Indian Head Experimental Farm. ................. 8908 28 | .......... [iieiiiinnnns 8,908 28
Lethbrldge Mounted Police Barracks................ 2,945 01 |....... ....|. ccooieein. 2,945 01
aple Creek _ do do e 442 83 | ...l e 442 53
M icine Hat Hospltal—Govemment grant ......... 200000 {............0.c....0nn 2,000 00
do Mounted Police Barracks.............f-c.cooiu.... 2718 |.....ttnt . 27 18
Carried forward .. ............ . . | 658,089 89 | 198,502 87 | 141,256 67 | 997,849 43
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Construction Staff
Name of Work. and Im- Repairs. | and Main- Total.
provements. tenance.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued.
North- West Territories—Concluded.

Brought forward........... e 658,089 89 | 198,502 87 | 141,256 67 | 997,849 43

. Moosomin Court House, Lock- -up, &c.. 3,306 99 |....ouiiiiidiiiiie e, 3,306 99
o Sheriff’s Office. . D f 30500 ....... ..... 305 00
Prince Albert Court HOuse. oo oo 532 22 ............ 532 22
do Mounted Police Barracks.............] 87567 |......coo.ifovviaiiiian. 875 67

I’ubhc Bmldmgs Generally..... ....... ..o 3,161 84 3,161 84
gpelle ustrial School . 1005 | . vees 10 05
Mounted Police Barrack 35 00 |. 35 00

Regma Clerk of Works Office..........ovouvuenenifonnnnenens L. 472 05 472 05
do Court House and Gaol—Water supply, & 6,759 80 154 52 6,914 32

do Gaol—Cottages for officers. .. .. 4,154 14 70 93 4,225 07
do Immigration Building.... 837 36 93 873 y3
do Industrial School. . ..... 33,316 84 |........... .. 33,316 84
do Lieutenant Governor’s residence (new) 20,682 40 |............ 20,682 40
do do do  (old).... .. . 4,185'24 4,185 24
do Mounted Police Barracks........ ... 12,884 48 {............ 12,884 48
do North-West Assembly Build 176 09 |o...o....... 175 09
do Post Office.. .. ... ......... 1,073 56 15 67 1,089 23
do Riding Hall.......... 10,285 89 {............ 10,285 89
Saskatchewan Mounted Pohce Barracks | 4,365 06 [............ .. 4,365 05
St. Albert do e o el 116 50 116 50
itewood Immxgratlon Building. ..... .. 780 00 |..... .. 780 00
ood Monntain Mounted Police Barracks......... |. ..... P 294 35 294 35

British Columbia.

Aga.smz Ex enmental Farm .. .......... . ...... 145 27 ooreei i i 145 27
Kamloops ndustna.l School. ...l 9317 T8 fveeneinndenne eee o 9,317 75
uper do .. 5,653 56 [ ........c {oeeeninn.. ‘5,663 56
Noanaimo Post Office. ... ...vvuueiiiener coreeiinn fonrer aeen 954 50 | ........... 954 50
New Westminster old Custom House. ...............|cc.ceceen... 5000 | ........... 50 00
do Penitentiary. ... ........ e 14,712 97 |oooveen e, 14,712 97

do Post Office........ ...coviienn... B R R 4630 |............ 46 30
Vancouver Post Office. . ........coeevureueinns vensileeainninnnns 10780 |.... ...... 107 80
Victoria Military Barracks .... ...... beneraeieeas 21,092 46 |..... .. ... .0.ioeall, 21,002 46
do Custom House...........covvieiiunnnnnenenloieininne. 608 56 |............ 608 56

do Post Office ............. civv viiieriiiidieniiieian, 386 06 |............ 386 05

do Quarantine Station................oviieiii]ieiieiinnin 13090 {....... .... 130 90
Carried forward................... 808,508 81 | 207,015 44 | 144,418 51 1,159,942 76

[1890]
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

. Con- Staff .
Name of Work. S:g‘:f?&’f‘ Repairs, jand Main-| Total.
provements. tenance,
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward................... 808,508 81] 207,015 44| 144,418 51 1,159,942 76
Sa.lafi'ies %up]ﬁies
of or En- . b
Engineers, [gineers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
EXPENDITCRE ON ACCOUNT|  &c. &e.
SERVICES MENTIONED. -
$ cts.| § cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Ottawa.
Langevin Block...... .... 3,924 921........0......... PR 3,924 92
Novae Scotia.
Anmherst Post Office. ..... 400 00| 24 83 223 18 229 60.......... 877 61
Antigonish do  ..... 131 40 5 50 T224 .. ..o 209 14
Arichat do ...... 17000 ...... 9450 ........... N TN 111 50
Baddeck do ..... 200 00| ..... . 10000 12 88(..... .... 312 88
Halif&x Dominion Build-
Mg e 2,067 96 12 10 711 13 2,318 70 650 00| 5,759 89
Halifax Examining Ware-
house......... .... 500 00 17 35 165 41 54 20! 186 95 923 91
New Glasgow Post Oﬂ’lce 409 89| 51 18 148 00| 241 20 100 00 950 27
North Sydney do .. 466 64/ 16 56 150 00 18 20 ......... 651 39
Pictou Custom House .. 400 00 0 70 12965, ..o, 530 35
do Marine Hospxta,l ................ 90 93 ..... v e 90 93
Truro Post Office......... 400 00 13 15 105 00 240 17 20 00! 778 32
Windsor do  ........ 400 00 10 00 172 29 . 122 70 50 00 754 99
Yarwmouth Post Office, &c. 400 00| 16 11 195 00 481 52 72 00| 1,164 63
Prince Edward Island.
Char]ottebown Dominion .
.............. 1,579 96 72 39 490 08 1,177 50 290 25| 3,610 18
Montague Post Office . 120 00 29 39 60 00 25 1. ..., 234 50
. Summerside do e 460 00| 17 10| 216 29 4259 .......... 675 98!
New Brunswick. .
Bathurst Post Office, &ec. . 400 00 4 60| 348 80 52 33 ......... 805 73
Carleton, St. John, Post
Office, &c.....\ . ...... 7500, .......00000uen... . 153 63 20 00 248 63
Chatha.m Post Oﬁioe &e.. 146 80 12 73| 124 22 71821 ......... 355 57
. Fredericton do .. 400 00)........ 319 401 . 419 85 33 00 1,172 25
Moncton do .. 400 00 29 88 188 38 607 55 100 50{ 1,326 31
Newecastle Pust Ofﬁce 400 00; 20 39 369 83 250 80.......... 1,041 02
Portland do iiilieeiieiiiiina.. 31 13 25 57 ......... 56 70
St. John Custom House 1,990°60; 91 50{ 1,426 83 129 12 766 47| 4,404 52
do . Marine Hospxtal .......... 2 01 510 57 239 88 56 91 809 37
do  Penitentiary.... 450 00].... ... 49 60 625 .......... 505 85
do Post Office. ....| 1,006 68 36 00 543 65 2,201 51 516 56| 4,304 40
do  Savings Bank...| ......... 372 247 18 94 86 17 50 363 26
St.Stephen’ sPostOﬂ'lce,&c 400 00 6 20 161 88 515 40 86 25/ 1,169 73
Sussex do 400 00 7 02 136 09 1079 ... ..... 553 ¢
‘Woodstock do do .. 399 96! | 3 50 223 60: 141 16 34 00 802 22
Carried forward....| 18,286 81| 503 90! 7,804 86| 9,884 89/ 3,000 391 39,480 851,159,942 76
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APPENDIX No. 1.—Continued.

w

Con-
struction Staff
Name of Work. and Repairs. "jand Main-| Total.
. Improve- tenance.
ments,
———— :
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued $ cts.] $ cta| $ cts. 8 cts.
Brought forward................. 808,508 81| 207,015 44) 144,418 51) 1,159,942 76
Sa.la.;ies Sup%\es
o . . .
h Heating. | Lighting. | Water, Total
ExrenprryRE ON ACCOUNT En%’::ers‘ ml&e:rs
ERVICES MENTIONED. —
Continued. $ cts.] $ cts.l § cts. $ cts.! 8 cts.! $ cts
Brought forward...| 18,286 81| 503 90| 7, ,804 86 9,884 89 3,000 39, 39,480 85
Quebec. .
Aylmer Post Office. ... ... 66 70| 1125 210 00 2267)... ...... 320 62
Coaticook do e 304 40| 33 81 248 16 60 89 16 67 663 93
Hull Post Office, &c ..... 200 00]........ 246 50 36 16 135 00 617 66
Joliette Post Oﬂice &e. . 283 10| 31 15 380 31 33 26 108 34 836 15,
ontreal Custom House. . 1,490 00)........ 923 93 540 35 375 35| 3,329 63
do Drill Hall... 540 00(........ S S 540
do Examining Ware-
house........ 1,485 00 3 00/ 1,919 90 534 85 565 531 4,508 28
do Inla.nd Revenue ‘
........ 260 00f....... 272 18 204 45 98 90 835 53
do Post Ofﬁce, St.
) James st...... 840 00 3 95/ 1,010 10 3,857 10, 1,697 33| 7,408 48
do do Notre Dame
................................. 22 00{.......... 22 00
do do St Ca.thennes
(17 02, AR SPUIE FUUUUPIUIY OISR IR 27200, ......... 27 20
do do St Lawrence
........ 32 500.......... 32 50
Quebec Cmdal Buﬂdmgs 75 25........ 183 60 158 760..... .... 417 61
do  Culler’s Office .. 540 00)....... 22500, ..o e 562 50!
do Custom House.. 585 00 4 10 702 75 29 56 30 00| 1,351 41
do Examining Ware ,
house.......... 1,140 00{ 140 99 876 34 41 40f..... .... 2,198 73|
do Marine Hospital..| .........| ... ... 1,401 25(.. ........0......... 1,401 25
do Observatory ............................................ 44 00, 44 00
....................... 371 25 1,048 14..........| 1,419 39
Sherbrooke Post Oﬁce, &c 400 00 19 26 284 25 560 25 62 00" 1,325 76
re} 400 00; 31 35 269 00 239 20 250 00; 1,189 b6
St. Jérome do 312 28] 28 35 394 48 40 00]. ... ..... 775 11
8t. John’s do 350 00[.. ..... 147 00 125 00 40 00/ 662 00
8t. Vincent de Paul Pem-
tentiary................ 110 31)........ 1,750 00).......covnifeeeene. .. 1,860 31
hree Rivers Custom H’se 700 00 8 80 374 701...... .. 72 76/ 1,156 26
do Post Office. . 400 00| 23 45 212 64 221 20 60 00 917 29
Ontario.
Ambherstburg Post Office, .
&e ..... 400 00, 64 67 224 93 96 14{.......... 785 74
Barrie do e 400 00.... .. 261 50 254 20 50 00 965 70!
Belleville do 600 00 20 90| 431 75 486 76 35 26; 1,674 66
Berlin do 400 00 3 75 239 20 169 50 11 00, 823 45
Brampton do 19 30 1 50 17 250, oo e 38 05!
Brantford do 600 00| 27 83 289 33 290 00).... ....} 1,207 16
rockvllle do 400 00(... .... 207 75 571 20 170 00{ 1,348 95
Cayuga, do 47 85 16 31 143 75 25250 ......... 233 16!
Chatham do 850 00 9 00 258 32 81460 ..... ... 1,431 92
Carried forward..| 32,486 00 32| 22,079 48| 19,987 47|

[1890]
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
A
Con-
: Staff
Name of Work. :‘::‘(‘i‘c§:?ll-‘ Repairs. jand Main-| Total.
provements. tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts.] $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward..... ........... 808,508 81) 207,015 44| 144,418 51 1,159,942 76
Salaries |Supplies
i of for En- | Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
EXPENDITURE Engineers, |gineers,
ON ACCOUNT SERVICES &c. &ec.
MENTIONED—Con.
Ontario—Concluded. $ cts.| $ cts. $ cts $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward...| 32,486 00| 987 32| 22,079 42| 19,937 47| 6,822 52| 82,312 29
Clifton Post Office, &ec... 400 00| 15 70 382 00 85 18 36 26 919 14
Cobour, o .. 216 66|........0.......... 120 60|.......... 337 26
Cornwa. do 373 80 3 65 275 20 616 51 56 25| 1,325 41
Dundas do ..ol 30 25 95 62|.......... 125 87
Galt do 400 00|........ 202 58 174 40 12 50 789 48
Gananoque Custom Housel....... ..Joeeonos 150 00|, ..o | all 150 00
do  Post Office.. 100 00y... ..... 102000, ........... eeeennn. T 202
Guélph do 433 35 3 60 241 32 285 60 46 80| 1,010 67
Hamilton Custom House, 690 00]........[.......... 133 31f......... 823 31
do  Drill Shed..... 315 00f........ 600..... ......[.. fesennen 321 00
do  Post Office.. ... 825 00 8 00 948 40 1,532 49) 1,250 00] 4,563 89
Kingston Canal TollsOffice| .........[........ J 9 00 9 00
Kingston Custom House. . 40 00........ 619 ¢8 93 20 82 80 835 88
do Inland Revenue|..........|.....o. oo ... 69 20 23 40 92 60
do Military College 1,440 00 4580{.... .. | ..ol feiiiiin... 1,485 80
do PostOffice.....| .........[........ 357 10 422 20 53 52 832 82
Lindsay do  ...... 349 00| 61 86 334 94 3201.. ....... 777 81
London Custom House. . 1,000 00| 15 70 649 73 296 45 159 50| 2,121 38
do Post Office.... .. 600 00| 20 95 503 11 579 20 89 00 1,792 26
Napanee do ...... 250 00| 14 10 306 09 26 60).......... 596 79
Orangeville do 400 00| 72 04 1381 7 154 84.......... 758 67,
Otta.waExpenmentalF m. 205 00|........ 520 04]...... ... |...... ... 725 04
Peterborough Post Oﬂlce 400 00|........ 172 28 310 80! 93 75 976 83
Port' Arthur do RO 1450 ...... ... |.cevean.. 14 50
do Colborne do - 240 00| 16 74 146 25 -85 565/.......... 488 54
do Hope do 400 00] 17 70 227 00 183 60)..... .... 828 30
Prescott do [ 2 00 86 TH..... .ieidiiiii..... 88 76
Stratford do &ec.. 600 00 6 00 286 57 382 40 78 75| 1,353 72
St. Catharines do . 400 00 975 250 33 178 20 7 00/ 895 28
*St. Thomas do .. 400 00| 12 60, 857 70 482 66 64 01/ 1,316 97
Trenton do 333 30, 13 65 282 50 6200/ .......... 681 45
Toronto Custom House. . 625 00 6 00 503 64 122 29 663 96| 1,920 89
do Examining Ware-
house......... 8,711 00 156 39 989 53 38 76 196 00| 5,091 68
do Inland Revenue .
Office......... 676 50 6 00 325 68 351 48 342 917 1,702 57
do. PostOffice. ..... 1,947 81 9 87 707 19 3,012 87 726 80| 6,404 54
‘Windsor do 1,000 00 4 25 519 56 662 73 170 78| 2,357 32
Wolfe Island Post Office. |... ..... | ....... 3180........c.fih L L, 31 80
Manitoba.
Brandon Experimental
Farm........ Jeoeeoiiis Joiee oo 5500 . .......... . .c...c... 55 00
Winnipeg Custom House.|. S o 785 45 253 20 86 40! 1,125 05
do Dominion Lands
T (NP P 325 30 11 64f.......... 336 94
Carried forward......| 51,257 1,609 67 33,906 94 ,783 06| 11,121 91| 128,579 00| 1,159,942 76

[1890]
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APPENDIX No. 1-—Continued.

Con-
ot Staff and
Name of Work. S;:l‘&c?;’: Repairs. | Main- Total.
provements. tenance,
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Concluded. $ cts. $ cts. 8 cts. $ cts.
Brought forward................. ..... 808,508 81| 207,015 44| 144,418 51| 1,159,942 76
Sa.l&nes Supplies
. . for En- | Heating. | Lighting. | Water. | Total.
EXPENDITURE Engmeers gineers,
. ON ACCOUNT SERVICES &e. &e. .
MEzxNTIONED—Con. d
Manitoba—Concluded. $ cts.| $ cta. $ cts. $ cts $ ots $ ets
Brought forward...| 51,257 42|1,609 67| 33,906 94/ 30,783 06 11,121 91| 128,579 00
Winnipeg Examinin
peg Warehouse. g 542 87)
do Immigrant Shed .. .. 56 70
do Indian Office... S P 189
do  Post Office....| 2,873 75| 41 41| 2,971 50 927 b4 687 50! 7,501 70
North-West Territories.
Ca.l(fa.ry Barracks ........f eeevoiieiliniiinieieian, 675 00{..... .... 675 00,
Mines Office.... .| covvvnefennn.n.. 10030 |..oooves cofoninninnn 100 30
Indian Head Experimental
Farm................. oo 168 90/ ... devens L 158 90
Ft. McLeod Custom House|..........[........ 19090 ... ... ]eeeeeiat 190 90
Prm;:e Albert Court do.. 400 00! 14 90 75 00} 38 20 . 528 1
Regina Office.... .......fvevveeviiifvennnn.. B6 80, ..o e 56 80,
do Court House. .... Ceanaaans 22 50 584 80 9 12 23 23 639 651
do Gaol a.nd Lunatic|
Asylum........ TN 102000 ... cooiiferaeannn. 102 00
do Post Oﬂice ................ 8 50 312200 ... e 320 70|
British Columbia.
Nanaimo Post Office.. . ... 600 00........ 95 00 167 40 36 00 898 40
New Westminster Post
Office...... ........... 600 00........ 148 75 150 00 40 60 938 76
Victoria Post Office ..... [ P 244 75 937 85 18 57| 1,200 67
Custom House...|... ......}........ 156 75 32 00| 81 225
DouMiNION BUILDINGS] )
GENERALLY+....ooufeeveinninifunennnn, 781 49 .... ...... 3 00 784 49,
Totals........... 55,731 17/ 1,596 98; 40,659 53| 33,734 79} 11,967 02[ 143,689 49] 143,689 49
Carried forward,... ..... ereree et hee e e 808,508 81| 207,015 44| 288,108 00| 1,303,632 25
i8] 16
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T
APPENDIX No. 1.—Continued.
Con-
struction Staff
Name of ‘Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
TImprove- tenance.
ments.
$ cts. $ ots. $ cts. 8 cts.
Brought forward................... 808,508 81| 207,015 44! 288,108 00| 1,303,632 25
HARBOURS AND RIVERS.
GENERALLY.... ....cvvvnns’n A P 8,806 51 8,806 51
Nova Scotia.
Avrisaig Pier—Extension ............ ...l 480975 1., . Ll eeieiiien.. 4,899 75
Barrington Pagsage Pier....................00 L 1,220 85 |, 1,220 85
Big Lorraine Harbour.............. ... ..ol 50000 J..ooenene]ieeniinin... 500 00
Big Tracadie Harbour--Dredging................... 1,000 00 f..... ..o e Ll 1,000 00
Cheticamp Wharf...........cooooi i 961204, ... e 961 20
Church Point Breakwater....... [T PR 3269 ... ...... 32 69
Cow Bay Breakwater..............cvieviiiiiiiiniieeanainns 3,500 00 {... ~..... 3,500 00
Digby Pier..i............... RSP ISR 392 91 [ 11,001l 392 91
East Bay (north side) Wharf........................ 1,999 87 | ... o, 1,999 87
East River of Pictou........ .. .. .....coiivnn... 50000 |...........feeuiniian.n, 500 00
Eatonville Wharf. ...t 2,100 08 |............ 0 .ceuens v 2,100 03
Economy Breakwater..........c.ccoveveuneninnnnn.. 2620 52 |.........o e i, 2,520 52
French Cove Harbour....... P e eeaeeaaana. 199 98 [.....ooivn foeiiiialt, 199 98
Grosses Cogues Breakwater (renewal)................ 2,999 97 |. .... e 2,999 97
Halifax Graving Dock... .. N N Y 10020 |.......aeee 100 20
Jones’ Harbour........... ..o 997 99 | 997 99
Lismore Wharf.............. ...... e e 10000 |...ooevine]enennnn o 100 00
Mabou Harbour.. . ... .ovviinrenr iieiinnnennaen 00000 ..oy ool 1,000 00
Margaree Pier—Extension.... . ..cccooiviiaeniiian.. 2471 21 | 2,471 21
McNair'sCove, ..... c...oooivunnn SN e e 85000 |............ 850 00
Negro Island—Beach protection work.............. 40336 |.........ofiiinsienll 403 36
Partridge Island River.......... ........ ......... 2,049 71 Lo ool L 2,049 71
Port George Breakwater—Re-building........... . 4,647 30 |..... ... . el . 4,647 30
Port Greville Harbour .................ccociinun.. 2499 99 |.... ... 2,499 99
Port Hood Pier............... .. e e e 249998 | ..... ..o e el 2,499 98
Port Maitland or *“ Green Cove ” Breakwater........|... ........ 270 98 |............ 270 98
Port Medway—Beach protection work ....... ... ......... ... 19999 |.... ....... 199 99
Round Bay—Repairing protection walls........ ....] ........ 8000 )............ 80 00
Sheet Harbour Ballast Wharf .. ............ .. e BO5 00 |...ovviineei]ivinnninnnn, 505 00
Sammerville Breakwater. ...... .i.c.oooin v i et .- 247764 |............ 2,477 64
Three Fathom Harbour............. i e P 24990 |............ . 249 90
Tidnish........ S I 5392 ............ 53 92
TwoRIVErSs ......coviiiin i vriirieaiainn vveeeseadoiriinanas 15002 §............ 150 02
Wallace Harbour.....  ........ ......... ... 257841 1........... 0 L, P 2,678 41
West Jordan Bay—Dredging................. FPR L1995 | ..., 1,199 95
“Western Head.................00 et venen vunenn 4999 98 {.. ... |oeeiia.. 4,999 98
Prince Edward Island.
Annandale Pier........ ..oiiieiiiiiiiinee cieniaiendiiiinian, 271521 ............ 275 21
Belfast Pier... ..ottt i e e 644 67 |............ 644 67
Cascumpec Harbour ... ... ............ e 200000 |............) ceoiinninnn 2,000 00
Chapel Point Wharf, Grand River............ ..... ! 979 | e 907 M
China Point Pier ..............ooiviieninen. e 5" 2 6 N U F 798 71
ickey’s Pier.. ....... g P 500 00 |. .......... 500 00
Keir'sShore Pier ........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiininnini]ieeraenenan. 10000 |.......... . 100 00
ambert Pier....... .... OSSR TS ISR 399 84 |l 399 84
Malpeque Breakwater. . ..... A ,00000 |........ ... 1,000 00
Montague—Steven’s Pier.......coooviveiiiiiiinliiinn oo 199 98 (... ... ..., 199 98
New London Breakwater.............coveiiiiiiniee]oensnenenans 846 78 {........ ... 846 78
North Rustico Pier......cciveiiviiiiiienen e coifienennnnnnns 9999 |............ 99 99
- Carried forward.. ... Gede e aas 857,070 51 | 219,440 16 | 296,914 51 |1,373,425 18

16 | [18v0] .
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

90]

Con-
struction Staff
Name of Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
Improve- tenance.
ments.
R $ cts. $ cts. $ cts, $ cts.
Brought forward................ .. 857,070 51 | 219,440 16 | 296,914 51 (1,373,425 18
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Continued. v
Prince Edward Island—Concluded.
Pinette Pler. . .....coveiunirieriie caeeniennieenliaees saunns 250 00 | ...... .... 250 00
Port Selkirk Pier.......ccocvvviiin vier aevenevefierereaannns 987562 ............ 987 52
Pownal Pier.. . ..o iuriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeie i, 99| ... ..... 99 95
Souris East—Knight’s Point Pier..................ubeeeee o 1,209 91 |.. ......... 1,299 91
South River Pier.......cocovviivins civn evvennne]innneinnnnns 146 50 |.... ....... 146 50
St. Mary’s Bay Pier ...... ..coviviiviiiiiieneeni i 16066 | ...... ... 160 56
New Brunswick.
Campbellton Ballast Wharf ........................ 6,835 96 |.......... foiiiiiiian, 6,835 96
Cape Tormentine Harbour.. ................ .. ... 4447102 {............] . e eeeene 44,471 02
"Edgett’s Landing Pier........ ................ ... 3,024 08 |............ el 3,024 08
Grande Anse Breakwater...... ....................|...... .. 2,260 51 |.... ....... 2,260 b1
Kingston Wharf, on Richibucto River ........ ..... 120 33 (... i 129 33
Lincoln Wharf .......coo i one 999 62 |.....0 .o e 999 62
Maisonette Wharf...... ...........0 ciiiiiiin... 1,44250 |......oo]eiiiians, 1,442 50
Mispec Pier,.. ... .vuiiiiiiiiiiiieiinee creieieeieianaes 436 88 |............ 436 88
Quaco Breakwater...........ccoooviiiiiiiiin.. N PR . 557 BT {.......uu.n 567 57
Richibucto Harbour................... ..... e 89942 .. ... ...l 899 42
River St. John :— .
Above Grand Falls................... $1,000 13
Between  do and River Tobique 799 97
~do do St. Francis River. 698 50
Improvement of channel at Bear Island 1,446 70
. D 394580 e 3,945 30
Removalof snags.... .....coooviiiniiiiiiin]iieinnindiiiie e 250 00 250 00
Shippegan Breakwater............... ... L. 4618 61 |.......... ] . 4,618 61
8t. John Harbour—Negro Point Breakwater........ L1878 | 1,185 78
St. Louis Wharf..............coo i Xl 17760 .o 177 50
Upper Salmon River Breakwater...................|ocoeeenn..e 2997 {.ooiennn.. 259 97
HARBOURS GENERALLY, MARITIME PROVINCES .. .... |...... .....l...coiiaii. 15,454 52 | 15,454 52
Quebec.
Agnes Pier, Lake Mégantic.. ............cc.oo..0. 209 68
Anse & ’Eay, or Tadousac............... cooe cen 1,200 91
Bagotville (St. Alphonse) Pier................. PR 809 27
Baie St. Paul Wharf. .. .......... ciiweeeean 2,064 58
do Isolated Block............. e . b9 95
Beauport Pier...............oooo 200 00
“Belcel Piers and Booms... . .........o..ieil . 82 00°
Berthier (en bas) Pier.......... ....ooioiiiiiiiin 410 66
Boucherville Pier... ... ..... . ..o cieiiieen 20 85
Cap & I’Aigle Pier....... eeerie ereveescesieaaess 83 17
gap de 1a Magdeleine Pier....... ... ..ol 1,000 00
ap Santé Pier... .. e eaeens eearaeaaaaes S 500 86
. Chenal de Moine—Ste. Anne de Sorel Ice Piers. . ... 2,497 11-
Chicoutimi Pier.................. e eees v 1,005 81 -
_Coteau Landing Pier (re-construction). ............. 2,602 91
Flint Pier, Lake Mégantic..............ccovnnen... 156 26
Georgeville Pier... ... ....ooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiin 1,995 27 .
Gatineau Point Wharf, .. ...... ......... PN 584 01
Carried forward.............cv.... 936,872 11 | 229,754 34 | 312,701 03 11,479,327 48
| L 17
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
struction Staff
Name of Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
Jmprove- tenance.
ments.
- 8 cts. 8§ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward........0......... 936,872 11 | 229,754 34 | 312,701 03 (1,479,327 48
HARBOURS AND RIVERS-—Continued.
Quebec—Concluded.
Grand Pabos Harbour, removal of rocks.. .. ...... 2,906 95 |... ... eeeeiean., 2,906 95
Grande Riviére..... e e ieieeen e eeaaaas 764064 |..... ... el 7,640 54
Harbours, &ewﬁix;?rally. P [ PPN P 9,856 55 9,856 55
Kamouraska Wharf.......... ........ .. .. ... ... 2,855 99 |..... ..... IR P -2,855 99
Tle aux Coudres Wharf.... ........ ...oooiiiiiiiiifoeeennnen... 861921, .... ..... 861 92
Ile Perrot & LT 3,605 98 |....iiiii i 3,505 98
Tle Verte do i el 8399963 1..... ... foe.llll. 3,999 63
Laprairie Harbour (revetment wall)................. 268285 |......... e 2,532 85
Les Eboulements Pler ........................................ 1,000 68 [............ 1,000 68
Lévis Graving Dock ... ... . ... ciiiiiaan.. 219490 |..... ...... 9,331 74 | 11,526 64
Longue Pointe and Bouchervﬂle Ferry Route. .... 200000 [... .... .. ceiiiians 2,000 00
Longueuil Pier......... ..o i 5,892 50 |..........ofeee i 5,892 50
Lourdes Pier, Lake Mégantic........oooeveeniviens oo, 169 68 [............ 169 68
Malbaie Pier... .........ccoinin.. O IS 1,039 07 |......... . 1,039 07
Matane do ..... cooiiiiiiiiiiin i veiiiiiieia e e 367} ool 357
" NewCarlisle Pier.............coco cvivvienn o o 8242 60 |............ ..ol 8,242 60
Newport River............. ... e 1,99 97 [....... . e, 1,999 97
Peree Pier. ... ..ooiiiiiiiiiii i . 4111 45 ... oo 4,111 45
Piers below Quebec. ... . ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiierneenienn [ e 9,679 41 | . 9,679 41
Piopolis Pier, Lake Mégantic....................o ], 169 68 |.... ....... 169 68
Pointe & Valois Wharf (extension)............. .... 2,976 88 |... oo 2,976 88
Pointe St. Pierre Harbour......................... LIRS 00 |....ooovi |, 1,985 00
Port Daniel Wharf (extension)...................... 4460 23 |.......oo i aall 4,460 23
Quebec Harbour..............ooooiiie oo iiiis e i, 20 10 20 10
Rimouski Pier ............. ... oo el 5507 10 | ........ .| . iiiiiannn. 5,507 10
Riviére Cap de Chatte.....................0 . ... 80000 |............|eceeiinnnn.. 300 00
do  David, repairs to bridge abutments..... ....|............ 41600 [............ 416 00
do des Pmmes—lmprovements at “Pomte ala
Carrifre ”..... ... coieeriiiiieiiiiaiean BTT7T 38 | 3,777 38
do ~ du Liévre—Locks, &c.............cvueenn.., R O 50,280 50
do dulLoup Pler ............coiiiiiiiiia... el 286 68 |....... .... 286 68.
do L’Assomptione................. e 3497 10 |t 3,497 10
do MackingaC.........oooiiiinininan vininan. BI319 f.ovviiviii]een v, 513 19
do Nicolet—Harbour of Refuge ................ 12492 727 (.. o, .iiiifeieianan., 12,492 72
do Ouelle Pier........... ..o ivn veveinni]eenennn. P 484 80 [............ 484 80
do Saguenay—Petite Decharge, Lake St. John. . 20000 [ oo.ooiniiiiferieienana., 200 00
do Ste. Annedela Pérade........ ............ 2,000 00 }.......o. ifeenel . 2,000 00
do St Francis..........i... vieviiiir ciueann. 4,953 48 |.... .o denan . 4,953 48
do - St. Lawrence-—8h1p Channel . ............ 121,614 08 |.......... .|..
do . do (Expenditure as- 2,847,118 18
sumed by Dominion) .... ......... ..... 2,725,60410 |............{..:. e
do St. Maurice—West channel at mouth........ ,000 00 .
do Yamaska—Stone protection to dam.......... 4,950 25
do do Lock—Working expenses........[..... ......
Sorel Tee Piers.......... . c.oiiinninen onnn e 2,499 43
Ste. Adélaide de Pabos (Little Pabos) .. ........... 11,840 50
St. Anicet Pler. ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiiiine e
Ste. Anne du Saguenay Pier........................ 2,045 50
St Iréné Pior........ovovrveiiiiniinnnn vieienrnena]orniniinaa
8t. Laurent Pier (Iled Orlé&ns) ............ Ceveeens 1,578 31
8St. Michel de Bellechasse Pier................. coouf ovnninn..
8t. Siméon Pier........ ... ...l e 906 67
8t. Thomss de Montmagny Pier....................[..... .....
St. Timothée Piers............. 8,773 15
Three Rivers Pier.... ..... .... 4,145 51
Trois Pistoles Pier—Extension.. 2,640 14
chtorm Bay Pier—Lake Méga.ntxc FR Y P
Carried forward.................... 3,963,196 69 | 235,916 82 | 342,130 56 14,641,244 07
18 18907
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
: struction . Staff
Name of Work, and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
Tmprove- tenance.
ments.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cta.
- Brought forward................... 3,963,196 69 [ 235,916 82 | 342,130 56 |4,541,244 07
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Concluded.
Ontario.
Burlington Bay Channel...... ...... voovvene vonn Jevevnniinns \ 1,420 66
Gobourg Harbour. ... .coveeiiiireniueenannnaennn 6,265 41 6,265 41
Collingwood Ha.rbour ... .. 3,808 09 38,808 09
Goderich do e e 615 00 615 00
Harbours generally......c.oooiviiiiiiiiis e 10,285 42.
ministiquia River . 25,770 25 25,770 26
Klncardme Harbour. .. 4,999 30 4,999 30
Kingston Gra.vmg Dock. 92,578 68 92,578 68
fs Harbour.......... 5,924 81 |. - 5,924 8L
Little Current, Lake Huron 8,913 57 |. 8,918 5T
Little Nation River.. . 4,007 35 |. 4,007 85
Meaford Harbour. . 4,987 84 |. 4,987 84
McGregor’s Creek 2,549 80 |. 2,549 80~
Midland Harbour. 21,718 11 21,718 11.
Owen Sound Harbo 14,584 39 |. 14,584 39
Penetanguishene Harbo 5,316 22 |. 5,316 22
Port Albert 40 .00 |. 40 00
Port Arthur 107,172 10 |. 107,172 10
Port Elgin 2167 33 |. 2,167 33.
Port Ho 2,631 20 |. 2,684 20-
Portsmouth 2,054 28 |. 2,054 28
Rat Portage Dam..... ... 228 70 1. 228 70:
Rideau River—Dredging North Branch 3,692 43 3,692 43
Rividreaux Puces..........ccco.eunn.. 267 00 |. 287 00
River Ottawa—Narrows above Pembroke 3,753 50 |. 3,753 50
do Sydenbam......................... 147 24 |. . 147 24..
do ames— Entrance Channel.......... 4,179 00 {. 4,179 00
Rondeau Harbour—McNamee & Co.’s claim. .. .. ..., 1,286 58 1,286 58 *
Sault Ste. Marie Pier.......c.oiviinieneenserenoeeesfoaceecaennns 1,269 81
Southampton Harbour.........cevvveveecneinnnn.. 3,014 32 3,014 32
Summerstown Wharf................ ieeiee e 325 00 325 00
Toronto Harbour.......oeevieiieieneranenn ceercees 39,641 01 |. 39,641 01
Wiarton  do  ...iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenaiaeaas ...l 6,638 40 {. 6,638 40
Manitoba.
Harbours Generally............. ... S Y P S 2,982 30°| 2,982 30
British Columbia.
Columbia Rwer——Im&;ovemencs above
........... $4,992 83
do —Improvements between
velstoke and Ar-
row Lake.......... 5,903 66 ’
— 10,896 49 {..,......... 0. ol 10,896 49
Coqmtlsnd RiIVer. .. i iveieenereriaceiennnnennnnnn 999 BT [..e et 999 57
Cowichan do .......cecieiiiiiiionirinnannnnass 99999 |.......... el TP 999 99
Esquimalt Graving Dock........c......... ceser cues 7,150 00 |o........... 12,719 94 | 19,869 94
TaSeT RiVEr.... .. ..ivviveieeecsnnneennnesaones 19,638 21 |............ 19,688 21
Harbours, &ec., generally....... .... ....coon coecdenaioi o il 1,691 65
* Nanaimo Ha.rbom-—Removal of Nlckel Rock. . 14971 84 |............ 14,971 84
- Skeensa River.. ....... eerierhesarearenecininannn 1,600 00 |............ 1,600 00
mass do ...... Cereraeeiesenanan teesereeenenens 302 Cvedeeaes, 302 08
Victoria Harbour. . ..... Cetevessseecernctenansanan 5,985 38 |............ 5,985 88
DrepGING PLaNT............ 18,693 41 | 29,696 79 {............ 48,390 20
267,725 76 | 370,287 75 15,056,527 03
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
struction Staff
Name of Work, and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
Improve- tenance.
ment.
, $ cts. $ cts. $ octs. $ cts.
Brought forward...... ......... 00000 [4,418,513 68 | 267,725 70 | 370,287 75 |5,056,527 03
DREDGING.
Nova Scotia.
ATISRIg. o evvnrenrenianns $ 1,405 B5
Barrington.......coovevven oo 2,484 62
CowBay.....ocvvvvienninnn 1,732 97
Lockport.......oocvnennnnnn 3,101 68
MEDOU . . s s eerer snssninen 1,163 01
Main d Dien...... .......... 2,491 66
Pictou Market Wharf. . 3,264 47
St. Peter’s Canal........... . 143 74
Tracadie. ..... cocvvvvneensns 1,171 29
, —$ 16,958 99
Prince Edward Island.
Charlottetown Ra.ilwax Wharf$ 1,178 44
Red Point Wharf (dredging
C o basIn) L. e irieeeaaeas 758 29
North Rustico............... 4,203 23
South do ............... 3,617 25
— 9,767 21 !
New Brunswick.
Dalhousie......... .. $ 2,804 13
Grand Lake....\...: 4,151 30
Kennebecasis 109 26
QOromocto.. . 2,112 81
Richibucto .. . 2,677 11
TIAVOISe. . v\ vuevnnnennnns 3,
: —_—— 14,957 95
Total Maritime Provinces.......... $ 41,674 15
Quebee.
Beauharnois....covveeneen.nn $ 76941
Charlemagne.. 924 65
Chateauguay .. .. 726 63
Como, River Ottawa 464 86
‘Hudson, do 860 7
Kiernan Bay........ 347 37
Lachine .. ... 967 92
Montebello. . 454 38
Pomtz aux Anglms, River
..................... 10 05
leére dua Loup (m bas) ..... 970 89
River Saguenay .i.......... 100 80
River St. Lawrence.......... 5,010 75
River ~do =St Loms
Rapids........
St. Placide.
Generally. . .
1442718 | - .
56,101 33 |4,418,513-58 ' 267,725 70 | 370,287 75 |5,056,527 03
20 [1890] A CL
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con-
struction. Staff
Name of Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
. Improve- tenance.
ments,
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward ........., $.56,101 33 |4,418,613 58 | 267,725 70 | 370,287 75 |5,056,527 0
DREDGING—Concluded. !
Ontario.
Bowmanville................ $ 757 81
nghton. ................ 0, 736 43
Goderich.........cocvvnen o 1,850 25
cardine. .......oeveienn.. 1,442 45
‘Kingsville ...c.oovviennnn... 307 50
Newcastle.... o.oovvereennn. 371 30
Port Hope .....coooviven onn 1,263 59
Rideau River, North Branch. 666 74
River St. Claire (Pt. Edward) 5,000 00
do Th 190 00
Southampton 158 06
ornbury 1,030 00
Generally 3,680 70
—_— 17,454 83
Manitoba.
Red River ..... ..cocvvvnenn $8,640 75
‘White Mud River.... ..... 5,335 29
Generally ........ ........ . .- 767 85
—_—— 14,743 89
British Columbia,
Fraser River ................ $4,423 30
Victoria Harbour............ 9,989 28 -
—— 14,412 58
GENERAL SERVICE .......ccov « cnennns 6,495 19
] 109,207 82 |......oiiiiiiiiin vaes. 109,207 82
SLIDES AND BOOMS.
Saguenay District........covviiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiaads
S:ggiaugwe do .. ...iiiiiaan
Ottawa do
Ottawa River Shdes
Gatineau
Madawaska do
Black do
Coulonge do
Dumoine , do
Petewawa do
Newecastle District Slides ..........ocveieiiininien, 134 07 1,371 75 1,543 92 049 74
ROADS AND BRIDGES.
Ontario.
Des Joachims Bridge........oovviiiiiin ceiie wiia 1980 1., b 19 80
Ottawa City Bndges and approaches thereto :— !
Cartier Square........... ....... $ 1,508 56
Chaudiére Bndges ............... . 1,929 23
Dufferin Bridge....... ............ 142 00
‘Carried forward ....... § 3,679 79 14,634,977 28 | 290,080 33 | 412,560 22 5,237,617 83
[1890] 21
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(1890

Con-
straction ) Staff
.Name of Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
Improve- tenance.
ments.
‘ $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward....... $ 3 579 79 14,534,977 28| 290,080 33 | 412,560 22 15,237,617 83
" ROADS AND BRIDGES—Concluded.
Ontario—Concluded.
Ottawa Cit Bmdgs and a.pproa.ches thereto—-Con
Maria Street Bridge..... ......... 30 00
Nepean Point ................ .... 237 28
Ottawa Street, New Edmburgh ..... 100 00
Sappers Bndge .................... 40 60
St. Patrick Street.................. 344 25
Union Supension Bridge........... 698 75
Wellington Street....... .......... 6,820 98 : ‘
—————f el P 11,851 65 | 11,851 65
Ottawa Iron Truss Bridge............ooiiiiin 32,036 15 |........ P P 32,085 15
Por du Fort Bndge .......................... 7200 |..ooooviiienens cinn 72 00
iver Route ©....o.oviiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiins feeiiiinnenn Jovenninnnnn 36 00 36 00
North- West Territories.
Battleford Bridge, Battle River...... e ieeeean. 22,906 70 {....ovvvini i 22,906 70
Belly River Bri ge, Lethbridge.........covvvainen. 24689 28 | .. ... ...t i 24,689 28
Bow River Bridge, near Calgary.................... L8740 |..oviiiiieieieianns 1,817 40
Edmonton and thaba.ska. Lan ing Trail Brldges 2000 {..oonenninia]ines et 20 00
Regina, Wascana Dam—TFilling in road, &ec......... 899 90 |..... ..ol i, 399 90
TELEGRAPH LINES.
Nova Scotia.
Brier and Long Islands and Digby Cable............ 15160 f.veennniiiifinenannnnn. s 151 60
Canso to Dartmouth. .................iiiiinen. 2,600 00 |..veveveenfiner vennnen 2,500 00
Cape Sable..... ............ $ 31204
eLICATOP .. vveireieinianes ~ 868 51
Low Point................... 50 00
Meat Cove ...........c. ... 1,718 19
. 8 2,948 74
Prince Edward Island. »
Prince Edward Island and Mainland (subsidy) ......[..coceeeeeeifinnnnnnn.., 1,946 66 1,946 66
New Brunswick,
Bay of Fund ................ $ 1,023 99
Escum y .............. 1’432 89
—_———$ 1,456 88
Quebec
“Anticosti........oo0eeeiunnnn $ 1,879 08
Grosse Ile Quarantine Station. 1,039 16
Magdalen Islands. ........... 2,249 59
North Shore—Towards Pointe
aux Esqmmaux .................... 10,311 88 [.ovvevvne luvneeneshunn 10,311 38
do East Bersimis.. 3,407 09 ‘
do West do .. 5,000 89
~———— $ 13,575 81
Cayried forward........$ 17,981 43 4,629,880 69 | 290,080 33 | 426,394 53 (5,346,355 55
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A. 1891
APPENDIX No. 1—Concluded.
S——— —— —
Con-
struction Staff
Name of Work. and Repairs. | and Main- Total.
- Inprove- tenance.
ments.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cta. $ cts.
+ Brought forward....... $17,981 43 4,.629,880 69 | 290,080 33 | 426,394 53 |5,346,355 55
TELEGRAPH LINES—Concluded.
Newfoundland.
Cape Ray....coooivvviins cinen ceenn 250 00
GENERALLY.... .ioivniinnnnnianennanns 8,012 15
Total telegraph lines, lower St, Lawrence $26,243 58
..................... 26,243 58 | 26,243 58
Ontario.
Pelée Island............ ... cooiiier veiiinnn] neineean e 89 56 89 56
Northe West Territories.
Banffline..........c.o0 viviiiiiiiiiiiiiee oens 8564 |............l..coil 85 64
Clark’s Crossing and Saskatoon—repoling.......... 690 00 [.........c.ufeel oLl 690 00
Telegraph linesgenerally..... .... ... cooiiiiii]onr veniniiifiiiniieennes 23,036 57 | 28,036 57
British Columbia.
Ashceroft and Barkerville.......... R P PRE PR 6,495 23 6,495 23
Agent and contingencies....:i....... ..ovieieinin diaiien wundiian, 5,209 87 5,299 87
Bonilla Point to Victoria.........coveen ceneennon. 13,046 17 |......ovviifeennnailin 13 046 17
TELRGRAPH SERVICE GENERALLY . ....cvvvnnnvnenn-fo vovenanens|icannonaenns 9,031 93 9,031 93
COLLECTION OF SLIDES AND BOOMS
DUES.
St. Maurice District.................... $1,144 87
Ottawa District...... ............ .... 6,625 37
e PO PO 7,770 24 7,770 24
MISOELLANEOUS.
Surveys and Imspections .........c.c.oveevninn i ]oeeanes Lo Ll 24,885 55 885 55
Surveys and plans of Government properties........|............lo.o 2,826 20 2,826 20
Arbitrations and Awards.......... ... .. oo sofeeeiios e, 2,166 66 2,166 66
glonument to Col. Williams—Government Grant. . 100000 {........ ... ]iaiiiint. 1,000 00
uin & Phaneuf—Compensation for loss of barge
B T70) L R PSP (N 400 00 400 00
WldO'W James (xmnt—-Gra.tmt.y, 2 months salary of )
herlate husband...... ... ..o e el 75 00 75 00
Totals.....coovveen ceis cevenn v 4,644,702 50 | 290,080 33 | 534,714 92 |5,469,497 75
WORKS AUTHORIZED BY SPECIAL ACTS
OF PARLIAMENT.
Quebec Harbour Improvements...........c.couvunne. 248,400 00 |...... ..o.ifeeeninnnn.n 248,400 00
Grand Totals................ ..... 4,893,102 50 | 290,080 33 | 534,714 72 |5,717,897 76
O. DIONNE,
Accountant.
DerPARTMENT oF PuBLIc WORKS, '
Orrawa, 29th October 1890,
[1890] 23
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APPENDIX No. 2.

REPORT OF THE CHIEF ARCHITECT.

Ref. No. 111234.
CHIEF ARcHITECT'S OFFICE,
OrTAwa, 318t August, 1890,

Sir,—I have the honour to transmit herewith the Annual Report on Public
Buildings and Works under my charge, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
THOMAS FULLER,

Chief Architect.
A. GosEIL, Eyq,,
Secretary Department of Public Works, Ottawa.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD [SLAND.
CHARLOTTETOWN.

DOMINION BUILDING,.

The town water supply was connected with the building, some additional
plumbing and water service put in, the ventilation improved and additional farni-
ture and fittings supplied and the gﬁ-ounds were laid out in grass plots, walks, &e.

Supervising architect, Mr. W. E. Harris. :

MONTAGUE.

POST OFVICE,

Some minor ordinary repairs to plaster, woodwork, &ec., were effected.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.
AMHERST.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

The walls were cleaned and tinted, and minor repairs of plumbing, plastering
and woodwork were effected.
[1890] 217
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ANNAPOLIS.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

This building which was described in my report of last year has since been
continuonsly carried on and is expected to be completed during the fiscal year
1890-91.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Chas. Jacques.

Contractors, Messrs. Rhodes, Curry & Co., Amherst, N.S.

ANTIGONISH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Some alterations were made and fitlings supplied in the Customs offices; the
heating apparatus was extended and repaired, and some repairs were done to
roof, cornice, &c.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

HATLIFAX,
'DOMINION BUILDING.,

The Postmaster’s office was altered in position, fitted up and painted, large
glass doors were put up; the Post Office Inspector’s rooms were cleaned, tinted and
furnished with oil cloth, &c., and a screen, &c., provided for Inland Revenue office.

The walls and ceilings of the offices of the Assistant Receiver General and
Savings Bank were cleaned and tinted and the woodwork painted; screens and
ventilators in windows, and carpets and book cases in offices were furnished, and
the hardwood of counters and fittings were cleaned and varnished.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E, Turnbull,

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The offices on ground floor were ceiled in wood, some shelving was put in
parcel office, and the sidewalks and the front of building were repaired.

A fire protection service with two inch hose and fittings on each floor was put in
and some minor changes made in heating apparatus,

Clerk of Works,%![r. John E. Turabull.

IMMIGRATION BUILDING.

A contract for the construction of this building at Deepwater Terminus,
Halifax, N.S., was entered into 14th April, 1890, and the building is now practically
completed. It is & one storecy wooden building 262 feet in length, but of varying
width, from 58 feet at its greatest to 7 feet at its least, and, excepting three small
offices for baggage, tickets and agent, the floor space is undivided.

~ Adjoining is an old three storey and attic wooden warehouse, 50 feet by 30 feet,
which has been fitted up and now furnishes the following accommodation :

On the ground floor a stairway, hall, kitchen, coul store, storeroom and pantry;
on the second flat a diningroom and pantry; on the third flat eight rooms and in
the attic four rooms.

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by Mr. J. C. Dumaresq, architect,
Halifax.

Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Grant.

28 [1890]
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NAPPAN.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM BUILDINGS.

The buildings described in my report of last year are practically completed.

Plans for a heating apparatus at Superintendent’s residence arein course of pre-
paration. '

Plans prepared and work carried on under the supervision of this Department,

Contractors, Messrs. Rhodes, Curry & Co.

NEW GLASGOW.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

Owing to the rapid corrosion of the boiler tubes, owing to the peculiar
properties of the water, brass tubes were substituted for the wrought iron boiler
tubes.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull,

PICTOU.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

The drain crossing the lot consisting of two 12 inch pipes carrying the town
sewage to the harbour became blocked and broken, and was abandonedy ; a new drain
by a shorter route was put in, and a catch basin placed at the point of entrance of
the city sewage.

Clerk of ‘Works, Mr, John E. Turnbull.

SYDNEY.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

This building which was described in my report of last year has since been
carried on continuously, and it is expected will be completed before the close of
the current year. '

On 10th April, 1890, a contract for the construction of a heating apparatus was
entered into,

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. T. E. Burchell, Syduey.

Contractors for the building, Messrs. Connor & Donald, Moncton.

Contractors for the heating apparatus, The Cape Breton Foundry Company.

TRURO.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Some repairs were made to plastering and to the brickwork of annex.
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

WINDSOR.

POST OFFICE BUILDING.

The drains were examined and some obstructions removed, and some slight
repairs were made to furnace,
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull,

YARMOUTH.

PUBLIC BUILDING,

Some outside painting wasdone ; some additional furniture supplied, and trifling
ordinary repairs executed,
[1890] 29
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PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.
BATHURST.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A four dial illuminated striking clock was placed in the clock tower, and some
vepairs were made to plumbing.

Clerk of Works, Mr, John E. Turnbull.

Contractor for clock, Mr. E. Chanteloup, Montreal.

CARLETON.

POST OFFICE.

Minor rei)dairs to furnituve, stoves, locks, &c., were effected under the supervision
of Mr. W. J. McCordock.

DALHOUSIE.

POST OFFICE.

This building which was described in my report of fiscal year 1888-89, is com-
pleted, and is being fitted up, furnished and supplied with a hot water heating
apparatus.

Owing to the danger from sea wash a cribwork was erected to protect the site.

Plans, &ec., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this
Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr, J. C. Barberie.
Contractor for building, Mr. J. G. Mackenzie, Dalbousie.
Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. T. Campbell, St. John.

FREDERICTON.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

Additional grading of Post Office lot was done.

Plans, &c., for a hot water apparatus to heat the building, are in course of
preparation. :

Clerk of Works, Mr, F. 8. Hilyard.

MONCTON.

POST OFFICE.

Some disintegrated bricks in gable and boundary wall were cut out and reset;
the outside of walls pointed, a new chimney flue for caretaker provided, plastering
repaired, ceilings whitened and walls tinted, a portion of the woodwork repaired
and painted, some glazing done and a number of door labels furnished.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

NEWCASTLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING, .
Owing to a change in the docks it became necessary to carry the public drain
farther out, which was done under the supervision of Mr. Henry White, Batharst.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND (ST. JOHN).

QUARANTINE STATION.

Hospital No. 1 had shingling repaired; new steps and covering to outside stair
to upper flut ; two chimneys tuken down and rebuilt; plastering repaired ; windows
glazed and painted, and new fastenings provided for doors.

30 []iSQO]
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Hospital No. 2 had windows reglazed and painted; chimneys repaired and new
fastenings provided for doors.

Wash house roof was reshingled and shingling of walls renailed where loose.

The chimney, fire places, hearths and furnaces of boiler were repaired.

Two gates to the hospital grounds were repaired and rehung.

Works carried out under the supervision of Mr. W. J. MeCordock.

PORTLAND (ST. JOHN).

POST OFFICE.

Minor repairs to counter, stove, &c., were made under the supervision of Mr. W,
J. McCordock.

ST. JOHN.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

The yard on Water street was laid with asphalt; the main sewer, north wing,
where broken, was renewed and traps supplied with cast-iron man holes, having
covers on sidewalk level. The furnaces under boilers were relined with fire brick
and supplied with new dead plates.

Repairs were made to water closets, urinals, gas and steam fittings, electric
ge]ls, hydraulic hoist, and pointing was done around windows on southern end of

uilding.

Fu%niture was supplied to the Inland Revenue, Customs and Public Works
offices, and blinds were put up to windows in long room.

= Works executed under the supervision of Mr. W. J. McCordock.

POST OFFICE.

The main sewer pipes were repaired, and a 4% inch cast-iron pipe carried from
thence through roof. New speaking tubes, linoleum mats and some articles of
furniture were supplied and the iron gates and shutters were painted.

Repairs were made to furnace, elevators and furniture.

Work carried out under the supervision of Mr. W. J. McCordock.

MARINE HOSPITAL.

Minor repairs were made to the heating apparatus, sewage pipes and roof of
building under the supervision of Mr. W. J. McCordock.

PENITENTIARY.

The brick wall of shop, and chimney and slating of prison roof were repaired
and all walls pointed; the broken glass in buildings was replaced and the sashes
painted.

Work carried out under the supervision of Mr. W. J. McCordock.

SAVINGS BANK,

A new water closet was fitted up on the second floor in place of one worn out;
gas pipes were repaired and new burners supplied, and a street ventilator placed on
main sewer.

ST. STEPHEN.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The outside brickwork was pointed, gas. fittings and a chimuney cowl supplied,
and some minor repairs done to plumbing. \
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SUSSEX,

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Exterior brickwork pointed, and in places repaired; front steps taken down
and reset; roofs of buildings and outside wood-work painted ; entrance floor and
plastering repaired. .

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

WOODSTOCK.

POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE, &C.

An illuminated striking clock has been provided and set up in the turret, and
a flag-staff on the roof of the building.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. N. Black, Architect.

Contractor for clock, Mr. E. Chanteloup, Montreal.

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.
AYLMER.

POST OFFICE. -

This building, which was previously described, has been completed and occupied.

Plans, specifications, &ec., prepared, and works carried out under the supervision
of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Thomas Symmes, Aylmer. . .

Contractor for the building and fittings, Mr. D. B. McDonald, Aylmer.

Contractors for heating apparatus, Messrs, Butterworth & Co., Ottawa.

CARILLON.

INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

This building, which was erected by the Department of Railways and Canals,
. was provided with the necessary furniture and fittings. A stable and shed 42 feet
by 15 feet, and a fuel shed 24 feet by 20 feet were constructed.

CHICOUTIMI.

MARINE HOSPITAL,

A drain from the hospital to the river, involving considerable rock cutting and
excavation, was constructed ; the building was painted throughout, the reservoir was
enlarged and some repairs done to woodwork., ‘

COATICOOXK.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, which was described in my report for fiscal year 1887-88, has
been completed, fitted up and occupied. -
Plans and specifications prepared and work superintended by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. Wright Sleeper. :
Contractor for building and fittings, Mr. F. F. Shurtleff, Coaticook.
Contractor for heating, Mr. W. Clendenning, Montreal.
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A

FRASERVILLE (RIVIERE DU LOUP).
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

On the 27th November a contract was entered into for the construction of this:
building on the corner of Iberville and Champlain streets. The building is to be two-
stories,%)asement and attic) 62 feet by 35 feet, to contain on the grofid floor the Post
Office and Examining Warehouse, on the first floor the Customs and Inland Revenue
Offices ; on the attic floor the caretaker’s apartments and in the basement the heating
apparatus and fuel.

The outside walls are to be of stone, the partitions, floors and roofs of brick.

Plans, &e., prepared and work superintended by this Department,

- Clerk of Works, Mr, Elzéar Marquis, Fraserville.

Contractor, Mr. Alfred Lortie, Quebec.

GROSSE ISLE.

QUARANTINE STATION.

Repairs were made at the Sick Division Quarters, to the roofs, clap-boarding,
outside doors, plaster, &c., and the walls outside painted and inside coloured. Eaves,
gutters and fall pipes were supplied to gallery of brick hospital, and the doors, locks
and ventilators repaired. Fences were constructed around bleaching ground and
sergeants quarters and a new wall at western division.

Works carried out under the supervision of this Department.

Contractor, Mr. Alfred Lortie, '5uebec.

HULL.

POST OFFICE.

Anp additional amount of grading was done, the entrance gates were repaired ;
and additions to and alterations of plumbing executed.

JOLIETTE.

POST OFFICE, &C.

This building is now completed and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-
ment,

Clerk of Works, Mr. A. Durand, Joliette.

Contractor, Mr. Geo. Beaucage, St. Alban, P, Q.'

LACHINE.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

A coutract for the construction of this building on lot No. 253, fronting on S,
Joseph street, was entered into 30th September, 1889. The building consists of a
main portion 40 feet by 30 feet and an annex 20 feet by 11 feet, and will consist of a
ground floor for the Post Office, and first and attic stories for the caretaker’s apart-
ments.

The walls are to be of stone; the partitions, floors and roof of wood. The front
gable will carry a wooden clock turret with four ogenings for dials,

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. Jos. Metsayer, Lachine,

Contractor, Mr, Jos. Fitzpatrick, Joliette, :

[1890] 33
9—3



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

MONTREAL,

CUSTOM HOUSE,

Extensive renewals of metal roof covering, ornamental vases and woodwork of
eaves were carried out. A one-storey wooden building, 25 feet 6 inches by 13 feet
6 inches, on a stone foundation, was built at the lower entrance of the Lachine
Canal for the trallsaction of Customs business.

Alterations of plumbing and boiler were made; some new gas fittings were
supplied; a new and larger gas main was put in cellar; repairs were effected in
connection with plumbing, coal waggon, &c., and new screws and marble slabs
were provided for coils in two of the tower rooms.

Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE,

Repairs to roof and skylight were effected.

The breeches stack of boilers wus renewed, as also the iron smoke stack of
chimney, and the old drain from Express office to street. The engines were
thoroughly repaired and renewed; the shajting altered and repaired; the elevators
and elevator gangways and hatches repaired; galvanized iron roofing repaired; new
gas pendants placed in wine room and auction room; new coils put in drugs and
chemicals room; all valves were over-hauled and repaired, and some general repairs
done to heating apparatus.

Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson.

INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

The heating apparatus piping in basement was covered with asbestos covering,
and minor repairs were made to plumbing.

POST OFFICE.

A safe was supplied for the Northern Receiving office; the Assistant Postmaster’s
office was enlarged; a wire guard was placed at the east entrance; a new bag rack
was supplied; and a large amount of general jobbing effected.

The hot water furnaces were taken down, repaired, altered, re-erected and
recased in brick, and a new radiator was put up in the stamp office; water closets in
general office and inspector’s office, were cleaned and repaired, and a new sink and
two new basins were put in. ‘

A Well's engine was put in fcr use as a motor for letter elevator, and the pulley
belt repaired. The passenger elevator was repaired, provided with new chains,
steipper rope, counter balance pins, water main, stays and bracket. Two additional
telephones were provided.

Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson.

QUEBEC.
CITADEL,

Portions of the metal roof covering of His Kxcellency’s quarters and some
blinds of the ball-room, all of which were damaged by a wind storm, were repaired
under the supervision of Mr. J, F. Peachy, Architect.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

The woodwork of ground floor rooms and hall, and the attic passage, were
cleaned and repainted ; the principal windows of the building were furnished with
blinds, and some repairs made to safe door, under the supervision of Mr, J. F.
Peachy, Architect.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE,

The chimneys were repaired.
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IMMIGRATION BUILDING.

The drainage and water service were augmented and improved ; the metal roof
covering where destroyed by storm renewed; the plastering repaired and additional
benches for the use of the immigrants provided.

Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy, Quebec.

MARINE HOSPITAL.

Urinals have been placed in each flat, and further repairs made to plaster of
walls and ceilings.
Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy.

POST OFFICE.

Changes and additions to partitions, fittings, &c., of ground floor were made ;
screens for windows supplied, an iron partition was put in vault, additions were
made to plumbing, some cleaning was done, and the gas fittings and plaster repaired.

Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy.

ST. HYACINTHE.

POST, &C., BUILDING,

Plans for this building, which is to be situated on the corner of Girouard and
St. Joseph streets, are completed.

ST. JEROME.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, which was previously described, has heen completed, fitted up,
furnished and occupied.

Plans and specifications prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. J, Matte,

Contractor for building and fittings, Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick, Joliette.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. E. Chanteloup, Montreal.

ST. VINCENT DE PAUL.

PENITENTIARY.

The following works were carried out by convicet labour, under the supervision of
this Department :

Western Dormitory Wing.—This portion, which is built of cut ashlar inside and
out, 146 feet by 46 feet and 35 feet high above base, containing 120 cells, is now
completed.

Boundary Wall—This wall, to be 22 feet, 6 inches in height, will eventually
enclose a plot of ground 686 feet by 615 feet, and is commenced on the northside of
the enclosure, where 200 cubic yardsare done. 1t will be of heavy cut ashlar, of which
20,000 cubic feet and 350 feet lineal of coping are cut, '

_ Keepers’ Hall.—Owing to the large glass surface in roof cooling the air and great
difficulty in heating air inside, a glazed ceiling was put in.

Main Building Generally—The brick arches of ceilings east and west dormi-
tories, were pointed and painted ; extensive repairs were made to the Protestant

hapel; a two-inch plank partition 90 feet by 12 feet, part of which is glazed, and
sliding put up between the dining hall and kitchen ; a self-acting bath and water closet
Was fitted up in the hospital, and the floor of the engine house has been replaced by
Six-inch flagging.

Steam Duct.—A cutstone duct was built 200 feet long by 4 feet by 3 feet, leading
from the boiler house to the carpenters’ shop.
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"7 Guards dwellings.—Stables and sheds were built; 200 yards of 9-inch drain laid
from the buildings to the creek, and general repairs made.

Warden's residence.—An ice house, 36 feet by 24 feet, was built; a glazed double
ceiling was put in conservatory, and 167 yards of 6-inch drain pipe laid to river,

Deputy Warden's residence.—A wooden fuel shed, 20 feet by 14 feet, was built,

Piggery.—20 new styes were built, bringing the accommodation up to 250 pigs,
and the exterior of the building was painted.

Water supply.—A cribwork pier, 60 feet by 25 feet by 15 feet, was built to pro-
tect the waterworks pipe from the ice shove.

Plans prepared and work supervised by Mr. John Bowes, Architect.

THREE RIVERS.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

Repairs were made to the retaining wall of the Platon property, and to the roof,
inside plumbing, painting and glazing of the Custom house.
Superintending Architect, Mr, O. Z. Hamel, Three Rivers.

\ POST OFFICE,

Some minor repairs to painting, glazing and woodwork were effected, and furni-
ture was supplied to the Post Office Inspector’s office.
Superintending Architect, Mr. O. Z. Hamel, Three Rivers,

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

ALMONTE.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING,

The construction of this building, which was described in my last report, has
been carried on since the date of contract, and, it is expected, will be completed dur-
g the fiscal year 1890-91.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by the Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Andrew Bell, Almonte.

Contractor, Mr. Robert Cameron, Almonte,

y BERLIN.

POST OFFICE.

The heating mains in basement were covered with felting, &c., some minor
changes were made in the heating apparatus and a connection made with the town
water supply.

BRAMPTON.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

This building which was described in my report of last year, is completed, fitted
up, furnished and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. J. A. Trimble.

Contractors, Messrs. Perry, Musson & MacCullough, Brampton.

CAYUGA.

POST OFFICE.

Building completed and occupied.

Plans, &ec., prepared and work supervised by this Department.
Contractors for building and fitting, Messrs. Draper Bros., Caledonia.
Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. Adam Clark, Hamilton,
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COBOURG.

POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE, &C.

The additions referred to in my report of last year have been completed, and
the building furnished with a new hot water heating apparatus.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Wm. Battell.

Contractors for additions, Messrs. R. & J. Henderson, Cobourg.

Contractors for heating apparatus, Messrs. Garth & Co., Montreal, P. Q.

DUNDAS.

POST OFFICE, &C.
New door spring, additional furniture and stoves were supplied.

GANANOQUE.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

A granolithic sidewalk was laid down on the street line, and some repairs done
to heating furnace.
Contractor for sidewalk, Mr. Robt. Forsyth.

POST OFFICE,

A granolithic sidewalk was laid down along the street line.
Contractor, Mr. Robt. Forayth, Montreal.

~ GODERICH.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING,

This building, which was described in my last report, is expected to be com-
pleted at an early date. . Plans, &c., have been prepared and a contract entered into
for the construction of a hot water heating apparatus.

Plans, &c., prepared, and work supervised by this Department,

5 (;Supei'vising Architect (since decease of Mr. G. F. Durand), Mr. Joseph Henry,
ondon.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Edward Sharman, Goderich.

Contractors for building, Messrs, Tambling & Jones, London.

Contractors for heating apparatus, Messrs. Garth & Co., Montreal.

GUELPH.
POST OFFICE.

The attics were fitted up for use of the caretaker, the basement water closots
removed, and a new set of ventilated water closets constructed in attic under the
supervision of this Department.

Architect, Mr. D. B. Dick, Toronto.

HAMILTON.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

An illuminated 4 dial striking clock was fitted up in tower; the eaves of the rear
of main building and Examining Warehouse were provided with troughs and the
roofs and vallies repaired ; the boiler house floor was repaired; two new coils were
provided in attic; plate glass panels were put in Gas office door; the fanlights on
the Custom House floor, and minor repairs done to doors, locks, &c.
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LINDSAY..

POST OFFICE, CUSTOMS AND INLAND REVENUE OFFICES,

This building is now completed and occupied.
Plans and specifications prepared and works supervised by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. Walters, Lindsay.
5 Contractor for construction of building and for fittings, &c., Mr. P. Navin,
indsay. '
Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. E. Woods, Lindsay.

NAPANEE.

POST OFFICK, CUSTOM HOUSE AND INLAND REVENUE.

This building has been completed, fitted up, furnished and occupied.

A hot water heating system has been supplied; and a four dial illuminated
striking clock placed in the tower.

Plans, &o., prepared and works supervised by this Department.

Supervising Architect, Mr. I'. Bartlett, Napanee.

Clerk of Works, Mr. J. K. Herring, Napanee.

Contractor for building, fittings and heating, Mr. Geo. Newlands, Kingston,

Contractor tor clock, Mr. F. W. Smith, Napanee.

ORANGEVILLE,
POST OFFICE BUILDING.

A new gasoline tank was supplied and connected with carbonetter; a new main
supplying 3 new lights was put in, and some repairs done to the existing piping.

OTTAWA.
CENTRAL EXPERIMENTAL FARM (NEAR OTTAWA).

The greenhouses and seed store, cottage No. 1, and the stable described in my
report of last year were completed during the fiscal year 1889-90. :

A silo 40 feet by 20 feet and 24 feet in height, was counstructed as a lean-to at
western end of barn, ‘

Two cottages similar to No. 1 cottage, described in my report of last year, were
erected, one each at two of the entrance gateways.

A 14 storey wooden building, 85 feet by 55 feet, for use as an implement and
harness shed, was constructed at the southern side of the barnyard.

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Contractor for implement shed, cottages and silo, Mr, Wm. Stuart.

EASTERN BLOCK, DEPARTMENTAL BUILDING.

A steel and iron burglar-proof vault, for the use of the Finance Department,
was erected in the north-western corner of the eastern end of the building adjoining
the original vault. It measures 22 feet 6 inches by 17 feet 9 inches, by 13 feet 3
inches in height, and has an iron gallery 3 feet in width, 7 feet from the floor; on
the four sides of the room, approached by two circular iron staircases. The outside
walls, ceiling, vestibule and floor are 3% inches in thickness of metal plates, 1% inches
of which is 5 ply welded chrome steel and iron plates, tempered and chilled drill
proof. There are inside and outside burglar-proof doors, with both time and
combination locks.

The skylights throughout have been repaired, reglazed and painted. Repairs
were made to the roof, cement floors and plastering, the window shutters were
repaired and painted; alterations were made to fittings, the outside walls were
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pointed, and the offices of the Justice Department on the ground floor cleaned,
tinted and painted.
‘Works carried on under the supervision of this Department.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

The brick outer walls of the conservatory and the stove houses being disin-
tegrated by damp and frost, were taken down and replaced by walls of sawn cedar
sheeted outside and in with V jointed pine boards; the plant tables in these buildings
and the forcing pit being rotten, were renewed, and conservatory camelia and stove
houses, and vinery were repainted externally.

1,275 lineal feet of boundary sence were built on back road, and 6,700 lineal feet
of boundary fence painted two coats.

A new W, C. was fitted up in the coachman’s apartments, about 200 lineal feet of
gas pipe trench were opened to find and stop leakage, the chimneys were swept, and
the furnaces, stoves and pipes cleaned and repaired.

The studio walls were wainscotted, stained and varnished; 1,600 yards distem-
pering were done in kitchen wing and basement of main house; oil cloth on pantry
floor and baize on main stairs, front hall stairs and private stair were renewed ; worn-
out holland blinds on 12 windows were renewed; and a quantity of linen, crockery,
glassware and kitchen utensils was supplied to replace articles worn outor broken.

2,150 inches of coppers were re-tinned. Repairs were made to sidewalks
throughout; brickwork of laundry building, where destroyed by frost, re-set ; broken
glass replaced ; about 400 cane-seated chairs and other furniture were supplied, and
general repairs in connection with the annual house-cleaning effected.

4,150 yards of carpet and matting were taken up, beaten, repaired and re-laid,
and all the necessary preparations and work in connection with the various enter-
tainments carvied out.

A contract for the maintenance of the garden, lawns, propagating houses, and
grounds generally, was entered into for one year and they were kept in an efficient
manner by the contractors.

Works, &ec., carried out uuder superintendence of this Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. Wm. Hutchison.

Contractors for conservatory and grounds, Messrs, Sorley and Sims.

MAJOR'S HILL PARK.

A contract was entered into for one year for the maintenance of these grounds,
and they have been kept in good order and some improvements made.
Contractor, Mr. L. Garello.

NEW DEPARTMENTAL BUILDINGS, WELLINGTON STREET.

During the fiscal year, the Departments of Agriculture and Post Office were
moved into this building, the Department of Indian Affairs having been previously
installed, and supplementary fittings and furniture provided.

Plans, &e., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Samuel Adams.

PARLTAMENT BUILDING.

The slate covering was removed from the front roof extending from the Eastern
to the Western wing and was replaced by copper ; the large sky-lights on Commons
Chamber, were replaced by others of copper.

Extensive repairs were made to shelving and other woodwork in Library ; sky-
lights were repaired, repainted, and, in part, reglazed, and general repairs were made
to cement floors, plastering, painting, slating and galvanized iron work under the
supervision of this Department.
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PARLIAMENT GROUNDS.

A contract for the maintenance of the grounds for the period of one year, was
entered into and has been satisfactorily carried out under the supervision of this
branch of the Department.

Contractor, Mr. N. Robertson.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, REPAIRING STREETS, &C.

Scraping, cleaning and repairs were done to roadways of East and West Canal
Streets, Nepean Point and Wellington street. The sidewalks and crossings of
Wellington street, Cartier Square and St. Patrick street were repaired; the grass
of bounlevards at Geological Museum and Cartier Square was kept clipped; the
ashes were removed from the Langevit: Block, Museums and Printing Bureau, and
the yards of these buildings kept clean.

The various roadways, sidewalks, footpaths, roofs and yards were kept elear of
snow during the winter,

PRINTING BUREAU,

This building is completed, fitted up and occupied.

Plans and specifications prepared and work superintended by this Department.
Superintending Architeet, Mr. J. P. M. Lecourt.

Clerk of works, Mr, H. L. Pinard.

Contractor, Mr. John E. Askwith, Ottawa.

WESTERN BLOCK, DEPARTMENTAL BUILDING.

The Post Office Department was removed to the Langevin Block and the offices
thus rendered vacant were assigned to the Department of Inland Revenue, except-
ing a small number which fell to the Department of Militia and Defence.

These offices and those of the Departments of Railways and Canals, Marine,
Customs and Public Works were cleaned, tinted and painted, and a chemical labora-
tory with all necessary fittings and fixtures fitted up for the Department of Inland
Revenue.

The skylights throughout were repaired, re-glazed and painted; the shutters
were repaired and re-painted, and some pointing done to outside walls.

Works carried out under the supervision of this Department.

VICTORIA HALL. ,

A close board fence, painted, was constructed along the O’Connor street and
Queen Street fronts of the vacant property, and outside wooden porches furnished
for the basement of the building.

PEMBROKE.

POST OFFICE,
Completed and occupied.
Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department,
Clerk of Works, Mr, J. I, Morris, P.L.S., Pembroke.
. Contractors for construction of building, Messrs. Munro, Beatty & Grieve, Pem-
roke. :
Contractors for heating apparatus, Messrs. Dunlop & Chapman, Pembroke,

STRATFORD.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

A two storey and basement addition, measuring 46 feet by 14 feet, was con-
structed at the eastern side for the use of the Post Office Inspector. There is a
basement containing a furnace room, a fuel room and a W, C.; a ground floor con-
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taining a secretary’s office and ap inspector’s office, and a first floor containing a
stationery office and a clerks office.

The two lower stories are of stone and the upper of brick. Fittings and
furniture and a separate hot water apparatus were provided.

Plans, &ec., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Superintending Architect, Mr. J. R. Kilburn, Stratford.

Contractors, Messrs. Scrimgeor Bros., Stratford.

TORONTO.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Usual and ordinary minor repairs were done to the building.

Repairs were made to plumbing, heating and gas services; a new gas pipe was
run to the gauger’s room and internal walls of basement whitewashed.

Superintending Architect, Mr. D, B. Dick, Toronto.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE,

A new coal shed was built and some general repairs executed.

Exhaust pipe of engine was extended above roof of main building, a new coil sup-
plied in bardware department, a number of leaking pipes were removed and replaced
by new, the plumbing received minor repairs, all the valves were repaired and the
boilers were repaired. Specifications, &e., prepared and work supervised by Mr, D.
B. Dick, Architect.

IMMIGRATION BUILDING.

The drainage being bj means of an open ditch, on the recommendation of the
Sanitary Inspector a new sewer through grounds was put in, and under the super-
vision of Mr, D. B. Dick, Architect, Toronto.

INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

A large quantity of old worn and faulty pipe in heating apparatus was
replaced ; the valves throughout were repacked, the plumbing subjected to minor
repairs and the basement inside walls whitewashed, under the supervision of this
Department,’

POST OFFICE.

The plumbing of the water closets in yard was taken out and replaced by
modern sanitary plumbing, general repairs were done to the building and fittings,
and a fire escape farnished.

Split and worn heating pipes were removed from two radiators and from
some of the basement mains and branches; all valves was repacked and the boilers
were whitewashed.

Supervising architect, Mr. D. B. Dick, Toronto.

PORT COLBORNE.

POST OFFICE.
A building for the storage of coal and wood was erected.

PRESCOTT,

POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE AND INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

These buildings are completed, supplied each with a hot water heating system
and are expected to be fitted up ready for occupation at an early date.
Plans, &c., prepared and works superintended by this Department,
Clerk of Works, Mr. David Barr, Prescott,
Contractors for the building, Messrs. Cairns, Ward & Steele, Prescott.
Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. Edward Smart, Brockville.
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PETERBOROUGH.
POST OFFICE.

A striking clock, having four illuminated dials, has been fitted up in the tower
by Mr. E. Chanteloup of Montreal, under the supervision of this Department.
Architect in charge, Mr. Jno. E. Belcher, Peterborough.

PORT ARTHUR.
POST OFFICE.
Negbtiations with a view to obtain a site are in progress.
POST OFFICE INSPECTOR'S OFFICE.

Stoves, stovepipes and furniture were supplied and ordinary repairs done to
office.

ST. THOMAS.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

An iron fence on a stone wall was crected on the front street ; extensions of the
heating apparatus were effected.

Repairs were made to roof and eaves gutters, a new chimney flue was built;
some sanitary re-arrangement of the plumbing made, the drain repaired; a new
enlarged general delivery circle and a stamp vendor’s counter were constructed, and
some fittings supplied to the Customs, under the supervision of this Department.

Superintending Architect, Mr. Chas. Horton, St. Thomas.

TRENTON.
POST OFFICE, &C.

Bailding completed and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr, Geo. Crowe.

Contractor, Mr. Walter Alford, Belleville.

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.
BRANDON.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM BUILDING.

On 21st September, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of
the barn and stagling, and on the 21st October, 1889, for the construction of the Sup-
erintendent's residence, both of which are now in progress.

The barn and stabling is similar to that at Indian Head, which was described in
my report for last year,

The Superintendent’s residence is to be a two-storey and attic wooden building
on a stone foundation, having, on the ground floor, a hall, a sitting-room, a dining-
room, an office, a kitchen and a shed; on the first floor four bedrooms, and in the
attic three bedrooms.

Plans, &e., prepared and work supervised. by this Department.

Superintending Architect, Mr. W. B. Marshall, Brandon.

POST OFFICE.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, has been carried
on steadily, but is not expected to be completed until spring of 1891.

Plans for a heating apparatus are being prepared.
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Plans and specifications prepared by this Department.
Superintending architect, Mr. W. B. Marshall, Brandon.
Clerk of Works, Mr. F. J. Chubb.

Coutractor, Mr. James Hanbury, Brandon.

ST. PAUL'S.

INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL,

The buildings for this institution were described in my last report and are now
completed, and school building fitted up with a warming and ventilating apparatus,

A drain from the school building to the Red River was put in.

Plans, &c., prepared by this Department.

Supervision by D. Smith, Clerk of Works, Winnipeg.

Contractors for construction of building, Messrs., Madden & Bruce, Winnipeg.

Contractors for drain, Messrs. Rourke & Cass, Winnipeg.

Contractors for the heating and ventilating, Messrs. Smead & Dowd, Toronto,
Ont,

STONY MOUNTAIN.

MANITOBA PENITENTIARY.

Prison Building—A brick passageway between the prison and laundry was
erected ; the boilers were repaired and some painting and kalsomining was done.

Surgeon’s and Chaplains' Residences.—These buildings which were previously
described are completed, fitted up with hot water heating apparatus, bells and ward-
robes, and provided with stables and fencing.

Guards' Cottages.—A summer kitchen to each of six kitchens was erected.

Smoke-house.—A smoke house, 12 feet by 12 feet, was erected.

General.—A double floor was built in blacksmith’s shop and some general
repairs made,

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, D. Smith, Winnipeg.

Contractors for construction of Surgeon’s and Chaplains’ residences, Messrs.
Tobin & O’Keefe, Ottawa.

Contractors for heating apparatus, Messrs. Garth & Co., Montreal.

WINNIPEG.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

Minor repairs were made to drainage, storm sashes and blinds.
Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith. ‘

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE,

A heating apparatus was provided, and some minor repairs effected to gas-fit-
tings, storm sashes, &c.

Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith.
POST OFFICE.

A stone sidewalk, 18 feet in width on Main street’ and 10 feet on Owen street,
was constructed around this building. The water supply being deficient, storage
and compression tanks were put in by J. E. Gelley, contractor.

Additions were made to the heating surafce, a storeroom was put in basement, a
ladies’ dressing room in Post Office, a glass partition and bells and speaking tube
were provided, the letter hoist was improved and various ordinary repairs effected.

Works carried on under the supervision of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, D. Smith,
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NORTH;WEST TERRITORIES.
CALGARY.
BARRACKS.

The Barracks building, referred to in previous reports, was completed, and a new
guard room, 58 feet by 24 feet, containing 12 cells, erected.

Plans, &ec., prepared and works carried out under the supervision of this
Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. D. Johnson, Calgary.
Contractors, Messrs, Kennedy & Heney, Ottawa.

COURT HOUSE,

This building, which was described in my report of last year, is now completed,
and is being furnished with a hot water heating apparatus,

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. D. Johuson, Calgary.

Contractor for the building, Mr. J. G. McCallum, Calgary.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. W. D. McDonald, Winnipeg, Man.

INDIAN HEAD.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM BUILDINGS.

The buildings referred to and described in my report of last year are completed
and occupied. .

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-
ment.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Angus McKay.

Contractor, Mr, Isaac R. Reilly, Regina.

LETHBRIDGE.
BARRACKS,

A one and a half storey hospital building, 44 feet by 3C feet, was erected, and a
kitchen wing to same is in course of construction.

An addition to recreation room, 36 by 12 feet, with cellar, was erected for can-
tesn purposes. ! ‘

wo of the barrack rooms were lined and ceiled with building paper, and 1 in.

dressed lumber, oiled and varnished. Plastering was repaired generally, and kitchen
kalsomined.,

Plaus, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-
ment.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina.

MACLEOD.

BARRACKS.

The well was deepened and improved; and a tank of 10 foet stave by 8 feet 6
inches diameter and 6 teet in the ground placed near to it.
Plans, &ec., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina.
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MOOSOMIN.
COURT HOUSE.

On the 18th day of April last a contract was entered into for the construction
of this building on Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6, Block 25, and the works are now in progress.

The building will consist of a wooden-two-storey main building, 65 feet by 33
feet, on a stone foundation, and a one-storey kitchen, 22 feet by 13 feet, resting on
blocks. On the ground floor will be a guard room, a constable’s room, two non-
commissioned officers’ offices, a sheriff’'s office, a clerk’s office, two stairway halls,
five cells and two brick vaults, one each for sheriff and clerk; on the first floor will
be the court room, and a room each for judge, jury, counsel and witnesses. The
basement will contain heating apparatus, fuel, &c.

" Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-

ment.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Chas. Taylor, Moosomin.,

Contractors, Messrs. Williams & Willoughby, Regina.

POLICE BARRACKS GENERALLY.

Various and numerous repairs and renewals, not elsewhere enumerated in this
report, were carried out by police labour at the police posts at Calgary, Fort Mac-
leod, Lethbridge, Maple Creek and Regina, under the superintendence of this
Department.

QU’APPELLE.

IMMIGRANT SHED.

A portion of this building was fitted up for a eourt room, an office for the Clerk
of the court, a barristers’ room and a jury room, and accommodation arranged for the
North-West Mounted Police, who have charge of the building. The well was cleaned,
the pump-house repaired and furnished with a new pump, and the verandah roof
renewed,.

Works carried out under the supervision of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, H. J. Peters,

REGINA.
BARRACKS.

Two stables, each 75 feet by 30 feet, with an addition 75 feet by 30 feet for
saddle room, and one stable 50 feet by 28 feet, were erected.

A frame 50 feet high by 28 feet by 28 feet at base, supported on concrete and
stonework,foundation, to carry the 50,000 gallons of water supply, and fire protec-
tion tank, was put up. .

Five water tanks were put in good order; wood box drains were laid from
riding hall to water tank and to main drain to carry off water from roof, and a
quantity of stone supplied for proposed new foundations.

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-
ment. : :

Clerk of Works, Mr, H. J. Peters, Regina.

IMMIGRANT SHED.

This building, 50 feet by 24 feet, with kitchen and latrines, was erected and
occupied. Owing to the cold weather during the early summer it was found neces-
sary to build a chimney on the main building,

Plans, &ec., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, H, J, Peters, .
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INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

This building which was described in my report of last year is now completed
and supplied with a Smead-Dowd system of heating, closets and ventilation.

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the superintendence of this
Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters.

Contractors for erection of building., Messrs. Williams & Willoughby, Regina.

Contractors for heating, &c., The Smead-Dowd Co., Toronto. ,

NEW RESIDENCE FOR THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR.

This building, described in my last report, has been in progress since date of
contract, and is expected to be completed during this summer. ‘

Plans, &e., for hot water heating apparatus are prepared.

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this Depart-
ment. :
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters.
Contractor, Mr, Wm, Henderson, Regina.

i GAOL AND LUNATIC ASYLUM.

A cess pit, 15 feet by 10 feet by 8 feet, was formed 150 feet west of the building
and the drain connected with it.

A water system, to supply from the Wascana Dam, and a steam heating
and cooking service, are nearly completed; a boiler house, and two pairs of
cottages, the latter for gaol officials, are in course of construction. The well has
been cleaned and repaired, and a new pump put in.

Works carried out under the supervision of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, '

OLD GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

A wind mill and tank, a forcing house 52 feet by 20 feet, and a bay window to
private drawing room, and a well house, were built ; the conservatory was altered ;
two grates were put in, a well was sunk, a large quantity of papering was done, the
roof and outbuildings were repaired and furniture and carpets supplied.

Work done under the supervision of this Department. .

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina.

POST OFFICE.

A well was sunk, a pump put in, and a well-house, a one-storey outbuilding, and
latrines 20 feet by 16 feet, were built; 363 feet lineal of close board fence im rear and
sides of property, and 140 feet lineal of wire fencing on front and south side, were
built; a circular cistern 8 feet stave and 6 feet diameter, was built, sunk in ground
and connected with eaves-troughs and fall pipes of house ; awnings for two windows
were provided, the entrance doors painted, the building banked with earth, and
some general repairs executed.

ork done under the supervision of this Department,
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina. :

RIDING HALL,

This building, which was described in my report of last year, was completed.
Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina.
Contractor, Mr. J. Stewart, Ottawa.
46 - [1890]



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

WHITEWOOD.

IMMIGRANT SHED.

An immigrant shed, 50 feet by 24 feet, on plan, with an addition for kitchen and
latrines, was erected, under the supervision of this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters, Regina.

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.
ALBERT HEAD.

QUARANTINE STATION.

The landing stairs, eaten by teredo, were replaced ; the wooden gutters of the
buildings were repaired, the tank floor renewed and the hydraulic ram overhauled.
Works carried out under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C. E.

KAMLOOPS.

INDIAN INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

The buildings in connection with this institution were described in my report
of last year, and are now completed and occupied.

Plans, &c., prepared by this Department, and work carried out under the super-
vision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

Clerk of Works, J. T. Burnyeat.

Contractor, Mr. John D. Ross, Kamloops.

KUPER.

. INDIAN INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

The buildings of this institution were referred to in my report of last year, and
are now completed.

Plans, &c., prepared by this Department, and work carried out under the super-
vision of F. C. Gamble, C.K.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Walter Ford.

Contractor, Mr. Wm. Rockett.

NANAIMO,

POST OFFICE, &C.

Inside water closets were provided for the Post Office and Savings Bank, and the
outside earth closets converted into water closets and urinal; the whole of the
interior was kalsomined or whitewashed, and some minor repairs were effected.

Work done under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

NEW WESTMINSTER.

PENITENTIARY.

The Warden’s residence, which was described in my report of last year, is com-.
- Ppleted and occupied.

Work carried out under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

Contractors, Messrs, Ackerman Bros., New Westminster.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Window guards for tront doors and windows were: provided, and minbr repairs
effected to windows, locks, &c., under the uﬁrer,vision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.
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OLD CUSTOM HOUSE.,

A new fence and sidewalk, in accordance with the requirements of the city of
New Westminster, was erected on Columbia street, in front of the old Custom House
lot, under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

VANCOUVER.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING,

Plans and specifications for the construction of this building are now prepared,
and it is expected that the contract will be awarded at an early date.

VICTORIA.
“g” BATTERY BARRACKS,

On 3rd February, 1890, a contract was entered into for the construction of the
officers’ quarters, a two and one-half storey wooden building on a stone foundation,
210 feet long by 36 feet, exclusive of kitchen wings, It will consist of & Command-
ant’s house, a Major’s house, a Surgeon’s house, a lst and 2nd Lieutenant’s house, a
mess house, two houses for attached officers and one for a Quartermaster,

Plans, &e., prepared, and work supervised by this Department.

Supervisor, Mr..F. C. Gamble, C.K,, Victoria.

Contractors, Messrs. Woodworth & Munday.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Some new furniture and electric bells were put in, the vault of Inland Revenue
Department was provided with new cement floor and shelving, and repairs effected
to plumbing and metal roof covering.

POST OFFICE,

Repairs were made to gas fittings, furniture, roof, &c.; chairs and carpets were
furnished the postmaster, and some minor ordinary repairs effected.
Works executed under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

GENERALLY.

Usual and ordinary repairs were executed, sundry articles of furniture and
fittings provided, cleaning, colouring, painting and minor alterations and improve-
ments ettected to a large number of buildings not herein referred to.

LIGHTING DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The lighting of the various Dominion buildings, excepting at Ottawa, and the
enitentiaries and military buildings, is under the control of this branch of the
epartment. Of these buildings 62 were lighted by gas, 14 by incandescent electric

ligﬁt, 1 by gasoline and the remainder by coal oil, while at several of the last men-
tioned the entrance is-illuminated by an arc light outside,

‘WATER FOR DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The water supply for the various public buildings, excepting at Ottawa, and the
enitentiaries and military buildings, is controlled by this branch of this Department.
ifty-nine buildinﬁs at thirty-eight localities have water services connected with the

water supply of the local water works companies, the remainder being in general
supplied with wells, pumps and tanks.
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HEATING DOMINION BUILDINGS (FUEL).

Tenders were invited by public advertisement for the supply of coal at ninety-
one of the public buildings, and coal and wood supplied to about one hundred build-
ings in all.

-

ENGINEERS, ENGINEMEN, FIREMEN, &c., PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The various engineers, enginemen, firemen and caretakers, and the heating
apparatus of Dominion Public Buildings, with the exception of those at the various
Benitentiaries and the military buildings, are under the control of this branch of the

epartment.

1890 49
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APPENDIX No. 3.

LIST

O¥

ENGINEERS, ENGINEMEN, FIREMEN AND CARETAKERS

PUBLIC BUILDINGS THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION,

GIVING

DATE OF APPOINTMENT, SALARY PAID, &C.
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- APPENDIX No. 4.

REPORT

ON THE

HEATING APPARATUS, GAS, WATER AND BELL SERVICES, &,

IN THE

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, OTTAWA,

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30te JUNE, 1890,

BY

JOHN R. ARNOLDI. Chief Mechanical Engineer.
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APPENDIX No. 4,

Ref. No. 110,449, ;
DerartmMENT OF PuBLic WoRKS,
MEecrANICAL ENGINEER'S OFFICE,
, Orrawa, 31st July 1890,
Sir,—I have the honour to report as follows in reference to the Public Buildings,
Ottawa, during the fiscal year 1890, viz. :—

PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS,

Ordinary maintenance only was required to the general apparatus of the
heating, boilers, water, gas, bells, electric light and ventilating services of this build-
ing, during the fiscal year.

The making of a new caucus room in the west corridor of the Commons, necessi-
tated a slight addition to the ventilating apparatus, as at times, the room was very
crowded. Suitable alterations to the electric light were also made in thisroom, and
the “Press,” who were formerly located here, being moved to premises in the
extreme north-west corner of the building, additional electric light wires and fixtures
were provided in these premises also.

'he room occapied by the Hansard being very limited, and. the occupants very
numerous, especially during night Sessions, it was found necessary to carry a large
ventilator from this room through the roof to the outer air.

The changes created by the mew caucus and press rooms, necessitated
considerable alterations of the lavatories and many of the old style pan water closets,
were replaced by modern sanitary appliances,

EAST AND WEST BLOCKS,

The heating apparatus, boilers, water, gas and bell services required nothing
beyond ordinary maintenance. .

The old style pan water closets, with which these buildings are fitted up, have
been a great many years in use, and their present condition is not of the most desir-
able nature. Steps are being taken to replace them, as quickly as the work can be
performod, with the most recent and approved sanitary appliances.

SUPREME COURT.

With the exception of an improved sanitary water closet, no work was required

to be done in this building beyond ordinary maintenance.
OTTA'WA POST OFFICE AND CUSTOMS HOUSE.

The water closets and lavatory of ‘this building owing to want of space, are
placed in very limited premises, and it was fonnd necessary to carry large ventila-
tors therefrom to the outside of the roof. Since this was done the atmosphere of the
premises is much improved, and no complaints are heard.

This building contains a number of old pan water closets, which ought to be
replaced by modern sanitary fpattern.

The general apparatusof the building in heating, boilers, gas, water and bell *
services remain in an efficient condition. -

' GEOLOGICAL MUSEUM.

The general apparatus of heating, water, gas and bell services required no
attention beyond ordinary maintenance during the year.
[1890] 57
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This building also heing fitted up with pan water closets it will be desirable that
they should be replaced with modern ones as early as possible.

FISH HATCHERY AND ART GALLERY,

Nothing was required to the general apparatus of this building beyond or-
dinary maintenance. '

It having been decided to extend the apparatus for developing fish spawn to a
larger extent than formally, in this building, an extensive alteration to the water
service and fixtures had to be made.

GOVERNMENT PRINTING BUREAU,

This building being in an exposed location, and the boilers carrying a moderately
high pressure of steam, necessary for running the machinery, it was deemed ad-
visable to construct the heating apparatus by the Mechanical Staff ot this Depart-
ment. This was done and the building satisfactorily heated in proper time last
fall—the heating apparatus through the medium of a special pressure reducing
valve being worked at 6 pounds of steam, taken from the machinery boilers carry-
ing a pressure of 60 pounds.

Two steam elevators were constructed and placed in this building under the
direction of this Department.

RIDEAU HALL.

Prior to the occupation of this building by His Excellency Lord Staunley, a wish
was expressed that the drainage system should be examined by a sanitary engineer
expert, which was acceded to. A thorough test was made in every possible way,
with the most satisfactory results, proving the sanitary appliances to be in a reliable
and satisfactory condition.

The general apparatus of heating, water, gas and bells required only ordinary
maintenance.

GOVERNMENT COAL SHEDS,

The increased number and extent, lately, of the Dominion Public Buildings in
the city of Ottawa, having materially added to the consumption of fuel, the Depart-
ment were under the necessity for some years past of leasing additional coal shed
accommodation at the Canal Basin. It was found impossible to enlarge the small
shed owned by this Department, and there being no ground available in this
vicinity on which to build a new one, the Department purchased, upon favorable
terms, a large coal shed adjoining their own and gave up the leased premises.

This now gives ample accommodation for the yearly supply of coal.

INTERIOR DEPARTMENT (LEASED BUILDING).

Ordinary maintenance only was required to the heating apparatus in this
building.

PARLIAMENT GROUNDS, FLOWER PROPAGATING HOUBE, PARLIAMENT GROUNDS, MAJOR'S
HILL PARK.

No alterations or extensions having been made during the year to these pre-
mises, ordinary maintenance only was required to the heating apparatus, and hose
required for sprinkling purposes, to any of the three foregoing.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
- Your obedient servant,
JNO. R. ARNOLDI,

Chief Mechanical Engineer.

A. Goseir, Esq., '
Secretary, %ept. Public Works.

[1890]
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APPENDIX No. 5.

REPORT

ON

HARBORS AND RIVERS, DREDGES, DREDGING AND SURVEYS

THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION,
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30ta JUNE, 1890,
BY

HENRY F. PERLEY, Chief Engineer.
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APPENDIX No. 5.

REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER.

Ref. No. 111643,
Cuier ENGINEER's OFFICE,
OTrawa, 22nd September, 1890,

S1r,—I have the honour to submit herewith my annual report on the harbour
works under thy charge during the last fiscal year.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
HENRY F. PERLEY,
Chief Engineer.
A. GosErL, Esq.,
Secretary, Public Works Department,
Ottawa.

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

ANNANDALE PIER.

Annandale Pier is in King’s County, and is situated on the north side of
Grand River, near its entrance into Boughton Bay. It is distant 14 miles by road,
south from Souris, the eastern terminus of the P. E. I. Railway, and is the shipping
place for a large agricultural district.

The pier 1s one of those constructed by the Local Government and taken over
by the Dominion Government, and consists of an approach 300 feet in length and 23
feet wide, with a pier head 140 feet long, averaging 36 feet in width. The approach,
excepting a short open span which is planked over, is constructed of squared tim-
ber crib-work, filled in with brush, stone and clay. The pier head consists of four
blocks of different shapes and dimensions, constructed of squared timber crib-
work, and of pile work, the whole being covered over with plank.

It is not much exposed to the force of the sea, owing to the existence of a
“bar " at the mouth of the river, but it is exposed to the running ice in the spring,
and to the ravages of the teredo which is very destructive in the river.

Since its assumption by the Department it has received repairs, principally in
close-piling along the face, and during the last fiscal year the sum of $275.21 was
expended in close-piling the western end for a distance of 15 feet, and the face for a
distance of 70 feet, in placing 2,500 sup. feet B. M. of new plank, and inthe renewal
of three mooring posts.

BELFAST PIER.

.

Belfast Pier, Queen’s County, is situated on the south side of Orwell Bay, about
one mile distant from the village of Eldon. It was constructed about 20 years ago
by the Local Government to accommodate the shipment of produce from the
neighbourhood. Besides being an imponitszbnt shipping place, it is also a port of call

0 61
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for the steamers of the P.E.I. Steam Navigation Co., %ying during the season three
times each week, between Charlottetown and Orwell Bay.

The pier is 600 feet in length and from 24 to 35 feet in width, with an |, at the
outer end, 105 feet in length and 20 feet wide, giving a channel face of 140 feet.
Excepting two small openings, the work is constructed with square timber faces,
the inner end for a distance of 390 feet, being filled in with brush, stone and clay,
while the outer end and L are floored over.

Since its assumption by the Department, the outer end and |, have been put
in thorough repair.

During the last fiscal year, the sum of $645 was expended in renewing the top
of the inner end for a distance of 150 feet, which was very weak, owing to the
. natural decay of the timber.

CASCUMPEC.

Cascumpec Harbour, Prince County, is situated on the north coast of the Island,
about 17 miles to the southward of North Cape, and about 20 miles to the north-
westward of the entrance into Richmond Bay. The town of Alberton, the second
one in importance in the county, is located at the head of the harbour and is a
station on the P.E. I Railway, which has a branch to the Railway wharf, where
vessels can load and discharge.

The harbour is very extensive and perfectly safe with a depth of watersufficient
to accommodate sea-going vessels, and it is sought as a harbour of refuge during
easterly gales, principally by fishing vessels which are employed during 510 fishing
geason off the coast.

The entrance into the harbour is obstructed by two bars; the outer one com-
posed of sand, lies about a mile from -the entrance, and the inner bar, which is
composed of very soft red sandstone, is between the beaches which form the
entrance. The bars are about 1,000 feet in width, and carry a depth of ten feet of
water at low water springs, which rise three feet.

It is proposed to make a cut through the inner bar, 100 feet in width, with a
depth of 15 feet at low water, so as to admit of a larger class of vessels entering
and leaving the harbour. It is thought that a deeper chanmel across the “in-
ner bar,” will have the tendency to create a stronger tidal current, and
deepen the water over the * outer bar,”

The work was commenced by the Department in 1885, by submarine blasting,
and has been continued every season since, but, owing to the shortness of the period in
which operations could be carried on, the softness of the material, which blasts
badly, and the fact that the divers had to handle every piece of stone, it has not
progressed as rapidly as it was expected.

During the last season a new plan was adopted by which the labour will be
lessened, and the work can be completed in a few years at a moderate cost. It is to
blast the rock as formerly and to have the dredge remove the same.

The sum of $2000 was expended in ten weeks, and a cut of 620 feet in length,
35 feet in width and from 3 to 5 feet in depth was blasted across the bar, leaving
some 4,000 cubic yards of material in place for removal by the dredge.

CHAPEL POINT PIER.

Chapel Point Pier, King’s County, is on the south side of Grand River, about
three miles from its entrance into Boughton Bay. .

The pier was constructed by the Tiocal Government and consists of an approach
200 feet in length and a block at the end 22 feet long, connected by a span
22} feet in length, making the total length of the pier 2444 feet. The approach
i8 constructed with squared timber faces and is filled in with brush, stone
and clay, and the outer block is constructed also with squared timber faces, but it is
filled with ballast and is, as well as the span, planked over.
62 [?8)90]
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On the 31st day of March ult., a contract was entered into for repairing the top
of the existing work and for the extension of the pier by an addition of a new span
and a new block, each being 22 feet wide and 22 feet in length, and at the end of the
fiscal year the work was about half completed. )

When completed the work will be 288% feet in length, and it will admit of
three small vessels loading at a time, instead of one, as at present,

CHARLOTTETOWN,

Charlottetown, the capital of the Province, is situated on a neck of land between
the North and Hillsboro’ Rivers, in Queen,s County.

Early in the year the Departmental Dredge completed a channel 264 feet in
length and 57 feet in width on the east side of the railway wharf.

CHINA POINT PIER.

China Point Pier is situated in Queen’s County, and lies on the west side of the
mouth of the Orwell River, at its entrance into Orwell Bay. .

The pier was constructed by the Local Government to provide means for the
shipment of produce, and to enable the steamers of the P. E. I. Steam Navigation
Co. to call there. It is 426 feet in length on the south side, with a return along
the channel face, 73 feet in length. It is from 18 to 24} feet in width, and is com-
posed of a series of 8 solid blocks (not including the approach), with intervening
openings, spanned and planked over. The approach and the five inner blocks are
built with squared timber faces, and are filled in with brush, stone and clay. The
two outer blocks, and the one forming the [, are also built with square timber, but
they, as well as all the openings, are covered with 3-inch plank.

In Novembor, 1889, a contract was entered into for the removal of all flooring,
cap-timbers, floor stringers and span beams, the raising of the outer block, the re-
construction of the top of the L block, and for the levelling up of the inner blocks
and of the approach with stone and clay.

At the end of the fiscal year the work under contract was about half completed.,

HICKEY'S PIER.

- Hickey's Pier, Queen’s Co., is situated on the south-eastern side of the East or
Hillsbhoro’ River, about 10 miles distant from the city of Charlottetown.

The Hillsboro’ River, being navigable for a distance of about 15 miles inland
from the city of Charlottetown, is the most important on the Island, and Hickey’s
Pier, since the channel at its end, and berths on cach side of it, were dredged by the
Department, is the first of importance on the river.

The structure was built by the Local Government, and is 428 feet in length, on -
its centre line, and is of different widths, ranging from 22 to 29 feet, the latter being
the width of the outer end for a distance of 180 feet. It is composed of a shore
abutment 105 feet in length, and of a series of blocks with intervening spans.

On its assumption by the Department, the pier was almost a wreck, and since
that time several amounts have been expended upon it partial reconstruction.

During last season the sum of $500 was expended in reconstructing the top of
the second block from the outer end, in the renewal of its eastern face, and in placing
new span beams and.flooring in the opening between it and the outer block.

KIER'S SHORE PIER,

Kier’s Shore Pier is situated at Malpeque, Prince County, and lies on the east

gide of Richmond Bay, about 7 miles from Kensington, a station on the P, E. 1,
Railway. .

It was constructed by the inhabitants, assisted by the Local Government, and

is 1,016 feet in length and from 20 to 24 feet wide. It is built with squared timber

" fuces, filled in with brush and stone, afd ex]cepting a short span, 17 feet long, and

1890 63
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the outer end for a distance of 25 feet, which are planked, the top of the pier is
covered with clay.

The amount authorized for expenditure last season, viz., $100, has been expended
in the partial renewal of the planking on the outer end, and in levelling up the top
of the pier with brush, stone and clay.

LAMBERT'S PIER.

Lambert’s Pier is at Montague village, King’s County, and is situated on the
southern side of Montague River, immediately %elow the highway bridge, and 6
miles above its entrance into Cardigan Bay. '

Since the improvement of the channel by the Department, vessels of considerable
size can ascend the river as far as Montague bridge, where the produce of a large
and fertile tract of country is annually shipped. ‘

It is one of the piers assumed by the Dominion Government in 1883, and its
channel face has a total length of 310 feet. It consists of two sections, the upper or
western being 140 feet in length and 24 feet wide, constructed of crib-work on the
inside and of work on pile-bents on the outside; the lower or eastern section is 170
feet in length, 25 feet wide, and is constructed entirely on pile-bents. The pier
extends along the edge of the channel, and runs parallel with the shore, to which it
is connected by a road at the upper end, and the space between the pier and the
shore is used as a ballast ground.

During the past season the sum of $400 was expended in renewing the planking,
in raising the lower end which had somewhat settled, and in raising the retaining
crib-wall on the inside of the outer end, to prevent the deposited ballast from wash-
ing out,

MALPEQUE BREAKWATER.

Malpeque Harbour, Prince County, lies within the eastern or principal entrance
of Richmond Bay, on the south shore of the Island, about 90 miles from Bast Point
and 40 miles from North Cape.

During 1877-78-79 a breakwater, 600 feet in length, was constructed by the
Department on the western end of the Royalty Sands, on the eastern side of the
harbour, to shelter the anchorage from north-east winds and to afford a shipping
place for the produce of the surrounding country.,

Since the construction of the breakwater, as the sands inside of the breakwater
were being wasted by the action of the sea during easterly storms, a breastwork was
constructed from the inner end of the breakwater to Royalty Point, a distance of
2,370 feet.

The bottom of the outer end of the breakwater, which rested on sand, has been
gradually settling for some years, while its top was kept up in position by close
pilin%, which had been placed around it.

uring last season the sum of $1,000 was expended in the removal of the top
of the wrecked end for a distance of 6 feet, in the removal of 30 feet in'length of
the top of the piece adjoining to a depth of 4 feet, in the reconstruction and raising
of the 30 feet, and in close-piling the new end, and 10 feet on each side of it.

NEW LONDON,

The harbour of New London, or Grenville Bay, is situated on the northern
coast of Prince Edward Island, about 10 miles south-east from the entrance into
Richmond Bay. Within its entrance, which is about 1,200 feet wide, the bay is 3
miles wide, and receives the waters of the South-West, the French, the Stanley and
the Hope Rivers.

The works constructed by the Department for the improvement of the entrance
into the barbour consist of a breakwater, 1,050 feet in length, on the sand beach at
the ‘eastern side of the entrance, built partly of piling, brush and stone and partly of
%lzb-work; a breakwater, 460 feet in leExgth,]on the beach at the western side of the

1890
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entrance, the inner end for a distance of 400 feet consisting of pile, brush and stone
work, and the outer end being a squared timber block; and of a dam, 1,600 feet in
length, off Campbell’s Point. :

The breakwaters were constructed for the purpose of confining the ebb current
and direct it on to the sand bar outside, with a view of obtaining a better depth of
water over it, and the results have been very satisfactory, the depth of water on
the bar having increased from 6 to 12 feet of water at high water.

During the past season portions of the work on the east side of the entrance
were reballasted, and materials were procured for the extension of the work at the
inner end, a distance of 82 feet, and for the construction of a crib-work block between
the two outer blocks.

NORTH RUSTICO.

North Rustico, Queen’s County, is the most important fishing station on the
northern coast of the lsland, and is nearly equi-distant from North Cape and
East Point.

During the years from 1881 to 1883 the Department constructed breakwaters
on each side of the entrance to the harbour, for the purpose of concentrating the
ebb current upon the bar outside, so as to scour away the sand, and thus obtain a
greater depth of water over it. The results have been most satisfactory, as the
depth of water on the bar has been increased by 3 to 4 feet, which, added to the for-
mer depth, gives at present, at low water springs, from 9 to 10 feet of water, and at
high water from 12 to 13 feet.

The breakwater on the north side of the entrance, which is the most important,
was originally 1,240 feet in length, but owing to the wrecked condition of the outer
end, it has been deemed advisable to cut it off for a distance of 17 feeet. The sea-
ward face of the breakwater is constructed, down to 1 foot above low water, with a
slope of 1 to 1, which is covered by 6-inch plank; below that the face is built of
squared timber and plumb, and is close-piled. :

During the past season a small sum was expended in replacing several pieces of
plank on the sloping face, and of several piles on the bottom of the sloping face.

The dredge “ Prince Edward " operated here during the year, opening a channel
through a bar in the harbour to a depth of 11 feet at low water springs. A point
was also removed from the south side of channel inside the bar. A middle ground
iin channel off De Rosher’s fishing stage and one in front of Laird’s wharf were algo

redged. ' ‘

PINETTE.

Pinette Harbour, Queen’s County, is on the north side of Northumberland
Strait, four miles east of Point Prim, and twelve miles north of Wood Islands. It
is situated at the mouth of Pinette River, and extends about two and a half miles
inland to Pinette Bridge; the navigable channel being 200 feet at the upper end, to
600 feet wide at the lower end, and carrying a depth of water of three fathoms at
low water springs, which rise 8 feet.

A pier, 120 feet in length and 28 feet wide, was built on the south side of the
channel, below and at right angles to Pinette Bridge, by the Local Government, and
connected with the bridge by a span 28 feet long, planked over.

The pier is built along the channel, and has a frontage, including the span, of
148 feet. During 1881, the dredge ‘ Prince Edward' operated in deepening the
loading berths off the face of the pier, to 8 feet below low water springs.

As the tide flowing through the opening and the pier, carried with it a certain
amount of sand, which was deposited in the channel to the detriment of its depth,
during the past season the sum of $250 was expended in the construction of a brush
and stone dam to prevent that action, and in placing fifteen fender piles along the
channel face of the pier. . , .
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PORT SELKIRK.

Port Selkirk Pier, Queen’s County, is on the south side of the mouth of the
Orwell River, at its entrance into Orwell Bay. It was constructed by the Local
Government, and is in the form of a T, its length from the shore to the channel face
being 252 feet, and the length of the pier-head was originally 248 feet; the width of
the approach is 23 feet, and that of the pier-head 35.

n the assumption of this pier by the Dominion Government, it was in a
wrecked condition and some urgent repairs- were made, and since then several
amounts have been expended upon it, but as the grants were not sufficient to recon-
struct it, and the upper block was in danger of tumbling into the channel, it was
removed together with the span connecting it with the west block, thus lessening
the length of the channel face by 48 feet.

During last season the sum of $987.52 was expended in tearing down and recon-
structing the top of the upper block, to a depth of 12 feet, in the renewal of floor-
stringers and planking on 144 feet of the pier-head, and on 35 feet of the outer end
of the shore abutment, and in placing fender piling, 5 foet apart, on the channel face
and upper end of the reconstructed upper block.

POWNAL,

Pownal Pier, Queen’s County, is situated at the head of Pownal Bay, the north-
eastern corner of Hillsboro’ Bay, and is distant about 9 miles from the city of Char-
lottetown.

The pier was built by the Local Government and is 753 feot in length. It con-
sists of a shore abutment, 209 feet long and 16 feet wide, and of 14 blocks with
intervening spans. The inner blocks are from 16 to 18 feet wide, and the two outer
are 40 feet wide.

-To admit of boats and small craft coming to and leaving the pier at all times of
tide, the Department, during 1880-81, dredged & channel up to the pier, 1,275 feet in
length, 56 feet wide and 5 to 6 feet in depth, carrying a depth of from 6 to 9 feet
of water at low water springs, and a basin on the eastern side of the end of the pter,
90 feet wide and 250 feet in length. - ,

' During 1888-89 the span beams were renewed, nine of the spans were re-planked
and some fenders were placed on the inner face of the two outer blocks.

During the past season the approach and the inner blocks were raised and
levelled up with stone and clay.

RED POINT.

Red Point wharf, Queen’s County, is on the south shore of the East River, about
5 miles above Charlottetown.

A basin was dredged at the end of the wharf for the accommodation of steamers
and vessels.

S8T. MARY'S BAY.

St. Mary’s Bay Pier is situated on the south side of St. Mary's Bay, which forms
the extreme southern end of Cardigan Bay, and is about 6 miles south of George-
town, the shire town of the County of King’s. , . ‘

The pier is 407 feet in length, and its width is, for a distance of 330 feet, 21
feet, the ouler end being from 23 to 29 feet wide, and is composed of a shore abut-
ment and 7 blocks, with intervening spans. It was constracted by the Local Gov-
ernment, and was originally only 16 feet wide for a distance of 330 feet, and as it
was found too narrow for the traffic, it was widened to 21 feet for a distance of 288
feet by constructing a narrow timber block, 5 feet wide along its eastern face; the
remaining 42 feet was widened by simply placing a heavy hemlock stringer 16 by 6
inches across the span, and by planking over the additional width, The westernside
of the span is supported by a small block 10 feet long and 16 feet wide.
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During last season the sum of $160.56 was expended in the widening of the
small block under the long span, to the width of the outer end blocks, viz., 29 feet,
and in the renewal of the planking for a distance of 44 feet.

SOURIS.

Souris Harbour, Colville Bay, King’s County, is about 16 miles to the westward
of East Point, the eastern extremity of the Island. It is the principal place for
shipping at the eastern end of the Island, and is a terminus of the Prince Edward
Island Railway.

The anchorage being good and safe with the wind from the north, the Depart-
ment constructed a breakwater in extension to the one previously built by the £00841
Government, off Knight's Point, on the eastern side of the harbour, to afford shelter
during southerly storms, and thus form a harbour of refuge.

The breakwater is at present 1,180 feet in length, including the portion con-
structed by the Local Government, which is 270 feet long, The inner portion (270
feet long) is 25 feet wide, with faces plumb, the centre portion is 500 feet in length
and 46 feet wide, with faces plumb, and the outer portion is 410 feet long and 21%
feet wide on top, with sides sloping 1 in 6.

It is exposed to the full force of the sea during southerly gales, and to the
attacks of the teredo, which is very destructive along this coast, and since its con-
struction it has required partial reconstruction and very extensive repairs. The end
stands in 54 feet of water at low water springs, and being rather narrow for its
height (21 feet on top and 30 feet high), the top was moved some 3 feet inwards by
the force of the sea. To protect its weakened face, on the seaward side, and to pre-
vent the top from further moving, a heavy stone slope along its seaward face was
commenced by the Department during 1888, and at the same time a strongly con-
structed timber block, 30 feet square on the bottom and close piled all around, was
placed at the outer end of the seaward face, to prevent the stone from moving
around the end. :

During last season the sum of $1,299.91 was expended in reconstructing the
top of the outer end for a distance of 110 feet, to a depth of 5 feet, in close-piling
some of the weakest portions of the seaward face, aggregating a distance of 90 feet,
in placing 430 cubic yards of stone in the top of the work, where mostly needed, in
placing 392 cublic yards of heavy stone along the seaward side, and in placing 12
fender piles on the inner face of the outer end.

SOUTH RIVER.

South River Pier, King’s County, is located at the head of navigation on the
South River, the southern inlet into Murray Harbour. It was constructed by the
Local Government, and extends out into the river for a distance of 90 feet; it has
an | at the end, with a water frontage of 108} feet. Itis from 21 to 23 feet in
width, and is composed of four blocks with intervening openings, spanned and
planked over. There is a depth of 8 feet of water, along its front, at low water
springs, this depth increasing from 9% feet at 10 feet from the fuce. Spring tides rise
5% feet. The inner block, or shore abutment, is 47 feet in length, the inside portion
for a distance of 27 feet being built up with brush and stone, the outer consisting of
a solid timber block, 20 feet in length. The three channel blocks, each 25 feet in
length, are constructed of round timber in the bottom and of squared timber in the
top. '

P During 1887-88 the blocks were raised and ballasted, stone and clay were
placed in the shore abutment, new span beams and planking were laid on the spans,
and a new cap was placed around the whole structure.

During the past season 30 fender piles were placed around the outer blocks.

SOUTH RUBTICO.

South Rustico Pier, Queen’s County, is situated immediately below the Oyster
Bed Bridge, at the mouth of the Whately River, which enters Rustico Bay at its
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southern end, It is distant about 6 miles from Hunter River station, on the Prince
Edward 1lsland Railway, about 13 miles to the norehward of the city of
Charlottetown, ‘

A channel 600 feet long by 144 feet wide was opened from the main channel to
the wharf, and a loading berth, 90 feet by 45 feet, was dredged.

STEVEN'S PIER.

Steven’s Pier is at Montague, King’s County, and is situated on the southern
side of the Montague River, immediately below Lambert’s Pier, and 6 miles above
its entrance into Cardigan Bay.

Since the improvement of the navigable channel of the river by the Depart-
ment, vessels of considerable size can ascend the river as far as Montague Bridge,
where a large amount of produce is yearly shipped.

The pier consists of two wings, about 50 feet apart, extending out from the
shore, with a pier-head at the outer end, 100 feet in length along the channel. The
wings consist of shore abutments, 90 and 115 feet in length, respectively, built with
squared timber faces and filled in with stone and gravel, next, of openings, 21 and
30 feet in length, spanned and planked over; squared timber blocks form the outer
ends of the wings. The pier-head is constructed on pile bents, spanned and floored
over.

On the assumption of this pier by the Department, the pier-head was recon-
structed and the weakest portions of the approaches were repaired.

, During the last year the sum of $199.98 was expended in reconstructing the
western face of the western shore abutment, which, owing to old age and decay,
‘was in a dangerous condition,

NOVA SCOTIA.
ARISAIG,

Arisaig, Antigonish County, is on the south-east shore of Northumberland
Strait, 15 miles to the eastward of Merigomish, the nearest harbour.

A pier commenced by the Government of Nova Scotia about 47 year ago, came
under the charge of the Federal Government in 1870. It was put in thorough
repair in 1873, and small amounts were expended in 1880 and 1881 in repairing

.damage caused by ice. ,

A contract, entered into in 1886, for repairs to the pier and for the construction
of a breakwater on the eastern side of the harbour, was completed in 1888,

At the time of the completion of the works referred to, the pier.was 440 feet
in length, consisting of an approach and an outer portion 195 feet in length and
from 40 to 44 feet in width. There was, at extreme low water, a depth of but 1
foot along its inner face, over a distance of 100 feet from the outer end, and over .
the area sheltered by it, nowhere more than 3 feet. (

The breakwater is 300 feet in length and 20 feet in width, on top, and has an L,
at its outer end 40 feet in length. The depth at its outer end at extrenie low water
is 6 feet; spring tides rise 5 feet. ‘ ‘

During the year 1889-90 the work of extending the pier 100 feet and protecting
its seaward face by a deposit of heavy stone, the contract for which was entered into

‘the previous year, was commenced and neary completed. ,

The extension is founded in from 10 to 8 feet at extreme low water on a bottom
prepared by one of the Department dredges. After the completion of the excava-
tion for the foundation, a cutting about 70 feet in width was carried along the inner
face of the extension, and of the pier over a distance of about 130 feet from its
outer end. : : X ‘
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BARRINGTON.

Barrington, Shelburne County, is distant 45 miles to the south-east of Yarmouth
and 30 miles south-west from the town of Shelburne and is within 10 miles of Cape
Sable, the most southerly point of Nova Scotia. The settlement is a straggling one
and covers a distance of about 3 miles; the upper part being known as *“ the Head "
and the lower the “ Passage.” It isa port of ecall for the line of steamers running
between Halifax and Yarmouth and is the terminus of the steam ferry to Cape
Sable Island. = : _

At present the only wharf at Barrington at which steamers can land is a
private one at the lower part of the Passage and this is not available at low water
on aceount of a bar distant 1,200 feet from the end of the wharf, on which there is
only 4 feet of water at low tide, :

In 1888 an examination was made of the different sitesin the neighbourhood to
agcertain which was most suitable for the construction of a public wharf and one
was selected near the head of Sherose Channel as being the most central and shel-
tered, and having at the same time a sufficient depth of water.

The site is on the western side of Sherose Channel, at a point where it most
closely approaches the mainland, and to reach this channel it is necessary to cross
960 feet of flats which are just bare at low water, at which time there is 12 feet in
the channel, Spring tides rise at Barrington 9 foet.

The construction of the wharf was began in 1888-89 and during that year the
amount of $3,000 was expended. Work was continued during the present fiscal
year during the first half of which the sum of $1,000 was used in extending the
work, and during the last half an additional $50 in storing and protecting some
materials left over from the previous season’s operations,

The wharf when completed will consist of : first, an inshore section 90 feet long,
constructed entirely of stone; secondly 135 feet of eribwork to the beginning of the-
mud flats, thirdly 735 feet of pile wharfing to the edge of the channel (these three
sections being all 20 feet wide); and lastly, a cribwork channel block for the steamers,
&e. to lie at, 30 feet wide and 70 feet long.

At the close of this fear’s operations the first and second sections were com-
pleted, 300 feet of the pile work was finished and enough material on hand and stored
away to complete an additional 250 feet of pile work and plank covering to reach
the channel block. .

The dredge ¢ Canada ” during the year dredged a basin for the proposed wharf,
removed the points in and deepened the channel to 11 feet, and a channel was also
opened from the main one to Sargents’ wharf,

BIG LORRAINE,

Big Lorraine, Cape Breton County, is a small harbour on the east coast of
Cape Breton Island, 3 miles north-east of Louisburg Harbour.,
During the year 1889-90 the amount appropriated was expended in opening a
straight channel through the western extremity of a bar obstructing the entrance.
he new channel is 20 feet in width and has a depth, at extreme low-water, of 2
feet. Spring tides rise 5 feet.
The old channel, at the eastern extremity of the bar, is narrow and intricate.

BIG TRACADIE,

At the close of the fiscal yoar, one of the Departmental dredges was engaged at
Big Tracadie, Antigonish County, in improving the channel, the material removed
being principally clay.

CHETICAMP.

Cheticamp Harbour, Inverness County, is on the west coast of Cape Breton
Island, 18 miles north from Margaree Harbour. :
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It is a secure harbour, being sheltered from the west and south by Cheticamp
Island and a connecting beach, The entrance is from the' north through a dredged
channel.

There are several large fishing establishments, the principal one being that of
Messrs. Robin & Co., of Jersey.

During the summer, regular steam communication is maintained between Pictou
and intermediate ports,

A contract was entered into 10th June, 1889, for the construction of a wharf on
the eastern side of the harbour; to consist of an approach 125 feet in length, and 30
feet in width over a distance of 60 feet from its outer end, with side walls of stone
and centre filling of earth or stone; and an extension 80 feet in length, in two blocks,
with openings of 17 foet 6 inches. The outer block is to be 60 feet in length along
the channel face, and to have a depth of 11 feet at extreme low water.

The approach was completed in April. At the close of the year ended 30th June,
the outer blocks were in place and partially ballasted.

CHURCH POINT.

Church Point, Digby County, is sitnated on the south shore of St. Mary’s Bay,
directly opposite Petit Passage, and is about 8 miles south of Weymouth. ‘
' The breakwater which is one of the most important in St. Mary’s Bay, was
begun_about 50 years ago by the inhabitants and local authorities, and has been
extended and improved on several occasions since that date. In 1875-76 the Dopart-
ment expended the sum of $2,000, the inhabitants contributing a similar amount, in
repairing the northern face and constructing an L, 72 feet by 20 feet at right angles
to it, to prevent the gravel from working round the outer end. =

During the present year a small amount was expended in placing some new
fenders at the loading berth, and in other slight repairs,

COW BAY.,

Cow Bay, Cape Breton County, is on the eastern coast of Cape Breton
Island, about 18 miles north-east of Sydney Harbour. Owing to the extensive coal
mines in its vieinity, it is a place of considerable importance.

The bay is 2% miles wide at the mouth, and being completely open to the Atlantic
Ocean, affords no safe anchorage during easterly gales.

A breakwater was built some years ago on the north side of the bay, by Messrs.
Archibald & Co., proprietors of the Gowrie Mines, with some aid from the Govern-
ment of Nova Scotia. It is 1,386 feet in length and was originally about 44 feet in
width, with a depth at the outer end, at low water, of 20 feet. The area of the basin
enclosed between it and the loading pier of the Gowrie Mines, is about 17 acres, 10
acres of which had originally a depth of from 9 to 20 feet at low water. Spring tides
rise b feet.

In 1873, while repairs were in progress by the Departmeunt, the breakwater was
seriously damaged by the great gale of 24th August. After the gale, operations
were resumed, the balance of the amount appropriated being largely supplemented
by Messrs, Archibald & Co.

In 1874, Messrs. Archibald & Co’s. interest in the breakwater was acquired by the
Federal Government, and a contract, entered into in May, 1875, for repairing and
strengthening the structure, was completed in July, 1877,

xtensivo repairs have been made nearly every year since 1877, and the work
hlas been strengthened by the addition of counterforts and outer face works, and by
close-piling, ‘

, he breakwater now consists of an inner work, extending from within 220 feet
of the shore end to the outer end, with counterforts and connecting works on the
seaward side, from within 580 feet of the shore end to the outer end. The outer and
inner works are from 22 to 25 feet apart; they are connected at intervals by tie-walls,
and the spaces are filled in with earth and stone ballast.
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During the year 1889-90, the amount a;l)propriated was expended in repairs to
the seaward side of the breakwater, and in close-piling a gortion of its inner face.

Some dredging was done at Messrs. Archibald & Co’s. wharves, which was
paid for by that firm, and a cut 900 feet long, 25 feet wide and from 10 to 17 feet
deep, was made along the side of the breakwater.

Below are given statements of the amounts collected from break water dues and
the number of vessels entered and cleared, and the exports during the year 1888-89:

Breakwater dues and wharfage . .....coceeeniieienniiniien, $1,863 00

Collected by Harbour master. .....c.eeceenvennennens .« erenees 143 00

Paid to sick mariner’s fund........ccoeviniiiiiiinins 158 62

$2,164 62

Entered and cleared—Steamers.......cccieeeeeuiiieniiiianiininannens 79

. Brig8..iieiirinetiiiiieiiin e 19

. Schooners ..........ceeeue crreeerreeneeriniaeees 518

676

Exports—Coal ..coovvvviien viee veiiiienenan. ieerernnennnane 108,710 tons,
Codfish . .ivvvviiiniiiiiiiiiii e, 2,000 quintals,

Pickled fish. ..ocvuvviiiiniiiniiiieiiininiiiirenane, 2,000 barrels,
DIGBY.

The town of Digby is situated at the western end of Annapolis Basin, and is
the eastern terminus of the Western Counties Railway. Itis a port of call for the
steamers running between Annapolis, St. John and Boston, and does a considerable
coasting trade, principally in the transhipment of fish. The harbour is open at all
seagons and the pier which stands at the northern end of the town acts as a break-
water to the smaller wharves and is the only wharf in the place accessible at low
water.

The outer end of the pier was destroyed by storm in December, 1885, and was
re-built by the Department during the years 1888 and 1889, at an expenditure of
$8,863.01.

The pier consists of an inshore section of pile work 560 feet long and 27 feet
wide, this part of the structure is built entirely on pile bents and is protected by a
row of close-piling on its northern or seaward side; it was not materially injured by
the storm referred to above, but it is old and much worm-eaten. The second section
of the pier is a close-faced crib-work block, 80 feet long and 40 feet wide; this block
was damaged though not destroyed by the December storm and the repairs effected
during the present tiscal year were confined entirely to this block. The remaining
portions of the pier are new and consist of a eribwork inclined landing 180 feet long
and 25 feet wide, over which there is constructed a deck wharf on framed bents,
and finally an outer block 45 feet by 456 feet of round cribwork which forms the
outer end of the pier.

The damaged centre block above referred to was shifted bodily by the storm so
that its south-east corner projected 13 feet beyond the south line of the wharf. This
projecting corner was cut away and removed when the outer end of the pier was
rebuilt. During the present fiscal year the sum of $392.91 was expended indriving
heavy. piles along botn the northern and southern sides of this bloek to prevent any
further movement. ’

Spring tides rise 27 feet 6 inches and leave the beach bare to the head of the
inclined landing. There is now 12 feet of water at low tide at the end of the pier.

EAST BAY,

During the year 1889-90, a site was selected and a wharf built in Cape Breton
County, on the north side of the East BEa.y of]the Bras d'Or Lake, half a mile to the
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westward of McAdam’s Point and 5% miles to the westward of the head of the bay.
The distance to Sydney is 174 miles and to the nearest station on the Cape Breton
Railway 104 miles.

The wharf is 220 feet in length and 20 feet wide, with a return of 20 feet at the
outer end, giving channel or end face 40 feet in length. It consists of an approach
of brush and stone 50 feet in length, and five blocks, with openings of 17
feet 6 inches, The depth at the outer end is 10 feet at the lowest lake level, or 11
feet 3 inches at extreme high lake level.

EAST RIVER.

East River, Pictou County, empties into Pictou Harbour, below New Glas-
gow. It rises near the headwaters of the St. Mary’s River, and flows through a
fine agricultural district. A large quantity of timber is cut annually and brought
down during the spring freshets. . )

In 1886-87, a number of ledges and boulders which interfered with the passage
of timber in a section of the river extending 10 miles above Springville, were
removed : and in 1388-80 a section, 1 mile in length, commencing at a point 24 miles
below Springville, was improved by removing boulders and cutting passage through
a succession of ledges.

During the year 1839-90 the amount appropriated ($500) was expended in
removing boulders and in cutting through points of ledges between the section
improved the previous year and Eureka.

The distance from New Glasgow to Eureka and Springville are respectively
six and eleven miles.

The “St. Lawrence ” dredged from the main channel to the City Market Wharf,
and at the close of the fiscal year had opened a channel 150 fathoms in length, 45
to 50 feet in width, to a depth of 15 feet at low water.

EATONVILLE. |

Eatonville Harbour, formerly known as ¢ The Thrée Sisters,” Cumberland County,
is about 10 miles north of Cape Chignecto, Bay of Fundy, and 4 miles south-west
from Apple River Harbour,

The harbour is formed by a sand beach at its mouth, which extends from the
high land on the south side, a distance of about 600 feet, and its end is within about
120 feet of the rocky cliff on the north side. Between the end of the beach and the
cliff flows the stream, and the tide which runs inland, about half a mile, covers, at
high water, a large expanse of marsh.

Large vessels, up to 1,200 tons, can run into the harbour at high water, and
there load lumber for the English market, or undergo repairs, if such are required.

Spring tides rise 37 feet ; neaps rise 30 feet.

During 1887-88 a breakwater was constructed by the Department, off the
northern end of the sand beach, to prevent the accumulation of gravel in the mouth
of the river and to protect the end of the beach, which during freshets was ofter
damaged, endangering the stability of the harbour.

During 1888-89 an extension, 80 feet in length, was commenced, and it wag
built up to a height of 15 feet at the outer end, and its inner face and end were close-
piled to prevent scouring out of the gravel bed underneath, when the work was
visited by an extremely heavy gale, which cut away the gravel bank at the inner
end of the breakwater, and undermined its inner face, causing the work to cant
inward. Qperations on the extension were stopped at once, and the balance of the
amount appropriated was expended in securing the inner ¢nd of the breakwater by
the construction of protection works. |

"During the past season the top of the breakwater constructed during 1887-88 was
cut down to the level of the extension, and its inner face was close-piled. The new
. top was built simultaneously with the extension, a distance of 203 feet, and the whole
work was completed in a very satisfactory manner.,
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The total length of the breakwater is 220 feet, and its width on top is 20 feet,
sloping about 1 in 6 on the seaward face and end. It is constructed of round timber
crib-work, roughly put together and fully ballasted, and its inner face and the end
are close-piled. Its average height is 20 feet. -

Since its completion a large amount of gravel was scoured out of the bottom of
the river’s mouth by the current, increasing considerably the depth of water in it, and

thus permitting vessels a longer period during each tide in which to enter or leave
the harbour.

ECONOMY.

Economy, Colchester County, is situated on the west side of the Basin of Minas,
20 miles west of Great Village, and 20 miles east from the town of Parrsboro’, the
terminus of the Cumberland Coal and Railway Company’s Railway.

A wharf, to serve as a breakwater at the same time, was constructed by the
Department, during 1887-88. It is 208 feet in length, 25 feet wide on top, with an
average height of 11 feet. A

During the past season, it has been extended 100 feet in length, 25 feet wide, on
top, with an |, on the eastern side of the outer end, 25 feet in length and 25 feet in
width, with sides and end sloping 1 in 16. The work throughout, with the excep-
tion of cap timbers, floor-stringers, fenders and covering, is constructed of round
logs. All faces are double fendered, two ballast floors have been placed, and on them
ballast to depths of 4 and 3 feet, has been laid, Six mooring posts, eight ring-bolts
and two ladders, have also been placed. The top of the work is 3 feet above high
water mark springs, and its average height is 18% feet. - :

The total length of the wharf is at present 308 feet, with a depth of 15 feet of
water at its outer end during high water spring tides.

Spring tides rise here 46 feet ; neaps rise 39 feet.

FRENCH COVE.

French Cove, Victoria County, is on the east or Atlantic coast of Cape
Breton Island, about mid-way between Neil's Harbour and White Point.

Daring the summer months, eleven boats from Ingonish and the Bras d’Or
Lake, engage in fishing at this station.

The amount appropriated for the year 1889-90, was expended in improving the
landing place for boats, by the removal of rocks and boulders,

GREEN COVE.

Green Cove, Victoria County, is a small fishing station on the east or
Atlantic coast of Cape Breton Island, about mid-way between North Ingonish and
Neil's Harbour. :

During the summer months, some six or eight boats engage in fishing at this

lace. :
P The amount appropriated for the year 188990, was expended in improving the
landing place for boats, by the removal of bedded rocks and boulders, over a distance
of 60 feet, measured along the shore, in a small cove slightly sheltered by a reef and
by projecting ledges. ' :

GROSSES COQUES.

Grosses Coques, Digby County, is situated at the mouth of a small river empty-
ing into the St. Mary’s Bay, about seven miles to the westward of Weymouth.

The pier at this _Elace wag built many years ago by private subscription aided
by grants from the Local Government. For the last ten or twelve years, little or
no repairs having been made the river face of the structure became much dilapi-
dated, and parts of it fell into the stream rendering the pier quite useless for ship-
ping purposes. ‘ ‘
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An appropriation of $3,000 was made during the session of 1888-89 for
repairing the face of this pier, the inhabitants agreeing to assist by subscribing
certain materials and labour gratis, and during the past year the entire river face of
the pier as well as the eastern breakwater have been rebuilt.

The eastern breakwater was rebuilt wholly by the inhabitants and is a light
piece of work, constructed many years ago to confine the river mouth and prevent
any undertow at the loading berths,

The new river face of the main pier is built of large size round timber, is 628
feet in length, and at the outer end 20 feet high, decreasing in height to 15 feet at
the inner end.

The new face is of various thicknesses owing to the old work being found
sounder in some places than in others, but it is all constructed in the same manner
with cross-ties and fenders at 8 foot centres and two ballast floors throughout. On
top it averages 22 feet in width and has three sets of longitudinal timbers, on the
bottom it is somewhat less, the cross-ties being run in and secured to the old work
wherever this latter was found sound enough.

The whole amount of the appropriation has been expended and all the timber work

is done and the work completed in every way, except ballasting on the upper floor for
about half the length of the structure.

JONES HARBOUR.

Jones Harbour is situated on the gastern side of the mouth of Sable River, and
is distant by water about 12 miles east of Lockeport.

The harbour is small but well sheltered, having from 9 to 12 feet of water in
the channel at low tide; it is much used by boat fishermen in the fall when the lar-
ger vessels have returned from “the banks.” There is a strong tide in the harbour
at certain times, and in 1888 the Department expended the sum of $50 in placing
3 rinﬁ bolt moorings so that the fishermen could secure their boats in safety.

uring the present fiscal year a landing wharf and breakwater have been con-
structed inside the mouth of the harbour to enable the fishermen to use a larger
class of boats and also to give them landing facilities,

The wharf is 175 feet long and consists of an inshore end 90 feet long and 15
feet wide, built of large stone; a centre portion of cribwork which is the same
width and 45 feet long, and an outer or channel block 40 feet long and 20 feet wide,
also of eribwork. The cribwork sections are of round timbey, ballasted with large
stone, fendered on all outside faces and have their surfaces covered with 3 inch
plank. Spring tides rise 7 feet and there is 9 feet of water at the outer end of the
wharf at low tide. '

LISMORE.

Lismore, Pictou County, is on the Northumberland Strait, 10 miles to the
eastward of Merigomish, the nearest harbour, and the same distance from Merigomish
Station on the Eastern Extension of the Intercolonial Railway.

A wharf was commenced in 1886-1887 and completed the following year. It is
200 feet in length and 20 feet wide. It isstrongly constructed, full ballasted and close
fendered at the outerend. The depth at the outer end at extreme low water is 1 foot
9 inches. Spring tides rise 4 feet 6 inches.

During the year 1889-90 the amount appropriated was expended in complet-
ing the work (commenced the previous year) of deepening to 1 foot 9 inches at extreme
low water through a reef extending from 5 to 20 feet beyond the outer end of the
wharf, the depth over which was originally 9 inches at extreme low water.

LOCKEPORT.

During the year two of the Departmental dredges operated at different times at
this place, which is situated on Rugged Island Harbour, Shelburne County, improv-
ing the navigation generally and giving a depth of 10 to 12 feet, except where rock
was met. :
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MABOU.

Mabou Harbour, Inverness County, is on the west coast of Cape Breton
Island, 6 miles north east from Port Hood.

The entrance was formerly at the southern extremity of a range of sand hills
by an intricate channel obstructed by a bar over which there was a depth of only
4 feet at low water. ,

In 1870, a survey was made, and a report submitted on the project of opening a
new channel through the sand hills at their northern extremity, and closing the
existing channel.

The work was commenced in 1872—a pier, on the south side of the new chan-
nel, 753 feet in length, was completed in 1876 and the same year the old channel was
closed. Expenditures have been made nearly every year since 1876, in constructing
a brush and stone dam on the south side near the outer end of the pier; construct-
ing and repairing a breast work on the north side ; repairing the pier and protecting
it %y close-piling ; and since 1885, in constructing a work of brush and stone 1n
shoal water on the south side of the channel, extending 1,112 feet beyond the outer
end of the pier.

The amount appropriated for the year 1889-90 was expended in increasing
the height of the brush and stone work.

The new channel is straight and in every way a great improvement on the
former entrance, which is now closed by a sand bar from 900 to 1,000 feet in width.
The depth at low water in the new channel, opposite the outer end of the brush and
stone work, is 7 feet; beyond this there is a short bar covered with 6 feet at low
water. In the channel from the outer end of the brush and stone work to the outer
end of the pier, the depth varies from 8 to 12 feet, and opposite the pier, where it is
about 100 feet wide, from 12 to 15 feet at low water. From the inner end of the
pier there is a channel 4,000 feet in length, expanding into a fine basin 2% miles long
and from a quarter to half a mile wide, inside the 10 feet lines, and having a depth of
from 2} to 4 fathoms over a large part of its area.

At the close of the fiscal year the “Canada” was engaged in deepening to 12
feet at low tide, and widening the channel through the sand bar at the entrance to
the harbour.

MAIN A DIEU.

Main & Dieu, Cape Breton County, is a small harbour on the eastern coast of
Cape Breton Island, 10 miles north-east from Louisburg. It is sheltered by Scat-
tarie Island and by reefs in the bay between it and the mainland, and affords a safe
anchorage for small coasting and fishing vessels, by whom it is much frequented, in
from 10 to 13 feet at low water. Spring tides rise 5} feet.

A point 240 feet long, 100 feet wide near the breakwater, was cut off by a dredge,
to a depth of 13 feet. A portion of the middle ground was also removed.

MARGAREE.

Margaree Harbour, at the mouth of the Margaree River, Inverness County,
is on the west coast of Cape Breton Island, about 30 miles north-east of Port Hood.
It has a narrow and intricate channel, through which the tides run at the rate of
four knots, and its entrance is obstructed by a bar of shifting sand over which there
is at times a depth of only 5 feet at extreme low water. Spring tides rise 4 feet.

A pier constructed on the west side of the entrance to the harbour by the
Provincial Government, prior to Confederation, was repaired and extended by the
Department in 1876, and again in 1879. ,

During the year 1889-90 a contract was entered into for repairs to the pier and for
an extension 200 feet in length, 20 feet in width on top, over a distance of 170 feet, and
25 feet over the remaining 30 feet. The extension is of round timber, full ballasted
and close-fendered. The work under contract has been prosecuted vigorously since
the spring, and is approaching completion.
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NEGRO ISLAND,

Negro Island, Shelburne County, is situated at the entrance to Negro Harbour,
and is about mid-way between Shelburne Harbour and Cape Sable.

The island, which is higher than the neighbouring coast, is divided into two
nearly equal sections, the only connection between them being a narrow neck or
spit of sand or gravel, about one-quarter mile long, which is dry at all times of tide.

This neck, besides being the roadway between the two portions of the island,
forms a natural breakwater to the small harbour where most of the small fishing
boats of the island are kept. The southern side of this neck or spit is at times
exposed to a heavy sea, and for some years its crown has been wearing away, until
about five years ago the tide began to ebb and flow over it.

Some three years ago the inhabitants becoming alarmed that both the harbour
and roadway would be destroyed, obtained assistance from the local authorities and
built a piece of beach protection work, 100 feet long over the lowest part of the spit.

The beach on either side of this piece of work being dangerously low, the
Department, during the past year, extended the beach protection and repaired the
former work. :

The new work is 189 feet long and 12 feet wide, and is built of round logs, with
cross ties at every 10 feet. It averages 3 feet 9 inches high; has a continuous
ballast floor laid on the bottom tier of longitudinals, and is filled to the top with
stone ballast. The protection work now extends over the whole length of the low
beach, and the spit appears to be fast building up to its original height,

PARTRIDGE ISLAND PIER,

Partridge Island Pier is situaied on the north side of the Basin of Minas, about a
mile to the westward of the mouth of the Partridge Island River, and about two miles
distant from the town of Parrsboro’, the terminus of the Cumberland Railway and
Coal Company’s railway. ,

The pier being directly on the seashore, has the benefit of the full extent of
the tides, and as vessels can approach it and leave it at full tide, it is the principal
%)int of communication between Cumberland County and the counties of King's and

ants, on the south shore of the basin; and the steamers of the Basin of Minas and
the St. John and Basin of Minas route, call there regularly during the season.

It is about 500 feet in length, and its width on top varies from 27 to 29
feet. The inner end, for a distance of 378 feet, is 2 feet above high water springs,
thence for a distance of 42 feet it slopes ¢ feet, thence to the outer end it keeps its
level, which is 4 feet below high water springs. On the inside of the outer end it
has a narrow inclined landing to afford passengers and freight a chance to land at
all times of tide. It is built of squared timber, with perpendicular faces, and is floor-
ed over. At the outer end it is 30 feet high, and the beach drives out, at low water,
about 100 feet from the end of the pier.

The pier was built during 1864-65 by the Local Goverument of Nova Scotia, and
since Confederation it has been extensively repaired by the Department. Itis ex-
posed to south-easterly gales, and when the ice is running up and down the bay
with the wind and tide, and the top being low, and the outer portion submerged
during high water springs, it is in constant danger of being damaged. ‘

During a heavy south-easterly gale, on the 1st October, 1889, the top of the
outer end of the pier, for a distance of 30 feet and.4 feet in depth, was wrecked, the
face timbers having been knocked out of their places, the ballast washed out, and a
portion of the flooring removed.

Last spring a small amount was expended in placing and securing some
loui piles on the inner face of the outer,end, to fender off the steamers, which during
high water spring tlides, were in danger of going on to the wrecked portion of the
pier. : :

Spring tides rise 41 feet; neap tides rise 34 feet,
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PARTRIDGE ISLAND RIVER.

This river enters the north side of the Basin of Minas, the south-eastern arm of
the Bay of Fundy, at the Village of Parrsboro’, Cumberland County, the terminus
of the Cumberland Railway and Coal Company’s railway (formerly the Springhill
and Parrsboro’ Railway). The river from the village to its mouth forms the harbour,
and it is a very important shipping point for coal and for lumber.

The channel of the river 18 vory crooked, and in the spring of 1879 the work of
cutting off Robertson’s, Shannon’s and Mullin’s Points was commenced by the
Department, and continued from year to year until 1884, when the contemplated
work was brought to completion.

The “spit” making out from the end of the sand bar on the eastern side of|
and near the mouth of the river, and consisting of clay and gravel, has always been
a serious obstruction to navigation, necessitating a very sharp turn at this point,
particularly when large steamers and vessels come to and leave the new landing
pier of the Cumberland Railway and Coal Company’s railway, coal laden, and
during 1888-89 a commencement was made by the Department for the removal of
the outer end of the ‘‘ spit.”

During the last season the work was continued, and 3,800 cubic yards (scow
measurement) of gravel and clay were removed by hand on to dump scows, by
which the material was removed to the place of deposit.

The point of the spit has now been cut away, for a distance of 285 feet, an
average width of 225 feet, and to an average depth of 3% feet. Over this distance
there is-at present a depth of 25 feet during high water springs, which is the same
depth as at the loading pier.

The river runs dry at low water, excepting a small fresh water channel. Spring
tides rise 41 feet; neaps rise 34 feet.

PORT GEORGE,

Port George, Annapolis County, is 37 miles east of Digby Gut on the south
shore of the Bay of Fundy. ' :

The harbour, which is dry at low water, is formed by a western breakwater-and
an eastern pier, both of which structures were built by the inhabitants and the local
authorities.

In 1875 the Department expended the sum of $7,000 in repairing and refacing
the western breakwater, which had become much decayed and worm-eaten.

In the autumn of 1888 the outer end of the breakwater was destroyed by a
-severe storm, 165 feet in length being wrecked and totally destroyed and an addi-
tional 25 feet badly damaged, Before repairs could be made a second storm destroyed
the damaged portion, leaving 190 feet of the work a complete wreck and rendering
the harbour practically useless.

During the Session of 1888-89 an appropriation of $5,000 was made for rebuilding
the breakwater, and during the present fiscal year a contract was entered into for
carrying out this work. - _

* Owing to difficulty in obtaining timber, and other delays, active operations
were lno(z begun until late this spring, since which time the work has progressed
rapidly.

~ PORT GREVILLE,

Port Greville, Cumberland County, is situated on Greville Buay, on the north
side of the Minas Channel, Bay of Fundy, and at the mouath of the Ratchford River.
It is about 14 miles west from the town of Parrsboro’, and 15 miles east of
Cape d’Or.

The harbour is formed by & high gravel and shingle -beach which lies parallel
to the shore, and as the crown o% the beach was washing away, during 1874 the
Department constructed a timber Proteﬁtim}) :vivall, 2,200 feet in length thereon. ;
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During 1886-87 a breakwater was constructed off the eastern end of the crib-
work wall, at the mouth of the harbour, for the double purpose of arresting the
gravel and to deviate the course of the river at its mouth so as to shorten its
passage Lo the sea. ’

During the past year the sum of $2,5600 was expended in re-constructing the top
of the cribwork wall for a distance of 2,040 feet, to a depth of 5 feet, to replace the
old top which, through the natural decay of the wood, had become so weak that
fears were entertained of the sea breaking through it. A cribwork wall, 120 feet in
length, was also constructed along the bank on the northern side of the mouth of
the harbour to prevent the sea from cutting into the gravel bank.

PORT HOOD.

Port Hood, the shire town of the Counly of Inverness, is on the west
coast of Cape Breton Island, twenty miles north of the northern entrance to the
Strait of Canso.

The harbour was formerly a secure one; Smith’s Island, which is two miles in
length, and forms its northern side, having been connected with the mainland by a
range of high sand hills. In 1839 the sea made a breach in this protection; the
opening, at first narrow, was enlarged by the tidal currents with increasing
rapidity until it was swept entirely away and its site covered by 15 feet of water.
The harbour is now unsafe during north-easterly gales, except in a small bay on the
east side of Smith’s Island. : |

A pier 550 feet long and 24 feet wide, with an |, 100 feet by 25 feet, was built
on the eastern shore of the harbour in 1865-66 by the Provincial Governmenpt.
When first taken in charge of by the Department it was in need of repair. In
November, 1871, a portion 200 feet in length, was destroyed. During the two
following seasons this was rebuilt, other necessary repairs made and a new block,
125 feet by 25 feet, built at the outer end. Slight repairs were made in 1877-78 and
1879, and extensive repairs in 1879-80, to make good damage caused by gales in
October, 1879, in August, 1880, and again in November, 1881. Repairs of a
permanent character were made in 1883-84, including & protection work of large
stones on both sides of the pier, sloping from high-water on the north side 3 to 1,
and on the scuth side 2 to 1. In 1884-85 some of the large stones of the protection
work, which had been disturbed, were replaced. A small amount was expended in
repairs to the outer end in 1887-88. 'While these were in progress the south end of
the |, was damaged below low water, and subsequently 40 feet of it was carried
away. In 1888-89 a block 48 feet by 22 feet was placed at the south end of the |
and connected with new work over the damaged portion referred to, the outer or
channel face of the |, was close-piled over a distance of 70 feet from the south end,
and some necessary repairs to the covering and north face near the outer end were
made,

In 1880 the depth at extreme low water at the outer end of the pier varied from
17 feet 9 inches, at the north corner, to 14 feet 3 inches at the south corner.
Soundings taken in April, 1888, showed a depth of 14 feet 3 inches at the north
corner, and from 9 feet 6 inches in to b feet between it and the south corner, over a
deposit of ballast, and at a distance of 10 feet out, from 12 feet 6 inches to 6 feet
over sand. On the completion of the repairs made in 1888-89 the depth at extreme
low water at the south or end face of the L, was about 9 feet over shifting sand.

The amount appropriated for the year 1889-90 was expended in constructing
and close-piling a block 71 feet in length and 24 feet in width against the outer face
of the pier between the north corner and the close-piling of the previous year, and
connecting it with new top work back of it; in renewing the close-piling over a
distance of 34 feet on the north side of the pier near the outer end, and in repairs to
the covering of the pier and to the rip-rap of the stone slope on its north side.

After tﬁxe completion of the above repairs, considerable damage was caused
during a succession of northerly gales iEl ZS%e(iember. A settlement of about 3 feet
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occurred along the outer face of the 51 feet block, the lower portion parting from the
upper work below low water, and permitting the ballast to go out of the face
chamber down to about 3 feet below extreme low water. Repairs can be effected by
cutting down the outer face and rebuilding. /

Sand has accumulated at the south end of the L, where the depth at extreme
low water, originally 9 feet, has decreased to about 7 feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet.

PORTER’S LAKE.

Porter’s Liake, Halifax County, is an extensive sheet of water, about 14 miles to
the eastward of the city of Halifax, It is about 18 miles in length, with an average
width of about half a mile, and a depth of from 9 to 30 feet over the greater portion
of its area. It drains a large extent of country, and receives the waters of several
streams,

Its southern end is separated from the Atlantic by several islands, connected by
sand and shingle beaches, and from Three Fathom Harbour by a narrow but high
and rocky ridge of land. The only outlet was a shallow and ecircuitous channel,
about one mile to the westward of the entrance into Three Fathom Harbour, and
from its exposed position no dependence could be placed upon it, even for the
smallest craft, as storms along the coast would continually change its depth and
outline.

During the years 1881 and 1884 the Department closed the old outlet and
opened a new one a little to the westward of it. The amount expended was very
small, as the business of the locality did not warrant a heavy expenditure, but
for a few years the new outlet was kept open, enabling small boats and rafts of
timber to pass through it during high water.

Generally, during the spring and fall, the freshets created a strong outward
current, and swept away the gravel and shingle which would be thrown into the
mouth of the outlet by heavy seas, but during the year 1889 the season was very
dry, and the small amount of water discharged out of the lake was not eufficiently
strong to clear the gravel and shingle out of the outlet, and by degrees they piled
up to such an extent as to completely block it.

The closing up of the outlet caused the water in the lake to rise some 18 inches
above the ordinary summer ievel, and as it was feared that the fall rains would still
increase that level, in which case the low-lying lands and the roads and bridges, around
the lake, would likely be flooded,during the past year the Department expended the
sum of $200 in re-opening the outlet.

The channel opened is 400 feet in length, 30 feet wide in the bottom, and the
average depth of the gravel and shingle removed is 2 feet.

PORT MAITLAND,

Port Maitland, formerly Green Cove, Yarmouth County, is situated about 13
miles to the north of the town of Yarmouth. v

The harbour, which is dry at low water, is an artificial one, and is formed by a
western breakwater and an eastern pier. It is an important fishing station, and
besides the number of boats and small vessels which are employed a considerable
amount of capital is invested in the fitting ont and management of * traps” or deep
water wiers. ’

In 1878 the Department extended the pier 50 feet, and raised and widened its
inner end for a distance of 158 feet, and also built a spur 75 feet long on the break-
water. In 1885 the outer end of the pier was ra‘sed and the sheathing of the outer
face of the breakwater was repaired and partly renewed by the breakwater.

In the winter of 1887-88 the breakwater was seriously damaged by a succession
of storms and a breach 86 feet in length was made directly through the middle of
the structure, and $500 was expended by the Department in clearing away the
wreckage and securing the work from further damage. .
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An appropriation of $4,200 was made during the fiscal year for re-building the
breach and repairing the existing parts of the structure, and towards the end of the
year a contract was entered into for carrying out this work,

PORT MEDWAY.

Port Medway, Queen’s County, is about 10 miles east of Liverpool; it stands on
the southern side of a bay of the same name and is 3 miles from its mouth.

The beach-protection works which were built in 1875-76, to prevent the sea
from breaking into the harbour were repaired during the present fiscal year.

The repairs extend over about 150 feet of the work, and consist of reballasting
the cribs, planking portions of the top to prevent further displacement of the ballast,
securing new fenders to the outside face and in some minor repairs.

The work is now in fair order throughout.

ROUND BAY,

Round Bay, Shelburne County, is 3 miles east of Negro Harbour and 13 miles to
the southward of the town of Shelburne.

The shores and beaches of this bay are flat and composed of fine white sand,
which when dry is liable to drift with winds off the Atlantic. The drifting takes
place mostly near high water mark and by lowering the height of the beach enables
the tide to flow further and further inland and thus destroys the seawalls and the
highway which follows the line of the coast round the head of-the bay.

The beaches have for years been protected and the seawalls built up by placing
brush and small trees a short distance above high water mark to catch the drifting
sand.
The brush, &ec., decays and breaks away after a course of t‘ime and during the
fiscal year 1888-89, the sum of $100 was expended by the Department in repairing
the gaps in the walls with new brush, and also in protecting the mouth of the creek
which enters the head of the bay, with heavier material.

The sum appropriated being insufficient to complete the repairs an additional
amount of $80 was expended dnring the present year to complete the repairs
undertaken the previous season. )

SHEET HARBOUR.

Sheet Harbour is situated on the Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, in the eastern
part of Halifax County, and is distant about 60 miles to the eastward of the mouth
of Halifax Harbour.

This harbour is one of the finest in Nova Scotia, being of considerable extent
and baving an abundant depth of water. It runs inland some 6% miles to Jared’s
Point, where it divides into two arms, called respectively the West and East Rivers.

There are saw and pulp mills at the head of each arm, at which a very large
amount of timber is cut, and a counsiderable amount of pulp is made. The lumber
is exported in large vessels, principally barques, to the United Kingdom, and the
pulp is shipped in schooners to the United States. Vessels coming to Sheet Harbour,
generally arrive in ballast, and as all the available ballast grounds have been filled
in, and the further depositing of it would injure the deep water channels, which are
already narrow, during the year 1887-88, a ballast wharf was constructed by the
Department at the head of the West River.

On the 9th January, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of a
ballast wharf on the eastern side of the HEast River, starting from the end of the
remains of Hall’s wharf, running southerly a distance of 180 feet, and 20 feet wide,
with an | 20 feet long and 20 feet wide at the southern end, the work being built
of round timber and the top, which is 3 feet above high water springs, is covered
with 3-inch plank.

The work was completed during last November, and has proved of great benefit
not only as a ballast wharf, but also as a public wharf. :
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At 10 feet from the face of the wharf, there are from 14 to 16 feet of water at
low water springs, which depth will accommodate the largest vessels that frequent
the harbour. ‘

Spring tides rise 6 feet 6 inches ; neaps rise 4 feet 6 inches.

SUMMERVILLE,

Summerville, Hants County, is situated on the eastern side of the Avon River,
about midway between the town of Windsor, the shiretown of the county, and the
mouth of the river, where it empties into the Basin of Minas. ‘

The wharf was constructed many years ago by the inhabitants, aided by the
Loecal Government, and, with the exception of some trifling repairs, no work had
been placed upon it since its completion, From want of repairs, the structure
remained useless for years, and as funds could not be obtained to repair it, Messrs,
Churchill of Hantsport, who intended to place a ferry steamer on the route between
Summerville, Hantsport and Windsor, during 1887, repaired the damaged end of
the wharf, extended it a distance of 36 feet and levelled off the rocky reef outside,
;10 permit their steamers to approach and leave the end of” the wharf at two-thirds

ood. .

The total length of the wharf is about 300 feet, varying in width from 25 to 31
feet, and in height from 4 to 23 feet, the latter being the height at the outer end.

During the past season the sum of $2,362.83 was expended in the removal of
the top of the wharf, to a depth of 3 feet, and in rebuilding it to an average depth
of 5 feet, with squared timber-faces, new ballast flooring and ballast.

As the repairs were only started during the month of April ult., the whole of
the contemplated work could not be accomplished by, the end of the fiscal year; and
what still remains to be done is the placing of flooring, capping and fendering.

THREE FATHOM HARBOUR.

Three Fathom Harbour, Halifax County, is situated on the Atlantic coast of
Nova Scotia, about 15 miles to the eastward of Halifax Harbour. It is formed by
"iglands and connecting gravel beaches, and although small, is well sheltered from
all quarters, and the small vessels which frequent the coast, can enter and leave it
at all times of tide. It is the rendezvous of a large number of fishermen, princi-
pally inhabitants of the surrounding country, and during the fishing season is a busy

lace. . ' :
P For the purpose of preventing the sea from breaking through the narrow gravel
and shirgle beach which separates the harbour from the Atlantic, the Depart-
ment during 1878 constructed cribwork along the crown of the beach, and the work
was extended since that date.

As the sea breaks very heavily over the beach, at the northern end of the work,
with a tendency to scour, during last autumn the sum of $250 was expended in extend-
ing the work, northerly, for a distande of 41 feet, the inner end sloping down to the
level of the beach. Some slight repairs to the main structure, consisting of replac-
ing washed-out ballast and broken off fenders, were also effected.

The total length of the work is now 1,050 feet, and it is constructed of round
timber, fendered every 5 feet along the seaward face, and thoroughly ballasted. K .

TIDNISH RIVER.

The Tidnish River, enters Bay Verte on its southern side and near its head
It is the largest stream entering the Bay, and for a short distance from its mouth,
it forms the boundary line between the Counties of Westmoreland, in New Brans- -
wick, and Cumberland, in Nova Scotia; the western shore being in the formerand .
the eastern in the latter province. oo ' o
Tidnish Head, about 1} miles to the eastward of the mouth of the river, is the
eastern terminus of the Chignecto Marine Railway, now under construction. =~ -
. [1890] . 81
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At the end of the fiscal year a contract was entered into for the construction
. of a public. wharf on the south-eastern side of, and near the mouth of the river, Cum-
berland County. ‘
The wharf is to be 220 feet in length on its centre line, and 20 feet wide, with
an | on the upper side of the outer end, 20 feet in length and 20 feet wide, and a
shore approach, 20 feet long and 12 feet wide; all of these dimensions being on top,
from outside to outside of cap timbers. All faces are to be built with a batter of
1 in 12, and the work throughout, with the exception of cap-timbers, ficor-stringers,
- fenders and fender piles, is to be constructed of round timber. All faces are to be
protected by fenders and fender piles, and the top is to be covered with 3-in. plank.
. At the end of the wharf, there will be a depth of 9 teet of water at high water
springs, which will accommodate the small vessels which trade in the locality.

TWO RIVERS.

Two Rivers, Cumberland County, is situated on the southern side of the
Chignecto Channel, about 3 miles to the southward of the Joggins Coal Mines, It
derives its name from the fact that two rivers empty here into the sea, at nearly the

same point.
© " Big River, the larger one of the two, is. the only important one, as it affords
better facilities for shiﬁping and better shelter during storms. An extensive saw
mill is situated at the head of the tide, and many vessels come into the river yearly
for lumber and piling. '

During the year a small sum has been expended in the removal of some large
freestone boulders, which, lying on the mud flats on the banks of the navigab%e
channel, near the mouth of the river, interfered with the navigation at high water,
and with the proper grounding of vessels during low water.

WALLACE.

. Wallace Harbour, Cumberland County, is situated on the south of the Straits
of Northumberland, about midway between Pictou Harbour and Bay Verte. 1t is
at the mouth of the Wallace River and is well sheltered from all winds,

Opposite the village of Wallace, which is situated on the south side of the river,
alanding was constructed many years ago 1o accommodate the ferry service across the
river, but as the accommodation was only available at, or near, high water, the
Department, during 1879, dredged a channel through the mud flats from the main
channel of the river to the landing, a distance of about 1,600 feet, with a width of
45 feet and a depth of 7 feet at low water springs, which rise here 7 feet.

The dredged channel is almost.at right angles to the shore line, and at high

water the tide and sea sweep across it, and considerable silting up took place, par-
ticularly at the inner end of the cut, and in 1887 it was cleaned out,
" Towards preventing the inner end of the cut from silting up, and to afford at
the same time shipping facilities to the inhabitants of North Wallace and Fox
Harbour, during 1835'—89, the Department commenced the construction of a- wharf,
starting from the end of the public road, running past the remains of the old ferry
landing on to the eastern or seaward side of the cut, the length constructed being
165 feet.

During the last season the sum of $2,578.41 was ¢xpended in extending the
wharf a distance of 180 feet, along the seaward side of the cut, 20 feet in width, with
an |, on the eastern side of the outer end, 20 feet long by 20 feet wide. The work
throughout, excepting the fenders, cap-timbers and floor-stringers. was constructed
of round timber, All faces are protected by fenders; a ballast floor has been placed
over.its whole length, and thereon ballast to a depth of 5 feet has been laid. The .
top was covered with 3-inch plank, and 6 mooring posts were placed.
" The total length of the wharf is now 345 feet, ot whicﬁ the-outer 180 feet,
g;ing along the edge of the dredged ch[ai%gelj can be used for shipping purposes.
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WESTERN HEAD.

Western Head is one of the most important shore-fishing stations in Queen’s
County. It is situated on the southern side of Liverpool Bay, about four miles to
the south of the town of Liverpool. - :

There is a broken rocky ledge projecting from the ‘ Head,” which forms a
partial shelter and enables fishermen to lund in their boats in moderate weather, but
the difficulty hitherto has been that the fishermen are not-only unable to launch
their boats in rough weather, but there is much danger in effecting a landing when
they have been caught on the fishing grounds,in sudden storms.

In 1887 the Department began the construction of a stone breakwater to give
the desired protection, and work was proceeded with during the fiscal year 1887-88
and continued in the year following. The breakwater was builtimmediately behind
and partly in shelter of the rocky ledge, and was constructed entirely of large
stone quarried for the purpose, the portion of the breakwater from low water mark
upwards being built of selected stone, hand placed and firmly bolted together. The
whole work was 40 feet wide on top and 190 feet long.

Soon after the breakwater was completed the coast was visited by an unusually
heavy gale which lasted three days and destroyed 100 feet of the outer end of the
work. . :

During the present fiscal year, the sum of $5,000 was expended in repairing
and rebuilding the work. Owing to the depth of water inside the reef,-and the
difficuity in securing a foundation, it was decided to rebuild on the top of the reef,
all of which could be reached at low water. The projecting points of the reef were
cut away and a bed prepared for the foundation course which was bolted down to
the bed rock and the interstices between the stones filled in with Portland cement
conerete; each succeeding course was laid in a similar manner, the top of th
breakwater being carried up five feet above high water, and the surface finishe®
off smooth, Where the new and old work join, the breakwater is 40 feet wided -
reduced in width to 29 feet where it joins the reef. The total length of work built,
during the present year is 106'feet. No further extension is contemplated and the
breakwater is now completed. :

) WEST JORDAN BAY,

Jordan Bay, Shelburne County, is situated midway between Lockeport and Shel-
burne Harbour. On the west side of the bay, about one mile to the southward of
Jordan Point, there is a deep land-locked pond of salt water which, until a few years
ago, formed a safe and convenient harbour for fishing boats and schooners, The
waters of this pond are separated from those of the outer bay by a high, narrow
gravel bar, through which formerly there was a deep channel.” This channel had
Jfor many years been getting narrower until, about nine years ago, it closed up
entirely during a heavy south-easterly storm, .

During the Session of 1888-89; an appropriation of $1,200 was made for the
purpose of re-opening the harbour, and during the past fiscal year this has been suec-
cessfully accomplished. '

The bar being composed of shifting gravel, it was not considered advisable to
attempt to open the old channel, for unless expensive protection works were built
on one, if not both, sides of the cutting, it would in all probability immediately close
up again. Advantage was therefore taken of a small “high water passage,” which
had been deepened in part by the inhabitants, and this was deepened, straightened,
and otherwise improved. : : :

A cutting, 170 feet long, 35 feel wide ont the bottom and about 52 feet on top,
with an average depth of 3 feet 8 inches, was made, and now fishing boats can pass
through at ‘all times of tide, and schooners as large as 40 tons can enter at high
water. Spring tides rise at this place 6 feet 9 inches, and neaps 12 inches less.

To guard against any future obstructions by %lravel the balance of the appro-
. priation was expended in constructing a pier on the back of thé island. This pier

is constructed of round timber and is 144 feet long, 18 feet wide and 13 feet high at
the outer end. : _ i
[1890] 83

9—6}



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

. NEW BRUNSWICK.

CAMPBELLTON.

Campbellton, Restigouche County, a thriving town, ‘-and important station on
the line of the Interco%onial Railway, is situated on the southern side of the Resti-
gouche River about 15 miles above Dalhousie, the shire town, where the river enters
the Baie des Chaleurs.

Campbellton is practically at the head of navigation, although the tide flows up
the river some 9 miles further, but shoals prevent the passage of vessels of any size.

Except on the “ Traverse,” about 4 miles below Campbellton (where the depth
is only about 12 feet) a depth of 18 feet at low water spring tides can be carried to
Campbellton, which, with the rise of 104 feet at springs, and 7 feet at neaps, affords
a good depth of water for the class of vessels engaged in trading with the place,
these being generally barques of from 400 to 900 tons. The greater number of these
arrive in ballast, the disposal of which has been a matter of serious inconvenience,
owing to there being no convenient place of deposit, hut to remedy this a contract
was entered into on the 23rd April, 1889, for the construction of a ballast wharf,”
the structure being an isolated block 140 feet in length by 35 feet in width, on top,
with a depth of 18 feet at extreme low water spring tides.

Work was commenced shortly before the beginning of the year, and at its close
was well advanced, being built up to specified height, fendered, &c., and only
required some little ballasting, putting on of covering, and construction of ballast
traps to complete. |

Towards providing a landing and approach for the ferry steamer plying between
Campbellton, and Cross Point on the Quebec shore of the river directly opposite, a
site was selected and provided by the town council, and a length of 116 feet of the
proposed landing has been constructed by the Department by days’ labour.

CAPE TORMENTINE,

Cape Tormentine is situated on the New Bruunswick coast of Northumberland
Strait, and is the nearest point of the mainland to Prince Edward Island, from
which it is distant about 9 miles. It is connected with the Intercolonial by a branch
line from Sackville, 36 miles in length. When navigation is blocked by ice, the

assengers and mails for Prince Edward Island are brought by this line to Cape
'ormentine, and taken across by boats to Cape Traverse.

The work under contract is an artificial harbour, formed by a pier extending
2,500 feet in a straight line from high ‘water mark, and having a head and a return
each 400 feet long. '

For 1,300 feet from the shore the straight pier consists of stone embankment,
20 feet wide on top with slopes of 2 to 1, covered with stones 20 cubic feet and
upwards in size, laid close. The remaining 1,200 feet of the straight pier is to be of
cribwork 30 feet wide. ' '

The head and return of similar cribwork are to be 40 feet wide from the base
to 1 foot above low water, and 30 feet wide on top, the slope to be sheathed with
hardwood plank.,

The work is 4 feet above high water, and reaches a depth of 15 feet at low
water spring tides. ;

During the year 1st July, 1889, to 30th June, 1890, the stone embankment has
been extended a distance of 571 feet, attaining its full length on top, viz.: 1,300 feet;
and 400 feet of cribwork substructure has been sunk in place and part of the super-
structure of No. 1 crib has also been built.

DALHOUSIE,

Dalhousie, Restigouche County, is situated on the right bank of the River Resti-
gouche at its entrance into the Baie des Chaleurs, .o
Dredging was done at the public wharf and a passage opened to the main
" channel: o : ' "
84 [1890]



54 Vietoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

EDGETT'S LANDING.

Edgett's Landing, Albert County, is situated on the west side of the Petitcodiac
River, about 10 miles above its mouth, and 2 miles sonth of the village of Hillsboro’, \
a railway and telegraph station as well as the business centre of ‘the county.

The port or shipping distriet of Hillsboro’ extends from Edgett’s Landing for 4
miles up the river, to what is known as Gray’s Island, and contains in it *“ Edgett’s,”
“The Klbert Manufacturing Co.” and “Gray’s Island” wharves, all private, and
about its centre the Breakwater or Lighthouse Pier, built by the Department in
1874, : '

Annually about some 30,000 tons of shipping loads ir the district, consisting
principally of schooners of from 100 to 300 tons, the greater number of which
arrive in ballast, to facilitate the discharge of which a contract was entered into
15th January, 1889, for the construction of a ballast wharf at Edgett’s Landing on
the site, where many years ago, and before the existence of the Albert Railway, the
Government of New Brunswick had constructed what was then known as the
“steamboat wharf,” but which was destroyed in the fall of 1869 during the
“Saxby Gale.” : ‘

The proposed ballast wharf is to be 400 feet in length, reaching to within 150
feet of low water mark, and will have at its outer end 30 feet of water at high water
spring tides (which here rise 45 feet, neap tides 38 feet), the width at the outer end
being 40 feet reduced at each 100 feet inward 10 feet.

Most of the materials required were got out by the contractors during the
winter of 1889, and work commenced in the beginning of June was abandoned at
the end of the same month. '

In September, 1889, the contract was cancelled by Order in Council, and
materials that had been supplied taken charge of by the Department, construction
of the work being resumed under direct charge on the 20th May, 1890, and up to
- the end of the fiscal year thé progress made has been most satisfactory; on the
outer 100 feet or 40 feet wide portion which is built ciosed-faced of square timber, a
height of 17 feet has been built, a considerable length of the next section, 30 feet:
wide, also being well advanced, the latter being constructed of round logs, open
crib-work. , ’

FORT DUFFERIN.

Fort Dufferin, at the western entrance to St. John Harbour, i« situated on Negro
Point, at the inner end of the breakwater.

During the fiscal year-an addition of 100 feet in'length has been made to the
retaining wall that exténds northwardly from the inner end of the breakwator
round the foot of the hill on which the fort stands,

GRAND ANSE.,

Grand Anse, Gloucester County, on the southern shore of the Baie des Chaleurs,
is a small cove about midway between the harbours of Bathurst and Shippegan; i
is the centre of a thriving settlement, being also a railway and telegraph station on
the line of the Caraquet Railway, by which it is distant 30 miles from Bathurst,
and 40 miles from Shippegan. At Gloucester Junction, 3 miles south of Bathurst,
connection is made with the Intercolonial Railway system. '

The place being in the vicinity of excellent fishing ggrounds, this industry has
been largely followed by many of the inhabitants of the district as a means of liveli-
hood, some 90 boats being in all engaged at net, line and lobster fishing. '

The Department in 1875, to afford protection for the fishermen, began the
construction of a breakwater, which was carried to completion in 1879. It was
buill a distance of about 600 feet from the shore, with which its main portion (225
feet in length) was parallel, a return or L, 50 feet in length being fpl'aced at its
western end ; by this work a consideral')zle ar:e]aa, carrying from 6 to 7 feet of water
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at low tide was well sheltered, and the protection and accommodation desired
obtained. :

Owing to its exposed situation, almost yearly expenditures were found necessary
for repairs, the most serious damage occurring in the spring of 1886, when the
entire top and down to within about 2 féet of low water was carried away by the
pressure of the ice during & northerly storm and high tide, the wreckage being
delposited in part of what had formed the boat harbour. The ice on this occasion
piled up along the shore from 20 to 30 feet high; the storm was said to have been
the most severe known. .

With the amounts appropriated during 1886-87-88-89, the entire work has
been reconstructed, its width being increased 10 feet on the seaward or exposed side,
which above low water has been formed with a slope of 1 to 1, and covered with
sheathing 5 inches in thickness. A length of 10 feet was also added to its eastern
end, and a considerable amount of wreckage removed from where it was obstructing
the sheltered area. :

During the past fiscal year, 1889-90, the L, or return at the western end of the
breakwater, has been extended 100 feet shorewards, and a further amount of ballast,
&ec., removed. ) :

~ The length of work built is of close-faced timber, double fendered, fully ballasted
and floored over, and having a timber-break 3% feet high secured by knees, &e., at
10 feet centres on its seaward or outer side; it is 21 feet wide on top, averages 15
feet high, battering on the sides and outer end 1 in 18.
Spring tides rise 64 feet, neaps 4 feet.

GRAND LAKE.

During the year a cut 1,600 feet in length, 50 feet in width and to a depth of 14
feet was made through the flats in the Grand Lake.

\

LINCOLN.

Lincoln is a parish, and settlement of Sunbury County, fronting on the south
side of the St. John River. :

It is arich agricultural district, thickly settled, from which, annually, quite a
quantity of cattle, hay, and general farm produce are shipped. '

The post office #“ Lincoln ” is situated at about 2 miles from the eastern boundary
of the parish and near the site of the public wharf built many years ago by the
Government of New Brunswick; its distance from ¢ Wassis,” a station. on the
Fredericton Branch of the New Brunswick Railway, being five miles, or from
Fredericton by post road or river, about 9 miles. ,

For many years the wharf has been quite unserviceable, but to render it avail-
able for public use, during the past fiscal year, it has been completely repaired and
enlarged ; being raised 5 feet over all of its frontage, 60 feet on the river; this
width of wharf exterids back 50 feet, after which an approach 22 feet wide and 50
feet in length connects it with the shore. The outer portions are planked over,
while the roadway of the approach is stone gravelled over. :

Along the face of the wharf the depth of water obtainable (low water summer
level) is 9 feet, und its height above this of 8 feet makes it available generally
except during the short duration of the extreme height of a high spring freshet,

ts upper side is protected against the running ice by a sloping face of 1 to 1,
%heathed with tamarac spars, and to accommodate vessels at low water a slip has
eon provided. ‘ '

MISPEC.

Mispec Harbour is situated on the north coast of the Bay of Fundy, at the
mouth of the Mispec stream (formerly known as Bail's Creek) about 10 miles to the
eastward of the city of St. John. .

The harbour is exposed to south-westerly gales, to protect it from which, some
fifty years ago, Mr, Ba{)l, the then owner of]extensive saw-mills on the stream and
86 [1890 .



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

other prOﬁerty in the vicinity, built & breakwater from the western shore, and so
afforded shelter for vessels visiting the place to load. During the “Saxby Gale” of
1869 the breakwater was badly damageg, and shortly afterwards rendered useless by
other storms. ‘

The Department in 1884 undertook and completed the construction of a new
work selecting a site about 700 feet south of the old one, by which change the area
of the shelter was increased and a gain of fully 2 feet obtained in the depth of
water, '

The breakwater is 200 feet long, 20 feet wide on top, 30 feet high at the outer
end and sloping in part 1 to 1 on the seaward side; it is built close faced of square
timber and filled solidly with rock ballast, and affords good shelter for small coast-
ing vessels and fishing boats. _

During the past fiscal year the seaward face of the work on a length of about
60 feet has been repaired. :

MIZZONETTE.
/ .

Mizzonette Point, Gioucester County, is the extreme eastern end of the small
geninsula that separates the upper part of Caraquet Harbour from the Baie des

haleurs. ; ’

It is distant from Grand Anse 9 miles east, and about 3 miles by water from
the village of Caraquet, both of which are stations on the line of the Caraquet Rail-
way. The peninsula or district is some 3 miles in length, and has settlers along
both sides of its coast, numbering in all, it is said 100 families, the principal portion
of these living near the “Point,” where the post office and public school are
situated.

To accommodate the residents of the district a contract was entered ifto 19th
February, 1889, for the construction of a landing wharf, which was gatisfactorily
completed on the 19th September of the same year. This wharf has a length of 500
feet, 480 feet of which is 12 feet wide; the remaining 20 feet (or outer bloek)
having a width of 20 feet; it is formed of alternate “%locks ? and “spans,” floor
stringered and planked over, the “spans” having corbels extending outwards from
the ‘“ blocks ”” 5 feet beneath the floor stringers. The sides of the roadway are pro--
tected by cap-timbers and “blocks” double fendered. The outer block while nearly
dry at extreme low water spring tides, usually at low water carries better than 2
feet. Spring tides rise 6 feet; neaps 4 feet.

OROMOCTO SHOALS,

The Oromocto Shoals of the St. John River lie between Thatch and Oromocto
Islands, about 10 miles below Fredericton.,

These shoals extend from Bellmont Wharf to the mouth of the River Oromocto,
opposite the foot of Thatch Island, and the channel, 1,000 foet in length, 50 feet in -
width and 14 feet in depth, was dredged by the “New Dominion” through them
during the year. f

. QUACO,

Quaco- Harbour situated on the north coast of the Bay of Fundy, about 30 miles
east from St. John, is at the mouth of a small river, being a basin of about 15 acres
area, well protected by high rocky cliffs on all sides, excepting from the south-east,
the entrance being exposed between east-south-east and south-south-west.

In 1873 the Department constructed a breakwater 300 feet long on the castern
side of the entrance, and in 1882-83 one of the same length on.the western side,
these works rendering the harbour a safe place of refuge for coasting vessels, acces-
sible, however, only between about four hours flood and two hours ebb tide, as at
low water it entirely dries, excepting the fresh water channel of the river. Spring
tides rise 30 feet, neaps 25, and give within the harbour at high water from 15 to 20

feet,
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During a storm that occurred on the 5th December, 1889, the seaward face of
the western breakwater was damaged, the sheathing and longitudinal timbers of
the sloping face being carried away for a distance of about 60 feet, and a quantity
of ballast washed out of the work, as well as other damage being done.

Repairs were effected during January and February of the present year, but
part of the face is still in an insecure condition should a severe storm occur durmng
the time of high water spring tides.

RICHIBUCTO.

Richibucto Harbour, Kent County, is situated on the south-west shore of the
Gulf of St. Lawrence, about 40 miles north from Shediac Harbour (Poiut du Chéne)
the eastern terminus of the Intercolonial Railway.

The entrance which lies between sand beaches is obstructed by a shifting sand
bar, and the Department, in 1873, began the construction of a breakwater towards
its improvement, extending in a south-easterly direction from the point of the “ North
Beach,” it being proposed that one also should be built in a north-easterly direction
from the *“ South Beach,” the object being to confine the outflowing waters to one
permanent channel, and so carry them through the bar, which it was supposed the
increased current might rémove by scouring. Work on the northern breakwater
was continued up to 1875 when it had been extended 1,200 feet; it was then
found that the sea during easterly storms set very heavily againstits south face, and
running along it undermined its inner end and carried away portions of the sand
beach to such an extent that there was great danger of a channel being formed
through it at the inner end of the breakwater, rendering the constructing of protec-
tive works necessary to prevent this encroachment of the sea.

With the amount appropriated for the past fiscal year, 94 feet has been added
to the inner end of the “beach protection” connecting it with the sand hills where,
. from the trend of the shore line, it is hoped further extension may be unnecessary;

several spaces from where the stone ballast had been removed from the work built
“in former years have also been refilled.

Removing ballast from the work as is the constant practice of the lobster fisher-
men and others fishing off the harbour has been a serious injury to the work and loss
to, the Department. Stone is taken for trap moorings and net weights and for
ballasting the fishing boats when going out light to fish, the quantity removed for
the latter purpose being each year very large, and no doubt has been one cause for
the constant repair required.

Dredging was done during the past year in the north and south channels of this
" harbour.

RIVER RESTIGOUCHE.

The channel through the “Traverse,” in the River Restigouche, was improved
durini the past year by one of the Departmental dredges, a large amount of sand,
mud, &e., being removed.

L
8T. JOHN RIVER.

The St. John is the largest river in the Maritime Provinces, having a length -
of about 500 miles ; it takes its rise in the State of Maine, near the source of the
Penobscot and Connecticut Rivers, and falls into the Bay of Fundy at the Harbour
and City of Saint John,

Tts length in New Brunswick may be divided into three sections—the first
75 miles in %ength, between the mouth of the St. Francis (where the river first
touches Canadian. territory) and the Grand Falls, to within two miles of which
latter point it forms the boundary line betwcen Maine and New Brunswick. The
second, 140 miles in length, between Grand Falls and Fredericton; and the third,

80 miles in length, between Fredericton and St. John,
. The first section is navigated now only by tow boats, though at one time, it is
said, a small steamer plied on it occasionally. : :
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The second section is navigable by stern-wheel steamers during high water in
spring and autumn, and generally by tow boats during open water, the rapidity of
the current preventing the employment of sailing vessels beyond “Spring Hill,” six
miles above Fredericton. ,

The third section, over all of which the influence of the tide is slightly felt, is
navigable for steamers and sailing vessels drawing not more than 10 feet. )

uring the fiscal year on the first sectiun repairs were made to the tow paths,
and a number of bolders and sand bars removed from the channel ; at the Grand Falls
a further expenditure was made in blasting the dangerous rocky ledges.

. On the second section (in Victoria County), between the mouth of the Tobigue
and Grand Falls, bouldeis and sand bars were removed from the channel, and the tow
path was repaired ; similar work being performed on the Tobique River itself, where
in addition a number of rocky ledges were removed by blasting. In York County, at
‘“ Bear Island Bar,” 25 miles above Fredericton, improvement of the middle channel
was made, the southerly one formly used being rendered useless from the accumn-
lations of sunken trees, gravel, boulders, &e., carried into it by the freshets of late
years.

‘On the third section, between Fredericton and St. John 118 “snags” have
been removed from the steamboat channel, haulad on shore above high water and
cut up into short lengths.

8T. LOUIS.

. 8t. Louis, Kent County, is a closely built and rapidly growin%{village (exclus-

_ively settled by Acadian French) situated on the south bank of the Kouchibouguacis
River, about 4 milés from its mouth where it enters the Gulf of St. Lawrence, and
7 miles northward from Richibucto, the shire town of the county; it is the terminus
of the “ Kent Northern Railway.”

The Kouchibouguacis at St. Louis has a width of about 700 feet and is spanned
by the highway bridge, a swing span in this admitting of the passage of vessels far-
ther up the stream which is navigable for some miles.

To provide wharfage accommodation a contract was entered into 6th November,
1888, for the construction of a wharf 200 feet in length and 30 feet wide on top, to
extend in a north-easterly direction from the outer end of the south abutment of the
bridge, and was satisfactorily completed on the 21st September, 1889,

The wharf is built of round logs, open cribwork fendered on face at 10 feet
centres, and after being well filled with ballast, floor stringered and planked over and
has along its face a depth of 7 feet of water at low water spring tides, which here
rise 3% feet ; neaps, 2 feet.

SHIPPEGAN.

i

Shippegan Harbour, Gloucester County, formed by Pokesudie Island, and main-
land on the west and Shippegan Island on the east, is situated near the entrance to
the Baie des Chaleurs (of which it is an arm) about 60 miles east of Bathurst, the
shire town of the county, with which it has commanication by the line of the Cara-
quet Railway. '

At the southern end of the harbour connection is made with the Gulf of St.
Lawrence by “ Shippegan Gully, ” a shoal and difficult channel formerly used only
during fine weather by the smaller fishing boats and vessels of light draft,

By the use of the *“ Gully ” a saving in distance is made of from 25 to 40 miles for
the fishermen going or returning to their homes from the fishing grounds, situated
off the ““ Gully.” ghippegan Harbour is also a most desirable shelter during storms,
while to pass through the “ Gully ” is.the most direct course for the fishing fleet of
Caraquet and the other extensive fishing stations on the south shore of the bay.
Before the construction of the Intercolonial Railway it was much desired that the
“Gully” should be deepened sufficiently to permit of the passage of steamers bound
from ports in the Strait of Northumberland to those on the Baie des Chaleurs,
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That the “ Gully ” might always be available for entrance, as also permit of its
use by the larger sized fishing vessels, the Departmeut, in 1875, entered into a con-
tract for the construction of a breakwater 1,750 feet lon%to protect thé entrance, and
a dam 870 feet long to close an opening known as the “ East Gully.” Difficulty was
had with the contractors, who suspended operations at the close of the summer of
1876, and the work was re-let in December, 1877, operations being resumed April,
1878 ; but the second contractors, about the end of July, stated their inability to pro-
ceed further with the work, and it was taken over by the Department. *

At this time the dam was completed, about 900 feet of the breakwater raised to
its proper height, and a further 500 feet in length of it partly built,

In October, 1879, a storm occurred, during which the tide rose 4 feet higher
than before known, seriously injuring the dam, while the unfinished outer 500 feet of
the breakwater was completely destroyed and the inner portion much damaged. In
1880-81 the dam was repaired, raised and strengthened by piles driven 10 feet apart,
connected by caps and walings. During 1883 portions of it that hads again settled
were raised where deemed unsafe, and an extension of 120 feet added to the remains
of the breakwater ; a gap that had been made being closed as well, and other portions
of the structure raised.

General repairs were again made in 1884-85, when 50 feet of the outer end was’
close-piled, the ‘ Dam ” at the time being raised where settloment had taken place.
Further close-piling and some general repairs of the work were also-done in 1886-8%,
while during 1888-89 a length of 60 feet was reconstructed, which had been seriously
damaged the previous winter, =

During the past season some further close-piling and repairs have been made to
the outer end of the work, which is now generally in good condition. On the 26th
November a contract was entered into for an additional block at the end of the
ehstern or present breakwater, and the construction of a breakwater extending 1,100
feet in a southerly direction from the western beach at the entrance of the “ Gully.”
Materials for the works were got out during the past winter, and a large portion
delivered at the site by the end of the fiscal year, and 7 feet in height of the “ addi-
1i)iolnal block ”” (40 feet by 50 feet) had been built, placed in position and secured by

allasting. :

Thegworks so far built at the “Gully” have given most favourable results,
improving the depth of water in the channel fully 2 feet, and already proving of
great benefit to the fishing fleet of the harbour and surrounding districts.

UPPER SALMON RIVER,

Upper Salmon River, Albert County, N.B., empties into Salisbury Bay at the
head of the Bay of Fundy, about 4 miles north-east of Matthew’'s Head and 10
miles north-west of Cape Enragé. .

At its mouth is situated the thriving village of Alma, the proposed terminus of
the Albert Southern Railway, now about approaching comt;pletion, by which it will
be distant 16 miles from Harvey, the present terminus of the Harvey and Salis-
bury Railway.

During a severo storm that occurred on the 2nd and 3rd November, 1888, a
length of about 50 feet of the sheathing, face timbers, &c., of the sloping face, near
the outer end of the work, having been carried away, the damage done was made

" good by the Department during the latter part of the same month.

During the past fiscal year it being found that scouring was taking place at the
outer end of the breakwater-owing to the action of the sea and current of the river
during freshets undermining and endangering it, this portion was repaired and
protected so far as possible with the amount available, timbers being inserted and
secured under the work along the face and end, after which a deposit of brush and

‘stone was placed, covering the exposed portion. : ’
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QUEBEC.
BAIE ST PAUL.

Baie St. Paul is situated on the north shore of the River St. Lawrence, 60 miles
east of Quebec, in the County of Charlevoix. ‘

In 187475 an isolated block was built at the entrance of the bay in 12 feet of
water, at low water spring tides, 3,000 feet from shore at high tide and 500 feet at
low tide. It is 200 feet long, 25 feet wide, with a head at outer end 45 feet by 55 feet
long, on which stands the lighthouse. :

This block is used by steamers as a landing place, but affords poor accommoda-
tion, as passengers and baggage have to be taken to shore in row boats, as well as
wait until the tide is either low or high, and it cannot be used for heavy freight or
live stock.

During the summer of ‘1882 a wharf was commenced on the eastern side of the
bay at Cap aux Corbeaux, This wharf is now 786 feet long, 30 feet wide, with 8 feet. -
of water at the end at low water spring tides.

On the 19th May last a contract was entered into to extend the wharf 75 feet,
which will give a depth of water of 9 feet, barely sufficient for the boats of the
Saguenay line to call during heavy winds.

On the 29th October, 1889, the sum of $1,500 was authorized for repairs to the
east side of the isolated block, which had been damaged by ice. The work had to be
suspended on the 30th November, owing to cold and stormy weather. The sum of
$1,204 had then been expended.

Spring tides rise 21 feet; neap tides, 13 feet.

BEAUHARNOIS.

The chef lieu of the County of Beaubarnois is on the southern shore of Lake.St.
Louis, 20 miles above Montreal. :
Dredging was done between Robillard’s and Baker’s wharves.

BERTHIER (EN BAS),

. Berthier, 24} miles below Quebec, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, is in
the County of Montmagny.
During the last fiscal year the work done consisted in re-planking the footpath
on both sides of the wharf, 100 feet of capping have been removed, 4 mooring posts
replaced, and a few other small repairs done. ,

BOUCHERVILLE.

The Village of Boucherville is on the south shore of the River St. Lawrence,
opposite Longue Pointe, 8 miles below Montreal. .

A channel of 2,300 feet in length, of an average width of 40 feet and, 9 feet deep
at low water, was dredged north of Molson’s Island. ) ‘

CAP CHATTE.

Cap Chatte is situated on the St, Lawrence, at tho extreme western end of the
County of Gaspé. v
. The improvements to the channel of this river by the removal of rock,
referred to in my report of last year, have been completed, and vessels can now enter
with safety. '

CAP DE LA MAGDELEINE,

Cap de la Magdeleine is in the County of Champlain, and on the north shore of
the River St, Lawrence, 3 miles below Three Rivers. °,

A quantity of stone ballast was placed in the wharf, and the approach
raised 18 inches over its whole length, filled with ballast and planked. '
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CAP SANTE.

The parish of Cap Santé is situated in the County of Portneuf, on the northern
shore of the St. Lawrence, and is about 30 miles above Quebec,

At neap tides the boats can only approach the wharf when the water has risen
to the height of 7 feet 9 inches, and even then with danger, owing to the boulders
which obstruct the river, a number of which were removed from the channel leading
to the wharf. .

CHATEAUGAY,

A departmental dredge opened a channel during the year at the western end of
Nun’s Island, and in front of the warf as well as a channel through the shoal at the
eastern entrance of the island.

CHENAL DU MOINE.

This channel lies between Ile du Moine and the parish of Ste. Anne de Sorel, on
the south side of the St. Lawrence, about 3 miles below Sovel.

Timber, ballast and other materials for the constraction of an additional ice
pier were procured during the year.

CHICOUTIMI.

Chicoutimi is at the head of navigation on the River Saguenay, 71} miles above
Tadoussac.

The head of the wharf was extended westwardly a distance of 130 feet, and the
flooring renewed where required.

COTEAU LANDING.

Coteau Landing is situated on the north side of the River St. Lawrence, at the

foot of Lake St. Francis. It is the chef lieu of the County of Soulanges, 2 miles from
Coteau Station, Grand Trunk Railway, and 36 miles from Montreal. During the
season of navigation the Richelieu and Ontario Navigation Company’s steamers call
at Coteau Landing, besides several local lines of boats. It is the chief grain-shipping
port of the county.
_ There are several wharves at this place, but the wharf known as the Riche-
lieu and Ontario Navigation Company’s is the one referred to in this report. It
i8 904 feet in length, including a block 279 feet by 24 feet at the outer end. The
bridge or approach has a general width of 12 feet, with two sidings for the crossing
of teams, :

In 1889 the rebuilding of the approach, which has a length of 800 feet, was
commenced in March and completed in August, 1889,

ETANG DU NORD.

Etang du Nord is at the western end of Grindstone Island, one of the Magdalen
Group, Gulf of St. Lawrence. g _
. The breakwater at this place is 500 feet long, 32 feet wide, and from 12 to 28
feet in height, with 21 feet depih of water at the end at low tides.
During the last fiscal year some of the sheathing was renewed, and 133 toises of :
stone placed in the talus to fill gaps made by the ice. .

GATINEAU POINT.

During the summer of 1889 the improvements made at Gatineau Point, which
is on the Ottawa River, about 2 miles below Ottawa City, consisted in raising the
retaining wall above the wharf 2} feet, and to the level of the public road. It was
found necessary also to fill in with gravel and sand the space between the shore and
the wharf, which had subsided to its former level,
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GRAND PABOS.

Grand Pabos, Gaspé County, is distant from Percé 30 miles.

In 1886 the Department commenced the improvement of the harbour of Grand
Pabos, and during t%e past year dangerous rocks were removed and cribwork, 215
feet in length, 24 feet in width and of an average height of 10 feet has been built,

HUDSON,

Hudson is on the Ottawa River, in the County of Vaudreuil.
Dredging was done in front of the wharf at this place and a channel opened
east and west from the wharf to the main channel to a depth of 7 feet.

ILE AUX COUDRES,

lle anx Coudres is in the County of Charlevoix, about 62 miles east of Quebec.

The island has a length of about 9 miles, and is 3 miles broad. It lies 14 miles
from the north shore of the St. Lawrence, the upper end being nearly opposite Baie
St. Paul.

In 1881 a wharf was built on the north shore of the island, at a distance of 3
miles from its western end. This wharf is 263 feet long and 30 feet wide, with 14
feet of water atits end at low water spring tides. It is in a good state of preservation,
though it has settled down about 2 feet at the outer end. -

During the year two spans between inner piers were filled with cribwork and
stone ballast, and the plank covering was renewed.

Spriug tides rise 41 feet; neap tides 13 feet.

ILE PERROT.

Ile Perrot is in the County of Vaudreuijl, at the mouth of the River Ottawa,
which it divides into two branches. Both the Grand Trunk and' Canadian Pacific
Railways cross the northern end of the island, but the nearest stations to the island
are Vaudreuil and St, Anne de Bellevue. The trade is principally done with the
city of Montreal, and consists in general farm produce. ’

In 1887-88 a wharf was built on the south side of the Island, on Lake St.
Louis, 14 miles below the church, ‘

It consists of a block 120 -feet in length by 30 feet in width, with a depth of 8

" feet of water, and is 580 feet from shore. It was built by contract.

1n 1888 and 1889 the span between the block and shore, a length of 600 feet,
was built, o

This approach consists of ten cribs, four of which are 12 feet and six 20 feet in
width, connected together by means of stringers. The shore abutment has a length
of 182 feet. The width of the approach is 16 feet.

A shed, 16 by 20 feet, was also built.

ISLE VERTE,

Isle Verte, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, is in the County of Temis-
couata, 9 miles below River du Loup.

Four hundred and thirty-five feet,of wharfing, 20 feet wide, with an average
height of 6} feet, have been constructed. This work is the continuation of the
approach to the block built at the mouth of the river.

KAMOURABKA,

Kamourasksa is on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, in the County of
Kamouraska, 90 miles below Quebec. :

The works at this place during the past year consisted in building an extension
110 feet in length, 25 feet wide and 13 feet high to the cld wharf, '

Repairs to the old wharf have also been commenced,
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LACHINE.

One of the Departmental dredges operated in deepening at the inside of the .
Lachine wharf to enable vessels requiring shelter to give an easy access to the pier.
Dredging was also done in the channel north of the boulder shoal at the head of the
Lachine Canal.

LAPRAIRIE.

Laprairie 18 the chef lieu of the county of the same name, and is situated
on the south shore of the River St. Lawrence, 7 miles above Montreal. ' It contains
churches for the Episcopalians and Roman Catholics, a convent, an orphans’ home,
a foundry, telegraph office, eight hotels and about twenty stores. The first railway
in British North America was constructed from Laprairie to St. Jobn’s in 1836. 1t
was first Tun by horses, then by steam, but was discontinued on the construction of
the Champlain road and the rails removed. A steam ferry runs between Laprairie
and Montreal, making several tripsa day. The population is about2,500. Laprairie
is one of the stations of the Champlain division of the Grand Trunk Railway. '

During the winter of 1886-87 two ice piers were built to prevent damage being
done to property during the breaking up of the ice in the spring. They have proved
thorrughly satisfactory. In 1887-88, to protect the town from disastrous floods, an
earth embarkment, 1600 feet in length, was constructed at the upper end of the
town. During the floods of the two last winters it has proved most successful.
Along the shore, east of the ice pier, a cribwork retaining wall was built on a length
of 480 feet. This wall is 10 feet in height, and is filled principally with stone.’

The retaining wall, 335 feet in length, commenced in 1888, was completed last
fall. It has a height of 16 feet and a width of 20 feet.

LES EBOULEMENTS.

Les Eboulements is a village in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of
the St. Lawrence, 72 miles east of Quebec and 18 miles west of Murray Bay.

A wharf was built here in 1853 about 3 miles west of the village, where the
boats of the Saguenay line of the Richelieu and Ontario Company call five times

_ & week during the summer months. _
. The wharf is 890 feet long, 30 feet wide in the main, with a head 80 feet
wide by 42 feet, with shed, store-room and waiting-room. The depth of water at its
outer end is 10 feet at low water springtides. .

During the year the sheathing of the south-west corner, which had been dam-
aged. by ice, was repaired, a hand-rail constructed along the east side of the wharf,
the store-room enlarged and new planks placed on the top covering. The wharf is
in a good state of repair. ‘

Spring tides rise 21 feet ; neap tides 13 feet,

LONGUEUIL.

. The town of Longueuil, the chef liex of the County of Chambly, is situated on
the south side of the River St. Lawrence, nearly opposite the eastern end of the city
of Montreal. The Sorel and Montreal and the South-Eastern Railways have a station
‘at Longuenil. The Richelieu and Ontario Navigation Company own a wharf at the
upper end of the town, but its distance from the business or centre portion, besides
-the increasing trade of the locality, demanded more wharfing accommodation, and in
the spring of 1887, at the request of the Town Council, the Department commenced
the construction of a pier, and a tontract has been entered into with Mr. A. Chagnon
for its completion,

When completed the pier will be 1,105 feet in length, including a block at the
outer end 40 feet by 80 teet; 90 feet of the pier is 30 feet in width, and the remaining
975 feet 20 feet.. Six buttresses on the lower side will also be built, At the block
there are 7 feet of. water at its lowest stage. .The pier is built 9 feet 6 inches above
low water line. The work is under progress, and will be completed about the 1st of
November next. R
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MONTEBELLO,

At Montebello a channel 525 feet long, 60 feet wide and 7 feet deep was opened
through a clay bar from the Ottawa River to Kiernan's Bay,

MURRAY BAY.

Murray Bay, or Malbaie, is situated on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, in
the County of Charlevoix, 90 miles east of Quebec, at the mouth of the River Malbaie.
At low tide this bay is left dry on its full extent, with the exceptwn of several small
channels which carry the waters of the river.

On the west side of the bay is the projecting rock, called Point au Pic, where the
so-named Murray Bay wharf is built.

This wharf was built in 1855 ; it was lengthened in 1875 a distance of 30 feet, and
is now 500 feet long, 30 feet wide in the main, having a head 108 feet wide by '70 feet
with a shed, store-rooms, waiting-room and lighthouse. The depth of water at its
end is 12 feot at low water spring tides. Spring tides risve 20 feet; neap tides 12 feet
6 inches.

The sheathing on the south-west corner, which had been damaged by ice, was
repaired, as well as the top covering, and the wharf is in a good state of preservation,
The plankmg at the outer end, however, will soon require renewal.

NEWPORT RIVER.

The east retaining wall was extended 90 feet in length by 20 feet in width and
13 feet high, and the old work repaired where required.

NICOLET.

The town of Nicolet, distant 13 miles from Three Rivers and 28 from Sorel, is
situated upon the eastern side of the river of that name, which takes its rise in Lake
Nicolet in the centre of Wolfe County, and after a course of 80 miles flows through
the parishes of I/Esperance, St. Paul of Chester, St. Christcphe, St. Albert, St.
Clothilde, St. Monique and St.  Jean Baptiste de Nicolet, emptying into the St
Lawrence on its southern side at the foot of Lake St. Peter.

The trade of Nicolet is chiefly in lumber. There are five saw mills on the
River, which are kept supplied with timber from the limits above.

An additional length of 686 feet of pile-work was constructed during the year,
stone was })laced in those parts of the work where settlement had taken place, and a
quantity of sand which had washed into the channel was removed by a dredge.

POINTE AUX ANGLAIS,

A channel 7 feet deep was made through the shoal of boulders obstructing the
passage of boats from the wharf to deep water in the Ottawa,

POINTE A VALOIS.,

Pointe & Valois is situated on the south shore ot the Lake of Two Mountains," in
the;County of Vaudreuil, and is 4} miles west of the village of Vaudreull whlch is
the;nearest railway station.
=" The wharf under construction consmts of a block 75 feet by 25 feet, with an
appxoach of 110 feet, 20 feet in width. ' There is a depth of 6 feet 3 inches of water
at its outer end, and ‘the total height of eribwork is 17 feet. It is notcompleted.

‘i0sThe old pier and the right of way was purchased from Charles Valois for the
sum of $600. , o
POINTE ST. PIERRE.

Pointe St. Pierre, County of Gaspé, is situated at the western entrance of G‘raspé
Bay, is 21 miles distant from Gaspé Basin and 15 miles from Percé.

The work of removing a dangerous granite reef in the harbour was commenced
during the past ycar, and the work is now well in hand, some 200 cubic yards having
been removed. , .
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RIMOUSBKI.

Rimouski is situated on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, in the County of
Rimouski, 180 miles below Quebec.

The work here consists in a protection pier 325 feet in length, 18 feet wide at
base, on the westerly side of the wharf, at its outer end. This work which is under
contract, is in progress, ‘

RIVIERE DES PRAIRIES—ILE BIZARD AND BTE, GENEVIRVE.

On the 24th October, 1889, a contract was entered into for the comstruction of
two piers at St. Geneviéve and St. Raphael de I'Ile Bizard, County Jacques Cartier,
Quebec.

The contractors have delivered most of the material required for the construc- .
tion of the two piers, and work will be commenced in a few days.

RIVIERE DU LIEVRE,

The Riviére du Lié¢vre flows into the Ottawa 18 miles below the city of Ottawa ;
its general course is southerly, and its width for 20 miles above the mouth varies
from 300 to 600 feet.

To illustrate the great trade and business done on this river, it is only necessary
to give the output of timber and phosphate during the last twelve months :—

Railway ties, NO ....ccoo i 40,000
Codar posts, NO..o.evveiiiiiiiiniiiiieiiiin et siannenaans 30,000
Square timber, cubic ft.........ccoooiviiiiiiiiin 154,395
Lumber, ft. B. M. ..ovviviiiiiiiiniiicicd i e 46,500,000
Phosphate, toDs. . covueeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiinirii e 27,637
Mica, IDB..ceeeiverniein i et 10,000
Foltspar, toms. . .uovveiviiiiniiiiiniirie it svraiineneen 50

The boats plying on this river, besides a large number of scows, are the “ Agnes,”
“Eva,” “ Kate,” “ High Rock ” and ¢ River Beile.”

It was with the intention of fostering, especially the phosphate industry, and
facilitating its transport from the mines to the nearest railway, which is at Bucking-
ham, that a contract for the construction of a lock and dam at the Little Rapids was
entéred into in December, 1886.

‘ The lock and dam will be of sufficient height to flood the Long Rapids, about 7}
miles above the site of the lock, and will give an uninterrupted navigation of 22
miles from the village of Buckingham to the foot of High Falls.

The lock has a length of 160 feet between the gates, is 32 feet 7 inches in
breadth, with 8 feet of water on the mitre sills. Entrance piers are also under con-
struction,

ll‘A retaining wall has been built along the edge of the river to protect the lock
wall., :

Mooring piers, a guide pier and{ a wharf have been constructed at the upper
end of the lock. The stone for the lock has been dressed and delivered at Bueking-
- ham Landing.

RIVIERE DU LOUP (EN BAS).

Riviére du Loup, in the County of Temiscouata, is situated on the south shore of
the St. Lawrence, 108 miles below Quebec.

The channel of the river was deepened and small repairs made to the whaxf,
RIVER L’ASSOMPTION,

The works done on the I’ Assomption River consisted in two guide piers, one at
the head of “ Chute Monte a Peine,” which has a length of 94 feet, and the other on
the east side of the river at the foot of the falls, a length of 40 feet, and a large
ggantity of rock was blasted out. It is[bglieired, that with these improvements the -
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logs will float easily down the “Chute” and not stick in it, as usual, Every spring-
at least 10,000 logs stuck in the falls and rapids, which were generally a loss to tho.
lumbermen, as at low water some one would set fire to them. .
About one-half mile above the “ Chute ” some protection works to the river banks.
are being made and are still in progress, . .
A channel 400 feet long and 40 feet wide was opened in front of McLaren's
wharf, and other dredging done.

RIVER MEKINAC.

The River Mekinac takesits rise in Lake Mekinac, in the County of Champlain,
and flows southward a distance of 18 miles, and empties into the St. Maurice, 49%
miles from the city of Three Rivers, Its depth varies from 1 to 12 feet.

There are several rapids on this river. One, which is 6 miles from its outlet, is
about a mile long, and is called the *“ Rapid Blanc.”

The communication between St. Roch and Les Grandes Piles in summer is by
boat and in winter by the ice; from Grandes Piles the train, twice a day, carries
passengers and freight to Three Rivers,

A number of boulders were removed from the channel in the first and second
rapids above the mouth of the river.

RIVIERE OUELLE.

Riviére Ouelle, in the County of Kamouraska, is 33 miles above River du Loup
and '75 miles below Quebec, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence.

The work at this place consisted in re-sheeting part of the head of the wharf at
ceuntre of outer face and under the landing-slip, and in re-planking part of the double
landing-slip, on the easterly side of the wharf.

The re-sheeting of the two outer corners of the head of the wharf has also been
commenced,

RIVER RICHELIEU,

The River Richelieu flows into the St. Lawrence at Sorel, on its southern shore,
45 miles below Montreal and 47 above Three Rivers.

The construction of an additional ice pier near the mouth of the river has been
commenced, but was not completed at the close of the fiscal year.

RIVER ST. DAVID.

Some repairs were made to the abutments of the bridge which crosses this river,
at the village of St. David, in the County of Yamaska. -

RIVER ST. FRANCIS,

This river takes its rise in Lake St. Francis, in the County of Beauce. It flows
south-west through the counties of Beauce and Wolfe, crossing the north-west corner
of the County of Compton, and takes a sharp turn to the north-west at Lennoxville,
It then flows through the counties of Sherbrooke, Richmond, Drummond and Yamaska,
and empties into Lake St. Peter on its southern shore, 11 miles below the Isles of
Sorel, and 3 miles from the mouth of the River Yamaska.

The bed of the river at its outlet is divided into several channels by a group of
small islands. ‘

During the year a further quantity of dredging was done opposite Tourville’s
mills and the wharf at St. Thomas de Pierreville, as well as at other points on the
river.

RIVER ST. MAURICE,

The St. Maurice empties into the St. Lawrence at the city of Three Rivers.
A channel 2,800 feet in Jength, 30 feet in width and 9 feet deep at low water
was dredged during the year in the western channel of the river up to the highway

bridge.
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RIVER YAMASKA,

This river takes its rige in the Township of Bolton, in the County of Brome. It
forms an outlet for several large lakes, and has a course of about 90 miles. It flows
through the counties of Brome, Missisquoi, Rouville, Bagot and St. Hyacinthe,
Richelieu and Yamaska, and empties into the head of Lake St, Peter on its southern
side, eight miles below Sorel.

A contract for the construction of a lift-lock and dam at Ile & Cardin, one mile
and three-quarters below the village of St. Michel de Yamaska and about four and
a-hulf miles from the mouth of the river, was entered into in the year 1880. This
work was completed in 1886. 1t gives a rise of 53 feet.

By the construction of these works, and by dredging done subsequently on the
shoal below the lock, the river has been rendered navigable for vessels of moderate
draught up to Belle Point, or Rugide de la Grosse-Roche, a distance of twenty miles.

The heavy rawns of September 1889 raised the water in the river to such a
height that a break occurred in the dam. That portion which remained was
repaired and strengthened, and the Petit Chenal was closed.

SHIP CHANNEL, RIVER ST. LAWRENCE.

The work in hand is the completion of the ship channel between Montreal and
Quebec to a full depth, 27% feet, at low water, and the objective points are at Cap &
1a Roche, Pouillier Rayer and Cap Charles, where work was carried on during the
last fiscal year. The maintenance of this depth of 27} feet also obtains with this
Department, and it was found necessary to dredge in the channel above lightship
No. 1 in Lake St. Peter, il having been reported that shoaling had taken place, and,
after testing, this was found to be correct, and the accumulation, amounting to
13,375 cubic yards, was removed. The pilots having reported a deficiency in the
depth at Pointe Citrouille, an accumulation of sand, amounting to 17,070 cubic yards,
was removed. _

The material in the vicinity of Cap & la Roche, being composed entirely of shale
rock, hard pan and boulders, only four of the dredges composing the fleet and spe-
cially adapted for rock dredging, were available for the work, one of which was
employed atCap & 1a Roche in deepening on the ¢ Curve,” assisted by asecond which
worked in the softer part of the rock, both dredging to a depth of 273} feet at low
tides. The material dredged consisted almost entirely of shale rock and aniounted
to 81,975 cubic yards, which, together with 200 cubic yards of large boulders lifted
by stone lifters, cost an average of $39.85 per cubic yard.

Between the rock bottom which is found at Cap 4 la Roche and Cap Charles
there is a stretch of hard pan, tough clay and boulders at Pouijllier Rayer which
requires the service of a very powerful dredge to effect their removal. On this

ortion work was done by the dredges employed during the year, to the extent ot
‘17)4,145 cubic yards, whilst the stonelifters took away boulders aggregating 465
cubic yards, at a cost of $34.88 per cubic yard. .

"At Pouillier Rayer one dredge worked during the whole of the working season,
being assisted during part of the time by a second which was placed on the softer
parts of the rock, for during the prosecution of the work it was found that the rock
at the lower end of the channel was so hard that the usual cut of 21 feet had to be
abandoned, and two cuts of 15 inches each had to be adopted to obtain the required
depth. Only shale rock was dredged at this place, the quantity amounting to
82,410 cubic yards, which, with 397 cubic yards of boulders removed by the stone-
lifters, cost $39.19 per cubic yard.

In the Cap & la Roche to Cap Charles channel, the total length being about
18,000 feet, 8,800 feet have been completed to the full depth of 274 feet at low water.

After a caretul examination at Grandines it was found that extremely danger-
ous obstructions in the shape of large boulders existed, and that their immediate
removal was necessary for the safety of vessels passing the place at periods of low
water. A stone-lifter was placed and worked nearly the whole of the season .of
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navigation, and removed 5,104 cubic yards of boulders, at a cost of $1.50% per cubic
ard. :

Y A steamboat channel was opened from the main channel to the village of Con-
trecceur, a distance of 4,700 feet, the width in the straight portions being 100 feet,
and at the bend varying from 125 to 150 feet, the depth, as tested at’low water,
being 8 feet. The total quantity of material—clay, sand and gravel—amounting to
116,200 cubic yards, being removed at a cost of $6.52 yer yard. A beacon has been
erected on Ile Hurteau to range with the spire of the Contrecceur church to indicate
the straight portion ®f the channel; and two small ones have beep placed on the
main shore for gnidance through the channel at the bend.

The details of work done, the dredging plant employed and expenses incurred,
&c., will be found in the tables at the end of this report.

Distances between Montreal and Quebec measured along the centre line of the
Ship Channel.

English Nauti
—_— Statute | autical
Miles, Miles.
Montreal Island Wharf, opposite Custom House..... ................ .. e . 0 0
Longue Pointe............. . (... il P N . 6
Pointe-aux Trembles, en haut.............. ... .. .. ... il e 1 8
7 31 - 1 1
Cap St. Michel. ... ... (. e e 1 1
Vercheres ..... ........ e e e e e e e | 21 19
Plum Island Light. .. . ... o 22 19
Contrecceur Channel, upper entrance............. ..... e e e e 28 2
Lavaltrie . ..... .. ..ottt e 30 26
Contrecceur Channel, lowerend.................. ... e, 36 313
Lanoraie.. . .... e e e e 364 313
Sorel, opposite Light House..... ............ .......... e 45 39
Tle de Grace Light._...... R 48%
Stone Island Light e . 52 4
Light Ship No.1... . o7 4
do  No.2..... i e e e .. 60, 52
L4 43T 23 1o 64
Light Ship No. 3. ...........coooian e e e e 71 61
Port St. Francis. ....o. on i e e 75
Three Rivers. ... .......iiiiinii i et cet e 81
Becancour, Iron Buoyat Bend............. ... ... il L 87
Chanplain. . . ..o e 93
Batiscan Wharf.................... e e e 101,
CapLevrant............ ... ...oocoii, A 105
Cap A-la-Roche, centre of new channel...................... ... ... 108
Cap Charles .. ..o i s e e ~ 1104
Richelieu Rapids. ... e e e e 120
Platou Wharf. .. ... L. . o e .o 124,
E LT 0 ) P 130
Beureuil. ... o e e e 132
Pointe-aux Trembles, en bas. ... ... .. L. i o 139
Cap Rouge..... .... e e i e e e e . 151
Quebec Custom House Wharf. .. ... it i 160

BT‘E. ADELAIDE DE PABOS.

Ste. Adelaide de Pabof, commonly called Little Pabos, is an important parish
in the County of Gaspé, the residents of which are engaged in fishing and farming.

In June, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a strongly-
built breakwater, 200 feet in length, to afford shelter to the boats engaged in the
fishing industry in this locality, and the work has been satisfactorily completed.
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ST. ALPHONSE.

St. Alphonse is at the head of Ha! Ha! Bay, River Saguenay, about 66 miles
about its mouth. :

The flooring of the end of the wharf at this place was renewed over an area of
77 by 55 feet, and other repairs effected.

STE. ANNE DE LE PERADE,

The river of St. Anne takes its rise in the County of Qyebec. It crosses the
counties of Portneuf and Champlain, and empties into the St. Lawrence on the north
shore, at Ste. Anne de la Pérade, 54 miles above Quebec and 23 miles below Three
Rivers. .

This river is for the most part verg shallow, and abounds in rapids. In the
vicinity of its outlet the banks are low, but some miles farther inland they are much
higher. '

A further amount of dredging was done to improve the channel of this river.

STE. ANNE DU SAGUENAY.

Ste. Anne du Saguenay is in the county of Chicoutimi, on the River Saguenay,
opposite Chicoutimi.

Timber required for the proposed wharf having been obtained during 1887-88,
the work of construction was commenced during 1888-89, and a length of 77 feet
was built.

This year a further length of work has been built, and on the portion ‘finished,
the flooring, mooring posts &c., have been placed, but the wharfis not completed.

ST. IRENEE.

St. Irénée is a small village, in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of
the St. Lawrence 81 miles east of Quebec and 9 miles west of Murray Bay.

In 1886 an isolated *“block ” was built, one-third of a mile west from the mouth
of the river, at about 600 feet from shore at high water spring tides, in a depth of
water at the outer end of 12 feet at low water spring tides.

The block is 80 feet by 32 feet, the greater dimension being parallel to the
shore. Steamboats do not call at this piace.

During the month of September, 1889, the sum of $501.73 was expended in
removing boulders from the mouth of the river in order to allow schooners to winter
-gafely therein, and the boulders removed were utilized in further protecting the
entrance from north east winds.

Spring tides rise 20 feet; neap tides 12 feet 6 inches.

ST. LAURENT,

The village of St. Laurent is situated on the south shore of the Island of Orleaus,
in the County of Montmorency, 15 miles east of Quebec.

The construction of the wharf at this place was commenced in 1866, It is 583
feet long and 32 feet wide at the outer end with 6 feet of water at low water spring
tides.

On the 4th of February last a contract was entered into with the Department
for the construction of an additional length of 60 feet, 60 feet wide at the outer end
and 50 feet at its junction with the old structure, but no work had been done at the
close of the fiscal year. The depth of the water at the end of the new structure will
be 9 feet at low water spring tides.

Spring tides rise 23 feet; neap tides 14 feet 6 inches.

ST. MICHEL.

St. Michel, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, is in the County of Bellechasse,
16 miles below Quebec. .

The work performed at this place consisted in the repairs of 220 feet on the
easterly side of the wharf for a width of 12 feet, with an average of 9 feet in height.
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ST. PLACIDE,

The western channel was deepened and the turning basin enlarged at the village
wharf,

ST. SIMEON,

St. Simeon, County of Charlevoix, is on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, 108
miles below Quebec.

On 20th December, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of an
isolated block 40 by 50 feet dimensions, with 13 feet at its outer end at low water
spring tides, and at the close of the fiscal year the work was well under way.

Spring tides rise 20 feet; neaps 124 feet, ’

ST. TIMOTHEE,

St. Timothée is situated on the south shore of the River St. Lawrence, in the
County of Beauharnois. Itis 6 miles east of Valleyfield and 9 miles west of the
town of Beauharnois.

During the summer of 1889, the wharf which has alength of 100 feet, was extended
out 45 feet, the extension being 45 feet by 100 feet. The steamers have no trouble
in swinging round since the construction of the extension.

TADOUSSAC.

Tadoussac, or Anse a I'Eaun, is at the mouth of the River Saguenay, on the southern
bank.

The wharf at this place is 366 feet in length, with a width of 26 feet, the end
block being 40 by 50 feet. The height of the wharf at the end is 29 feet, and there
is a depth of 7} feet at extreme low water.

A further portion of this whart was repaired and raised, 3 feet, the face
timbers of the outer end were renewed and a tempory slip was constructed.

THREE RIVERS.

Three Rivers, the chef lieu of the County of St. Maurice, is 92 miles below
Montreal and 72 above Quebec.

In November last a contract was entered into for the construction of a wharf
between that of the Richelieu and Ontario Company and the Harbour Commis$ivners
of Three Rivers, and at the close of the fiscal year the contractor had delivered a
large amount of the materials required.

TROIS PISTOLES.

Trois Pistoles is in the County of Temiscouata, on the south shore of the St.
Lawrence, 148 miles below Quebec.

The 60 feet extension to the wharf commenced in 1888 has been completed, and
another extension of 50 feet square has been commenced.

ONTARIO.

BOWMANVILLE.

Bowmanville, Durham County, is on Lake Ontario, 42 miles east of. Toronto.
A large amount of material was removed from this harbour by one of the
Department’s dredges and navigation materially improved thereby. '
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BRIGHTON.

Brighton, Northumberland County, is on Presqu’ile Harbour, Lake Ontario, 22
miles from Belleville.

During the year dredging was done between the bars and in front of the
wharves at this place,

BURLINGTON CHANNEL,

This channel leads through Burlington Beach, and connects the waters of Lake
Ontario with Burlington Bay which forms the harbour of Hamilton.

Necessary repairs were made to the piers, ferry slip and terry scow, and a
“ warping buoy,” to aid sailing vessels in leaving the channel, was placed in position,

CHAUDIERE BRIDGE, OTTAWA.

The reconstruction of the Chaudiere Bridge, across the Ottawa River, known as
the Suspension Bridge, has been carried on by the contractors, Messrs Rousseau &
Mather, proprietors of the Montreal Bridge Company, since August, 1889, and was
completed about the end of December, 1889. . : ‘

The extreme length of the bridge is 236 feet, and the span between abutments
229 feet in the cleam The bridge has a roadway of 30 feet clear width, with two
foot paths of 5 feet. The girders have fourteen panels with a depth of 30 feet.

COBOURG.

The harbour of Cobourg, in the County of Northumberland, is situated on the
north shore of Lake Ontario, some 96 miles west of Kingston and 72 miles from
Toronto, in the electoral district of West Northumberland. - '

During the past fiscal year the outer end of the west pier was rebuilt and the
central pier of the old harbour repaired. :

COLLINGWOOD,

- Collingwood is on the southern shore of the Georgian Bay and 94 miles from
oronto.

Duaring the past fiscal year a numbey of boulders of large size besides sunken
logs were removed from the channel and other parts of the harbour. These boulders
were spread over a large area and there removal has proved a source of much relief
to vessels entering and leaving the harbour.

DRESDEN,

The Sydenham River empties into the Chenal Ecarté, River St. Clair, and at
Wallaceburg divides into two branches, the northern one to Wilkesport, and the
eastern past Dresden. '

In September, 1889, a contract was awarded for the construction of sheet-pile
protection work on the north-west side of the turning basin. At the close of the
year the work was well under way, being nearly completed. '

GODERICH.

Goderich, County of Huron, is at the mouth of the River Maitland, which
empties into Lake Huron, about 68 miles north of Sarnia.

General necessary repairs were made to the harbour works at this place.
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KINCARDINE,

This harbour is situated oun the eastern coast of Liake Huron, 31 miles north of
Goderich, at the mouth of the Penetangore River. -

In 1856 two parallel piers to form a harbour were built 100 feat apart, the
northern pier being 540 feet in length and the southern one 290 feet, the latter
being extended and completed in 1868, , :

During the past fiscal year the sheet-piling of the south and east side of the -
basin was completed, and the pile protection work on the inside of the northern pier
was extended a distance of 200 feet northwardly. -

KINGSTON.,

Kingston is situated at the foot of Lake Ontario, 172 miles west of Montreal. ,

The work of removing Point Frederick Shoal was continued during the past
fiscal year, and 233 scow loads, or 2,754 cubic yards of rock, were removed.

Barly in the spring the four small scows engaged in this work were repaired in
readiness for the season’s work.

KINGSTON—DRY DOCK.

At the close of the fiscal year the bulk of the excavation—rock—had been
completed, and a large quantity of stone delivered for floor, altars, &c., and ‘much
work done in the construction of wharfing, and in filling and grading the grounds,

On the 19th June, 1890, the corner stone was laid by the Right Hon. Sir John
A. Macdonald, G.C.B., &c., assisted by the Honourable the Minister of Public Works.

KINGSVILLE,

Kingsville, Lake Erie, is distant 26 miles from the mouth of the Detroit River.
The flooring of the east pier being in a bad state, was repaired, to enable traffic
to be carried on. '

LITTLE CURRENT,

Little Current—the passage between Cloche Island and the Great Manitoulin
Island—is on the direct route to Sault Ste. Marie for vessels taking the north channel
instead of the outside passage on Lake Huron, It is distant from Collingwood about
140 miles.

The improvement of this passage or channel was resumed on the 25th September,
1889, and operations continued until 16th November, when they were suspended for
the winter. They were resumed on 22nd May, and were in progress at the close of
the fiscal year, 2,265 cubic yards of rock having been blasted and removed between
the dates above mentioned.

Repairs were made to the plant, and 2 new scow with steam derrick was supplied,
much to the efficiency of the work. :

LITTLE NATION RIVER,

The Little or South Nation River flows through five counties in the eastern
eninsula of the Province of Ontario—Grenville, Dundas, Stormont, Russell und
rescott, it empties into the Ottawa at Wendover.

Above the village of Casselman, in the County of Russell, the river is not navi-
gable, but from that point to the village of Plantagenet, a distance of 36 miles, it is
navigable, with the exception. of a short distance at the mouth of Muose Creek,
which flows into the Nation River. There existed a rocky shoal, extending over a
length of 700 foet, over which there was only 2 feet to 2 feet 6 inches of water,

For the last four seasons work has been donc towards the removal of this
obstruction, which was completed in the summer of 1889, some 4,600 cubic yards of
rock having been removed, besides a quantity of clay and alluvial deposit.
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MEAFORD.

Meaford, an incorporated town in the County of Grey, is situated on the Georgian
Bay, 18 miles west of Collingwood and 20 miles to the eastward of Owen Sound.

Prior to Confederation a pier 500 feet long, having 14 feet of water at its outer
end, was built by the local anthorities, aided by a grant from the Government. This
pier, which is on the west side of the Big Head River, was extended 160 feet during
187475, and an arm 200 feet long was built in a north-easterly direction, in order
10 afford protection against north-east winds. A breakwater 410 feet long was also
built on the east side of the river.

In 1878, and in 1880-81, the Department engaged in dredging to 12 feet inside
the western pier, deepening the channel to the inner harbour, which had been partly
dredged to 11 feet by the local authorities.

%n 1883-84, 850 feet of sheet-piling were built on the west side of both the inner
and outer harbour and substantial repairs made to the west pier, these repairs being
completed in 1885. In 1886 further dredging was done, and in 1887-88 the town
contributed $3,000 and the Government $5,000 to complete the dredging in the inner
harbour to 13 feet and to dredge a 100-foot channel, 14 feet deep, to it from the out-
side, which work was completed.

In August, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of the follow-
ing works :—

1. Cribwork, 80 feet in length and 20 in width, at the north end of the eastern
breakwater. :

2. Cribwork, 160 feet in length and 20 in width, at south end of the eastern
breakwater,

b 3. Sheet-piling, 200 feet long, at the east side of the entrance to the inner har-
our. .

These were satisfactorily completed in May last, and a quantity of stone was
placed in the pile work of the old breakwater, and a space between the breakwater
and the shore was also filled with stone. '

MIDLAND.

Midland, Simcoe County, is the terminus of the Midland Division of the Grand
Trunk on the Georgian Bay.

In August last a contract was entered into for the construction of afurther length
of 2,000 feet of work on the harbour front, and was nearly completed at the close
of the fiscal year.

NEWCASTLE.

Newecastle, Durham County, is on Lake Ontario, 47 miles east from Toronto.
The dredge “ Ontario ” operated during the year at this place deepening outside
of the piers at the entrance to the harbour as well as the harbour itself.

OWEN SOUND.

Owen Sound, in the County of Grey, is situated at the mouth of the Sydenham
River, and is the terminus of the Torontp, Grey and Bruce Division of the Canadian
Pacific Railway. It is also the Georgian Bay port of this company’s steamers plying
to Port Arthur and the River Kaministiquia, as well as of other vessels, both steam
and sail which navigate the Upper Lakes.

- On the 9th October, 1889, a contract was entered into for dredging and other
improvements in the harbour, and but little work was done, when in May last the
contractor was relieved of the work and it was awarded to the next lowest tenderers.

At the close of the fiscal year the contractors had delivered a large amount of
materials, and were getting their plant in readiness for active operations.

During April and May dredging was done over a part of the channel at the
entrance to the harbour, which had become shoaled, The length dredged was 2,400
feet on a width of 60 feet, and to a depth of 16 feet 5 inches at lowest water.
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PORT ALBERT.

Port Albert, at the mouth of Nine Mile Creek, is situated on the eastern shore
of Lake Huron, about 9 miles north of Goderich.

A small pier was first constructed by the local aulhorities, and in 1875 the
Department built an addition thereto of 50 feet in length, and constructed a small
breakwater of crib-work, 75 feet long; on the couth side of the creek. In 1881 and
1882 a row of close-piling, 300 feet in length, was driven from the eastern corner of
the pier eastwardly, and the basin so formed dredged to a depth of 10 feet.

During the fiscal year 1882-83 the improvements were further continued, earth
and clay being deposited behind the works on the northern side of the harbour and
90 feet of close-piling driven at the eastern end, in addition to the construction of
other work,

In 1884-85-86 and 1888-89 further repairs were made, and 300 feet of close
sheet-piling built on the eastern side of the north pier, to prevent earth from sliding
into the harbour. '

During the past year a small amount was expended in filling in two washouts,
one on the north and one on the south side of the entrance to the harbour.

PORT ARTHUR.

Port Arthur, at the head of Thunder Bay, situated as it is at the head of Cana-
dian navigation on Lake Superior, has become a very important place, and the point
—for the River Kaminisitiquia and the facilities for shipment which it affords is
now incorporated as part of the harbour of Port Arthur, under the Customs regula-
tions—through which all the products of the North-West must pass, either by land
or by water ; and for the purpose of protecting the wharves and the harbour proper
the construction of a length of 2,000 feet of the proposed breakwater was commenced
in 1884 and carried successfully to completion in February, 1886,

In February, 1887, the construction of a further length of 1,600 feet, in addition
to the work completed in the previous year, was commenced, and finished in Novem-
ber,1888; and a talus of stone was placed against the outside of the work, which
has added to the strength of the structure, as has been proved during the many
furious storms which have occurred since it was put in place.

In October, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a further
length of 1,500 feet of breakwater, with block piers at each end, to the westward of
the work already completed, an opening of 350 feet in width being left between the
old work and the new to permit vessels to enter the port.

In May, 1889, operations on this new work was commenced, and up to the close.
of the fiscal year 300 feet had been constructed.

A commencement wus made to extend the talus of stone along the front of the
work built under the first contract, it having been found that the bottom was eroding
under the action of seasduring heavy gales. It may here be mentioned that this brealk-
water has successfully withstood the force of breaking scas driven by gales travel-
ling at the rate of 54 miles an hour, and also ice shoves from the outer bay, when
the ice has been pushed completely over the structure and left remaining thereon
to a height of 19 feet.

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890, good progress has been made by
Messrs. Kirby & Stewart on the 1,500 feet of breakwater commenced by them in
May, 1889, and the whole will be completed within the time specified in their
contract,

A large amount of heavy stone was placed as a talus in front of the old work as
well as in front of that under construction. -

The depth at low water in the central opening is 18 feet; at the north-east
opening, which is 250 feet wide between the end of the breakwater and the Canadian
Pacific elevator wharf, the depth is 17 feet; and, after the completion of the length
—1,500 feet—now under contract, there will be a depth of 17 feet at the western
end, with ample room for steamers and vessels to pass. :

[1890] 105



54 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1891

- PORT HOPE,

Port Hope is on Lake Ontario, 7 miles above Cobourg and 103 above Kingston.

The superstructure of the Railway Wharf, so called in this harbour, received a
large amount of repairs and reconstruction,

The Departmental dredge * Ontario” operated during the fiscal year in this
harbour improving the navigation and giving a depth of from 12 to 14 feet.

PORTSMOUTH.

Portsmouth is situated on Lake Ontario, 2 miles west from Kingston.

: The work of re-building the superstructure of the pier at this place was continued
from 1st July to 26th October, 1889, during which time 2,032 feet of face-timbers,

1,421 of cross and longitudinal ties, and 340 cubic yards of stone filling were used.

RIDEAU RIVER, NORTH BRANCH,

The dredging referred to in my report of last year has been cdntinued, and the
navigation up to the Town of Kemptville materially improved, a basin being formed
a8 well in front of the proposed wharf.

RIVER KAMINISTIQUIA

This river empties into Thunder Bay, Lake Superior, to the westward of Port
~Arthar,

During the past fiscal year a further amount of dredging was done in the river
to better accommodate the large steamers now plying on these waters.

RIVER OTTAWA, BETWEEN PEMBROKE AND THE PETEWAWA RIVER.

During the last fiscal year the dredging of the shoal which obstructed the channel
leading to the Culbute Canal was carried on.

The dredge commenced operations on the 17th August and closed on the 26th
October, 1889. During that time 2,216 cubic yards of sand and gravel were removed.
To indicate the new channel way, which has a depth of 8 feet, ten buoys were placed
on the north side of the channel.

SAULT STE. MARIE.

Sault Ste. Marie, Algoma County, is at the head of the St. Mary’s River, which
connects Takes Huron and Superior.
’ As stated in my report of last year, the work of extending the wharf at this
place a distance of 130 feet into the river was completed. ‘ )

The old approach to this extension, which was in a bad state, was partly renewed
during the last fiscal year.

SOUTHAMPTON.

Southampton, in the Electoral District of North Bruce, is situated at the mouth
of the Saugeen River, which empties into Lake Huron, 143 miles above Sarnia, and
iIg,a tlhe terminus of the Wellington, Grey and Bruce branch of the Grand Trunk

ilway.

InyDecember last a contract for the construction of an addition of 200 feet to the
landing pier and necessary dredging was entered into, but at the close of the fiscal
year little progress had been made by the contractors, :

SUMMERSTOWN,

Summerstown, Glengary County, is on the north side of Lake St. Francis, 10
miles below Cornwall, ’

During the summer of 1889 the warehouse, commenced in 1888, was completed,
and other works executed. -
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TORONTO.

The harbour of Toronto is formed inside of the Island, and has its principal
entrance from the westward.

In 1788 the harbour was described to be nearly two miles in length from the
entrance on the west to the isthmus between it and a large morass- to the eastward.
The breath of the entrance was about half a mile, but the navigable channel for
vessels was only 1,500 feet, having a depth of from 18 to 21 feet of water.

In 1832 Bouchette stated that the peninsula, now Toronto Island, was an extra-
ordinary formation, being a narrow slip of land, in several places not more than 180
feet in breadth, but widening towards its western extremity to nearly a mile,

In 1833 changes in the state of the harbour were apparent, and the necessity
for its preservation engaged the attention of those interested in its maintenance and
improvement, who viewed with alarmg the changes which had taken place in the
peninsuala, the encroachments of the shoal from Gibraltar Point northward and the
narrowing of the entrance to the harbour. No action was taken, and in 1847 it was
reported to the Department of Public Works that the entrance had narrowed to 250
feet, the bar having increased northwardly 280 feet in seven years.

In 1850 the harbour was put in commission, and early in 1852 it was reported.
that from the ohservations made and soundings taken during twenty years it was
ascertained that the bar had advanced northwardly across the entrance at the rate
of 19 feet yearly, and that the available width of the channel was scarcely 200 feet.

In 1853 an opening was made during a storm through the narrow beach at the
eastern end of the harbour, and though it closed again in a short time afterwards,
and attempts were made to give permanence to the beach, the whole was swept
away and the castern entrance was formed, and in that year it was suggested that
its improvement should be undertaken, for the purpose of saving time to vessels:
arriving from or departing to the eastward; and that there would be a tendency, by
reason of the current created, to keep the harbour open later in the fall, and ensure
an earlier opening in the spring. X

In 1859 the harbour master reported that the harbour was bounded on the
south by an island, with a navigable channel, east and west of it; that in the
eastern channel there was a depth of 8 feet at low water, and if properly buoyed
might be navigated at night, In 1860 the western channel was dredged to a width
of 400 feet and an average depth of 12 feet. In 1862 the eastern entrance had
increased to half a mile in width, and a bar had formed which had shoaled the
water. .

Between 1874 and 1880 the sum of $49,120.90 had been expended, principally
in increasing the width and depth of the western entrance, and a certain amount of’
blasting for the removal of solid rock was executed.

In 1881 an examination of the harbour was made by the late Mr. Jas. B, Eads,
C.E., who submitted a carefully prepared report, in which he advised the closing of
the eastern entrance and the construction of works at the western entrance, to
obtain and maintain a depth of 18 feet at low water; but before any action could be
taken on these suggestions the marshes bounding the eastern side of the harhour,
and the whole of the southern shore of the island, were damaged to such an extent
as to necessitale a complete departure from the plans prepared by Mr. Eads, and

-attention had to be paid to the protection of the eastern side of the harbour, and the

preservation of the eastern portion of the island, where it was the narrowest, and
through which several breaches had been made. In 1882 work for the protection
of the harbour, extending from the Don southwardly to Fisherman’s Island, and for
the protection of the island, over a length of 6,500 feet, were commenced, and were
brought to completion in 1885,

In May, 1889, a contract was entered into for improving the eastern entrance,
the works required consisting of the dredging a channel 300 feet in width to adepth

. of 12 feet below low water, the construction of protection works on either side of

the new channel, and the continuation and completion of the harbour protection
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works on the eastern side of the proposed entrance—extending from Fisherman’s
Island westwardly to a junction with the channel works; and at the close of the
year dredging was well under way.

During the past fiscal year a channel 250 feet in width and to a depth of 12
feet was dredged through the gap, 122,000 cubic yards of sand having been
removed.

The contractors have delivered materials for the piers, and framing of cribs had
been commenced.

A large quantity of heavy stone was placed in the talus in front of the break-
water at the island, a total length of 3,700 feet having been thus protected. Work
done by day’s labour, under direct charge of the Department.

‘WIARTON.

Wiarton, Bruce County, is situated at the head of Colpoy’s Bay (Georgian Bay),
about 32 miles north of Owen Sound, and is the terminus of the Georgian Bay and
TLiake Erie branch of the Grand Trunk Railway.

The harbour is a natural one, extending 8 miles from its entrance to the town,
It is protected at the mouth by three large islands—White Cloud, Griffith and Hay.
The water is deep to within afew feet of the shore, and the harbour is clear of reefs,
bars or shoals.

On the 8th November, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of
a breakwater 380 feet in length and 25 feet in width, near the head of the harbour,
on the west side, to afford protection to small crafts; and at the close of the fiscal
year the work was nearly completed.

MANITOBA.

RED RIVER,

The channel of the river at its mouth was further improved during the year,
and other places up the river where work was required were attended to by the
departmental dredge.

THE WHITE MUD,

The mouth of the White Mud River is 9 miles north of Westbourne, in the County
of Marquette. Westbourne is on the Manitoba and North-Western Railway, and is a
place of transhipment to and from the lake in connection with the lake trade,

Several of the bars obstructing the navigation of the river were removed by one
of the dredges of the Department.

NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

BATTLE RIVER BRIDGE—BATTLEFORD.

The bridge across this river, which has been in course of construction for the
past two years, has been completed by the Dopartment, the contractors having failed.
in the work they agreed to undertake.

BELLY RIVER BRIDGE—LETHBRIDGE.

Belly River Bridge is situated in the north-west quarter of Section 1, Township 9,
Range 22, west of Fourth Principal Meridian and about 2 miles from the town of
Lethbridge.

A contract having been entered into for its construction, work was commenced
in October, 1889, and at the close of the fiseal year was so far advanced that it is
anticipated it will be completed by the month of September, 1890, :
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BRITISH COLUMBIA.

THE COLUMBIA RIVER,

Below Revelstoke—The work of removing snags from the channel of this river
between Revelstoke and the Arrow Lakes was actively prosecuted during the
autumn, winter and spring of 1889-90, and has resulted in ensuring the safety of
navigation between the points above mentioned, and two large stern-wheel steamers
—the “Kootenai” and “ZLytton ” ply between Hevolstoke and Sproat's Landing, a
point near the confluence of the Kootenay and Columbia Rivers, the starting point of
the Columbia and Kootenay Railway, now in conrse of construction, !

Above G'olden.—In my report of last year this portion of the river was described,
as well as the class of work undertaken for its improvement.

The work during the past fiscal year consisted in strengthening the dams built
during 1888-89, and in the construction of others at various points,

At the salmon beds, where the greatest difficulty to pavigation is experienced,
a dam about 705 feet in length was constructed at the point where the river leaves
the Lower Columbia Lake, in order to keep the water from flowing over the salmon
beds and thus facilitate the excavation of a channel through them, which it was found
difficult to do the previous year, owing to the large body of water flowing over them.

The work done has been of the greatest benefit to navigation,

THE COQUITLAM,

The source of the Coquitlam is Coquitlam TLake, whence it flows southwardly
and empties into the Fraser on its northern side, about 5 miles above New West-
minster. The river is not navigable for any distance from its mouth except for
canoes, being very rapid. ‘

The work of clearing timber jams and other obstructions from the channel which
prevented the free flow of water, was continued during the year.

COWICHAN RIVER.,

The Cowichan is one of the rivers of Vancouver Island, and distant from Vie-
toria about 35 miles.

Operations for ths purpose of straightening tbe channel of this river between
the Somanos Indian village—a mile above the railway bridge—and the Quamichan
Indian village, a distance of about 2 miles, have been continued during the past
year with good results,

THE DRY DOCK—ESQUIMALT.

Although the number of vessels docked this year is not as large as that of last,
the dock has been fully occupied. This reduction in the number of vessels using it
was caused by the accident to H.M.S. “ Amphion,” this vessel being in the dock 7
months and 10 days.

Two of Her Majesty’s ships, the “ Amphion ” (twice) and the “Icarus” and
geven other steamers, were docked and repaired during the fiscal year.

In addition to the new keel blocks and handrails, staunchions, &c., put up
around the dock, considerable improvements have been effected by the staff over and
above the usual work of attending to the dock and engines and keeping them in
good order.

FRASER RIVER.

The sand banks at the mouth of the Fraser extend about 5 miles into the Straits
of Georgia. According to the old Admiralty charts two channels formerly existed
through these banks, the course of one being nearly west, and the other leaving the
first about 2 miles from the mouth of the river, passing to the south and thence west
- to the straits. In time the north channel filled, leaving the tortuous south channel
the only entrance to the river. After a lapse of years it was found that adeepening
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of the north channel was taking place, and in 1886 works with the object of improv-
ing this channel were commenced, and have been steadily carried on. '

The range of tide on the sand banks averages 124 feet, whilst the range in the
river at 2 miles from its mouth is about nine feet. The current across the banks
at strong ebb runs from 2% to 3 miles an hour, whilst during the periods of freshets
it is increased to 5 miles per hour. :

The work of impreving the channel across the sand heads at the mouth of the
river was continued during the past year, and a further length of dam was con-
structed ; the channel is gradually improving, straightening and increasing in depth
owing to the works constructed by the Department,

NICOL ROCK.

.The harbour of Nanaimo is situated on the east coast of Vancouver Island,
distant 73 miles from Viectoria, by which it is connected by rail, and is important as
the centre of the coal mining industry of the Province.

Three companies are at present in full operation, shipping coal from the port—
the Vancouver Coal Company from their wharves in Nanaimo harbour proper, the
Messrs. Dunsmuir & Sous, of the Wellington Colliery, from Departure Bay, 5 miles
from Nanaimo, and the East Wellington Colliery, about midway between Nanaimo
and Departure Bay.

Nicol Rock, lying about 450 feet north-west from the wharves of the Vancouver
Coal Company, and about 120 feet east of their ballast wharf, was a source of danger
to shipping, and a great impediment in the harbour, when the number and size of
the vessels frequenting the harbour are taken into account, during the past year
419 steamers and 63 sailing vessels loading at the wharves of the Vancouver Coal
Company, the shipments amounting to 248,070 tons,

The rock is composed of the grey sandstone which overlies the coal, and is much
broken on top, and the strata have been found alternately hard and soft, thereby
adding much to the difficulty of drilling and of breaking the rock up small enough
for dredging. :

During the last fiscal year the whole area of rock to be removed to give the
required depth has been broken up with explosives, but there still remains about
1,500 tons to be raised and removed.

THE SOMAS,

This river rises in the northern part of what is known as the Alberni Valley,
on the western side of Vancouver Island, and flows southwardly for a distance of
about 20 miles through the valley, and empties into the Alberni Canal, an inlet of
Barclay Sound, which is an arm of the Pacific Ocean.

The settlement on the Somas can be reached by water from Victoria vi¢ the
Straits and Cape Beale, and by waggon road from Nanaimo, which leaves the east
coast of the island near the mouth of Englishman’s River, and strikes directly across
country, climbing over the height of land, 1,100 feet above the sea. The distance
from Victoria to Alberni by sea is about 140 miles, and by land 130 miles, 78 of
which are covered by the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Railway.

During 1888-89, 47 snags were removed from the channel of the river, and many
overhanging trees were cut away between the mouth and the landing, which have
increased the facilities for navigation; and the remains of an old mill dam near
Sproat’s Liake, which caused the adjoining lands to be overflowed, were removed.

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1890, the work of improving the navi-
gation was continued, 38 snags being removed from the channel and 13 overhanging
trees cut and taken from the banks.

VICTORIA HARBOUR.

The entrance to the harbour of Vietoria is very narrow, with a éharp turnp after -
passing the lighthouse. This turn was the cause of much difficulty to vessels,
especially large steamers, entering the harbo;ar during the prevalence of strong south-
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west winds, and was due to the existence of a shoal extending from Shoal Point,
which for a long time was supposed to be composed of solid rock, but in fact of a
.compact mass of boulders. It having been decided to operate on this shoal, iron
pipes fitted with east iron shoes were driven through and between the boulders with
a small pile-driver to the required depth, and about 3 feet apart. These tubes were
loaded with dynamite and exploded, after which a large harrow or rake, weighing
about two tons, was dragged over the bottom, and then the dredge “ Pacific” was able
to work freely through the shoal.

This work was continued during the last fiscal year, the dredge ¢ Pacific” and
.a clam shell being employed.

SURVEYS AND EXAMINATIONS.

During the year surveys and examinations were made at the undermentioned
localities; and with some exceptions, plans, reports and estimates have been sub
mitted.

.St. Peter’s Bay. King’s Co. P.E.1I. | River St. Louis, Beauharnois Co. P.Q.
Souris do do Cross Point, Bonaventure Co. do
.Summerside Harbour, = Prince Co. do Oak Point do do
Tignish Harbour “do do Tle aux Coudres,. Charlevoix Co. do
Hope River, Queen’s Co. do Island of Alma, Lake St.
New London do do John, Chicoutimi Co. do
Pinette River do do Mistook and Ile d’Alma,
Port Selkirk do do St. John do do
‘Wood Islands do do Roberval, Lake St. John do do
_Apple Creek, Albert Co. N.B. | St. Gedéon do do do
Bliss Island, Charlotte Co. do St. Henri do do do
St. Andrew do do St. Jérome do do do
Miscou Harbour, Gloucester Co. do 8t. Louis de Metabetcho-
Miramichi River, Northumberland Co. do uan, Lake St. John, do do
Negro Point Breakwater, St. John Co. do Cap Chat, Gaspé Co. do
-Oromocto Shoals, St. John Cannes des Roches . do do
River, Sunbury Co. do Newport do do
Pointe du Chéne, Shediac, Westmorland Co.  do Ste. Anne des Monts do do
Clements Port (Moose R.)Annapolis Co. N.S..| River du Sud, Iberville Co. do
Mount Handley do do Dorval, Jacques Cartier Co. do
Round Hill do do | St. Jean d’Orléans, Montmorency Co. do
Arisaig, Antigonish Co. do Lake Mandeville, Maskinongé Co. do
McNair’s Cove do do Pond Creek, Hull, Ottawa Co. do
‘Tracadie - do do La Passe fBridge, River
‘Great Village, Colehester Co. do Ottawa, Pontiac Co. do
Partriage Island, Cuamberland Co. do Interprovincial Bridge,
Partridge Island River, . o do Quoyon, Ottawa o do
Belliveau’s Cove. Dighby Co. do Beauport, Quebec Co. do
Church Point 0 do River Blanche, Rimouski Co. do
Meteghan Cove do do | St. Edmond du Lac do do
.Sissiboo River do . do Cacouna, Temiscouata Co. do
‘White’s Cove do do Beleeil Piers and Booms, Verchéres Co. do
Devils Island, Halifax Co. do River 8t. Maurice, Grands Piles to La
Meaghers Beach do do . Tuque do
Porter’s Lake do do River St. Maurice, do
.Ship Harbour do do Lake of the Woods, Algoma Co. Ont.
‘West Chezzetcook do do Rainy River do do
Walton, Hant’s Oc. do Sault Ste. Marie do do
‘Grand Etang, Inverness Co. do Kincardine, Bruce Co. do
Margaree o do Sangeen River do do
Ogilvie, King’s Co. do Wiarton do do
Pictou Island, Pictou Co. do Kettle Creek, Elgin Co. do
Blanche, Shelburne Co. do Kingsville, Essex Co. do
Purgatory Point do do Big Bay, North Keppel, ~ Grey Co. do
Port La Tour Canal do do Meaford ({0 do
Roseway River . do do | Grand River Haldimand Co. do
Big Pond, Victoria Co. do | Narrows, Georgian Bay, Muskoka do
Boularderie do do Beaver River, Prescott Co. do
New Haven do do Picton, Prince Edward Co. do
North River do do Thames River, do
South Gut. do do St. Clair River, . do
Ingonish do do Columbia River (Revels- B.C
Sanford or Cranberry Head Yarmouth Co. do toke)
Steney Island, Cape Sable Skeena River do
Island do do Fraser River (opposite
Yarmouth do - do Ladner’s Landing}) do
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DREDGING.

“ THE 8T. LAWRENCE.”

At the beginning of the fiscal year this dredge was operating onthe ¢ Traverse,”
River Restigouche, Restigouche County